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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of China Risun Group Limited,
| am pleased to present our first annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended December 31, 2018.
The Company listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange since March 15, 2019.

REVIEW

Year of 2018 was a complex one with challenges and
achievements. Challenges are those political turmoil, unstable
economic growth and intensified economic and trade frictions
between China and USA. On the contrary, we continued to
endeavor to increase our average selling price of coke and optimize
production cost, gave into full play the benefits of environmental
protection, as well as capturing the opportunities that emerged
due to industry integration and expanding our business through
operation management services, thereby improved operation profit
margin and its sustainability. As such, our net profit attributable
to owners of the Company in 2018 achieved a new historical high
amounting to approximately RMB2,088.7 million, representing an
increase of approximately 176.8% as compared to previous year.

In the past since establishment in 1995, we have established
nearly 24 years in coke and refined chemical industry. By mean
of vertically integrated business model, highly automation
and information systems, advanced environmental protection
measures, comprehensive transportation infrastructure near our
four production bases, we continued strengthening our competitive
advantage amongst other coke enterprises in China and positioned
ourselves as the world’s largest independent coke producer and
supplier and leading roles in a number of refined chemical sectors
in China or globally. Therefore, we have a high corporate reputation
in the coke and refined chemical industry.

KEY COMPETITIVE STRENGTHS

Our vertically integrated business model helps to (i) improve
production efficiency and achieve synergies through centralized
and unified management, (ii) reduce exposure to market volatility
and price fluctuations, (iii) diversify our customer base, and (iv)
secure a stable and reliable supply of raw materials for our refined
chemical products.

We have established several highly automation and information
systems, such as our Manufacturing Execution System (MES)
that covers all of our production bases. We use the Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) system and the Office Automation (OA)
system for the management of our production plan, procurement,
manufacturing, sales, transportation, finance and business
approvals. The production and operational data accumulated in such
systems can provide decision-making basis for our management.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Recognition of advanced environmental protection measures —
our subsidiary, Hebei Risun Coking, was recognized as one of the
first batch of Green Factories in 2017. Also, our joint venture, CNC
Risun Coking, was recognized as a Green Factory by the Ministry of
Industry and Information Technology of the PRC (F #E A & 2L F1E
TEM1s 21 E6) in 2018,

PROSPECTS

In 2018, we entered into our second, third and fourth operation
management services agreement because the participants in the
industry seriously take into account of our competitive strengths
and were willing to co-operate with us. Looking forward in 2019,
we believe this segment - operation management will be a
separate reporting segment and one of the major momentums
to the growth and development of our Group.

DIVIDEND

In view of the satisfactory operating results in 2018, the Board
recommends a final dividend of total amount of RMB626.6 million
for the year of 2018 as a return to the supports of our shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to thank all the
Group's employees, shareholders and business partners for their
continuous support. We are looking to grow with all of them in
future and welcome our Group’s 25th anniversary in 2020.

Yang Xuegang
Chairman

March 29, 2019
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Business Highlights
R

Financial stability
Listed on the Main Board of the
B
Hong Kong Stock Exchange ,\7.1'5%%1@

N N - Cash on hand reached
EBBIERLE RMB759 million as at

Expand business Successfully listed on the Main &0 oy 31,2018, Giross
‘ _ - Board of the Hong Kong Stock RMB1.44 billion proceeded
Continuous improvement | ¥ & 7% Exchange in March 2019 f1§ap 01 from Giobel
) . o . S erin
in operating efficiency Seize the opportunity of 20194 3 A RN A BB P #2018(‘;12 A3 BHEE
TR L 3¢ 44 42 industry consolidation and FIREM 3% 2 YRR
REVBFEANE vl B # AR 59T - 1
expand business through 201973 A 2 H B £ 22
Gross profit margin operational management and IE%PE%E)\Eé 1\4 4;', T
increased by 5.9% technology export services ok L
Net profit margin METERESHS  BiBEE
increased by 6.2% BB &R RS R 2

EAEEN5.9%
F5A =32 10 6.2%

el 5

Net profit 2 1 ARMEIEIT
A n RMB 100 million

2018

21.3

Gross profit 4 1 RN
EF n RMB 100 million

2018

34.1
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Business Highlights
EBEmE

China’s sales coverage
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provinces where we have sales of our products during the Reporting Period
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Business Highlights
ABRE

® Locations of production base

TEBRRAMDE

Tangshan production base

ElEERR

Xingtai production base
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Cangzhou production base

RMNAERRER

Dingzhou production base

EMAEERRER
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Business Highlights
FBEmE
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Business Highlights
EBEE

Production volume/processing volume of major products
of the Group IN 2018 (thousand tons)

018F AEBETEEMNESZ /MNIE =w

Coke* Production volume
Ex* EE
4,501.9
Coking crude benzene Processing volume
FEX MIE
515.7
Industrial naphthalene phthalic anhydride Production volume
T REBUER aE
115.6
Coke oven gas methanol Production volume
ERERS RE ER
307.9
Coal\tar Processing volume
REH MIE
668.9

Production volume of major products of joint venture
company CNC Risun Cokmg In 2018 (thousand tons)

2018 F S ENAIREMBEELLETEERHNESE Fw)

Coke* Production volume

)= EE2
3,522.7

Production volume of major products of associated company
Jinniu Risun Chemicals in 2018 (thousand tons)

2018 F = NAleF Bt TEBERANEE (Fw)

Coke oven gas methanol Production volume
EEERS RE EE
217.5

Calculated on a dry basis

* R B E
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The following table sets out our key financial data for the periods or 2R & 7172 A B8 B = & = Fr o~ B Hi L 1
as of the dates indicated extracted from the audited consolidated HIEZ B & - IREEE BRERELA
financial statements disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual ERFTIRBOREEZGAE T HHRE -
report.

SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FEBRRREE

For the year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MBLEE
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154 2016 F 2017 F 2018 &
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RIVIB'000
ARBTT ARBTT AR®TR AR®BTR

Revenue from contracts with B F & #Ukzs

customers 9,993,063 12,216,609 18,658,278 20,583,079
Gross profit EF 515,249 973,413 2,005,239 3,409,920
(Loss)/profit before taxation  BrFi AT (E518) & F (580,817) 390,836 845,943 2,660,371
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriSFi#E %, (F%) 73,701 (35,875) (80,370)  (533,358)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(REE (E518)

attributable to: i Al
Owners of the Company PN/NSIEZ SN (507,116) 359,299 754,674 2,088,668
Non-controlling interests e i - (4,338) 10,899 38,345
Basic (loss)/earnings per BREX (EE)

share (RMB yuan) BF(ARET) (0.16) 0.12 0.24 0.63
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SUMMARY OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e TEE

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2015 2016 2017 2018
20154 20164 2017 % 2018 F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
ARETRT ARETRT AR¥ETRT AR®TR
Non-current assets EMENEE 10,149,929 11,866,376 12,393,896 12,473,286
Current assets REEE 6,503,261 9,273,347 9,445,155 10,128,823
Total assets wEE 16,653,190 21,139,723 21,839,051 22,602,109
Current liabilities mEEaE 13,768,420 15,844,169 15,951,278 16,414,072
Non-current liabilities EmEBAE 1,007,854 2,583,872 2,778,064 1,475,014
Total liabilities BEE 14,776,274 18,428,041 18,729,342 17,889,086
Net current liabilities mEBEFE (7,265,159) (6,570,822) (6,506,123) (6,285,249)
Net assets BEFE 1,876,916 2,711,682 3,109,709 4,713,023

hEBEERERAT 2018 FR | 15
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: . DEVELOPMENTAL STRATEGY

o BREE®

Expansion of business operation and
production capacity

BARXRBEBEREERD

Exploration of market opportunities to
provide operation management and
technology output services

RREHAEETERENE HRBEOHSESB

Development and reinforcement of long-
term business relationships with the major
customers and suppliers

ByYRMBEIERF R HEENRBELEER

J'E Expansion of domestic and international
s trading business

™ EREARERE S

E Improve our energy-efficiency, environmental
'_ b protection and operation safety standards

RAERRRER REREERZ2KY

Improvement of our core competitive
strengths through automation and
information technologies

BREDERES(EMESRLERES

R A MR
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BEBwmEON

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated coke, coking chemical and refined chemical
producer and supplier in China. The Group was the world's largest
independent producer and supplier of coke by volume in 2018,
according to Frost & Sullivan (Beijing) Inc., Shanghai Branch Co.,
(“Frost & Sullivan”) an independent global consulting firm. We also
held leading positions in a number of refined chemical sectors in
China or globally. According to Frost & Sullivan, the Group was the
largest producer of industrial-naphthalene-based phthalic anhydride
and coke-oven-gas-based methanol by volume in China in 2018.
The Group was also the largest coking crude benzene processor
and the fifth largest coal tar processor by volume globally in 2018.

In 2018, under the background of global political turmoil,
unstable economic growth and intensified economic and trade
frictions between China and USA, but the China's economy still
maintained a moderate growth. Both the coking industry and
the refined chemical industry experienced continuous promising
production and operation sentiment which was driven by policy
implementation in supply-side reform, elimination of outdated
production capacity and also a number of them in environmental
protection by the PRC government, recovery of the iron and steel
industry and as well as the consumption growth in the PRC.

Under this circumstance, the Group continued to endeavor to
increase average selling price of our coke and optimize production
cost, gave into full play the benefits of environmental protection,
as well as capturing the opportunities that emerged due to
industry integration and expanding our business through operation
management and technology output services, thereby improved
operation profit margin and its sustainability. As such, the Group hit
new historical record in terms of results and achieved significant
growth. During the 12 months ended December 31, 2018, the
Group recorded a gross profit of approximately RMB3,409.9
million, representing an increase of approximately 70.1%. Net
profit attributable to the owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB2,088.7 million, representing an increase of
approximately 176.8% as compared to RMB754.7 million last year.

In view of the operating results in 2018 and our future
development needs, as well as sharing our outstanding results
with shareholders, the Board recommends a final dividend of total
amount RMB626.6 million for the year of 2018.

BmE

BASTENER SEEMMBALCT
EmFeEER REREE - REBILEIK
FHAARBEIFDMAER) HHER
REl LB RE ([HREMSLFX]) &
2018F HEFE ARE/EHHEANIE
VEREERMERER - HPITFR P B
RN ZERAME TERREHEN AL
G - RIBHAE D FIX - R 2018 FHE
AE AKREEPESZANTEERAR
REBRRHTELERD - K2018FHE
SE - AEETEEHR&EROELCEE M
THREARREEMMIA -

2018%F » EH RBUARBIE T E @ &FEEE
T PELEERMBENEST @ PEL
ENRFTHEMIERRE - EITEM
FEHRE TITHEE P BBUT A H 4 BILE K
B ORHAERBEENZERRERENEIT
NS 1T S 1B & AN e B P95l & 18 R A
HET  FREABEL TITENEERE
EIFEMLT

THEST ANEBESS NN RS ERT
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KRB - Bt - NEBREERFT T
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£2018F 12 A31 H 1121 A B8 - A&
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TCIEIN#9176.8% ©
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RS E@MAERAR 2018 FR | 17



I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis
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DEVELOPMENTAL STRATEGY AND PROSPECTS

2019 is the first year that the Company are listed on the Stock
Exchange. The successful listing has not only strengthened the
shareholders base of the Group, but also further enhanced the
Group’s financing capability and increased its brand awareness
and reputation. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued
to steadily develop its various business segments. The Group
aims to strengthen the globally leading position as an integrated
producer and supplier of coke, coking chemicals and refined
chemicals. To achieve this objective, the Group intends to pursue
the following strategies: (i) expansion of business operation and
production capacity; (ii) exploration of market opportunities to
provide operation management and technology output services;
(iii) development and reinforcement of long-term business
relationships with the major customers and suppliers; (iv) expansion
of domestic and international trading business; (v) improve our
energy-efficiency, environmental protection and operation safety
standards; and (vi) improvement of our core competitive strengths
through automation and information technologies.

BUSINESS REVIEW
REVIEW ON THE BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The Group business consists of three segments:

° Coke and coking chemicals: which involves the production
and sale of coke and coking chemicals, mainly coal tar, coke
oven gas and crude benzene;

° Refined chemicals: which involves the processing of coking
by products into a series of refined chemicals and sale of
these chemicals, mainly carbon material chemicals, alcohol-
ether chemicals and aromatic chemicals; and

° Trading: which involves the trading of coal, coke and refined
chemicals.

Except for above three segments, the Group also provided
operation management and technology output services to third-
party producers during the reporting period, and plans to manage
the relevant business as an independent segment in 2019. During
2018, the products revenue related to the operation management
and technology output services was respectively included in
coke and coking chemicals and refined chemicals segments.
The management services income was included in the trading
segment.
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

EEFL:—JLEFHH& jfﬂ—

The Group's business model is based on a vertically integrated
production chain in which we use our coking by-products to
manufacture refined chemical products. We believe that our
integrated business model and the scale of our business help:

° improve production efficiency and achieve synergies through
centralized and unified management,

° reduce exposure to market volatility and price fluctuations,

° diversify our customer base, and

° secure a stable and reliable supply of raw materials for our
refined chemical products.

The Group's vertically integrated business model and our
experience of more than 20 years in the coal chemical industry
production chain allow us to tap into the downstream refined
chemical markets. With an aim of strengthening our leading
position as a global coke and refined chemical producer and
supplier, we intend to expand our operations through operation
management and technology output services.

The Group’'s revenue increased by approximately RMB1,924.8
million, or 10.3%, to approximately RMB20,583.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, from approximately RMB18,658.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

The Group's gross profits increased 70.1% to RMB3,409.9 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018 from approximately
RMB2,005.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group recorded a
net profit attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB2,088.7 million, representing an increase of approximately
176.8% as compared to the net profit attribute to owners of the
Company of approximately RMB754.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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DEVELOPMENT, PERFORMANCE AND STATUS OF THE
BUSINESS OF THE GROUP

The following table sets forth key financial ratios of the Group to
reflect the profitability, operational capabilities and solvency, that
analyze the Group's potential to grow and develop:

REEXEBHEBER - RERMKR

T%%ﬁ§‘]$'$ligﬁﬂxtb$ A RMA
Flgen - B RERFREN - LEHAREHE
RIERAERB NIED DT

As for the year ended
December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

20184 2017 4

Gross profit margin® EFEO 16.6% 10.7%
Net profit margin® 4 | R @) 10.3% 4.1%
Net profit margin (excluding listing expenses)® #IFE (FEIELEHHRAST)® 10.5% 4.2%
EBITDA margin® EBITDA F) & @ 18.8% 10.9%
Return on equity® HEZE PR KO 45.4% 25.0%
Return on total assets® wEERREO 9.4% 3.5%
Current ratio?” mENIL R 0.6 0.6
Quick ratio® AE xR 0.6 0.5
Net debt to equity ratio® FESERLL RO 1.8 3.2
Gearing ratio"® L 1.9 3.4

Notes:

(1

Calculated by dividing gross profit by revenue for the year.
Calculated by dividing profit by revenue for the year.

Calculated by dividing profit excluding the listing expenses by revenue for the
year.

Calculated by dividing EBITDA by revenue for the year.

Calculated by dividing profit attributable to owners for the year by equity
attributable to owners as of the end of the year.

Calculated by dividing profit for the year by total assets as of the end of the
year.

Calculated by dividing total current assets by total current liabilities as of the
end of the year.

Calculated by dividing total current assets minus inventory by total current
liabilities as of the end of the year.

Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowing including bank and
other loans, obligations under finance leases, and interest-bearing payables for
construction in progress minus cash and cash equivalents by total equity as of
the end of the year.

Calculated by dividing total interest-bearing borrowings by total equity as of the
end of the year.

The Company analyzed the development, performance and status
of the business of the Company through selecting representative
financial indicators of profitability, operation capacity and
repayment ability.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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EBITDA Margin

Our EBITDA margin increased from 10.9% for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to 18.8% for the year ended December
31, 2018, primarily due to our increased EBITDA reflecting
increased net profit.

Return on equity

Our return on equity increased from 25.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to 45.4% for the year ended December
31, 2018, primarily due to our increased net profit attributable
to owners.

Return on total assets

Our return on assets increased from 3.5% for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to 9.4% for the year ended December
31, 2018, primarily due to our increased net profit.

Current ratio

Our current ratio remained stable at 0.6 as of December 31,
2017 and 0.6 as of December 31, 2018.

Net debt to equity ratio

Our net debt to equity ratio decreased from 3.2 as of
December 31, 2017 to 1.8 as of December 31, 2018,
primarily due to our net debt decreased while our equity
increased reflecting increased net profit and injections of
equity capital.

Gearing ratio

Our gearing ratio decreased from 3.4 as of December 31,
2017 to 1.9 as of December 31, 2018, primarily due to
our interest-bearing borrowing decreased while our equity
increased reflecting increased net profit and injections of
equity capital.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB1,924.8
million, or 10.3%, to approximately RMB20,583.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, from approximately RMB18,658.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. The Group’s
gross profits increased 70.1% to RMB3,409.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018 from approximately RMB2,005.2
million for the year ended December 31, 2017. For 2017 and
2018, the revenue from the coke and coking chemical businesses
respectively accounted for 42.2% and 47.8% of the total revenue,
the revenue from the refined chemical business respectively
accounted for 44.9% and 39.6% of the total revenue, the revenue
from the Group’s trading business respectively accounted for
12.9% and 12.6% of the total revenue. The Group mainly sells its
products to customers in China. The Group generated most of the
revenue from sales in China, which accounted for approximately
94.7% and 93.2% of our total revenue in the two years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2018. The following table sets forth
the Group's total revenue and gross profit by business segment
(excluding our inter-segment revenue):

Bt 5[] 8

AEBNWRHBAEE2017F12A8318 1k
FEREHANR18,6568.3H & TILAMAI A
R#1,9248H 8 T%10.3% £ # £2018
F12A31 HIEFEMHH AR 20,5831
A& AEBMEFBEEZ2017F 128
3TBLEFEMHARE2005.2 8 E&ETEMN
70.1% ZH E2018F 12 A31HIEFEH
AR®3,409.98 BT ° R 2017 F %2018
FoREERMELCEREFHWRZES 5
14U R R 42.2% K 47.8% R ERBAE T
EmEFHRED L BIKZEN44.9% Rk
39.6% ' MARKBEAEEE SHEBFHKEDF
BN 129% K126% - REB T E
MABEMEFHEERESR - REEMHKI
DWEREFEMEE  AEEZE2017F
2018412 A31 B IF MEAF E B W
94.7% % 93.2% o NRE|INAEFILZES D
HEDMEREREFN CREES I ZEN
U s) -

Year ended December 31, 2018
HZ2018F12A31ALEE

Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Trading Total
3,93 BAtT
ELES Em £5 @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETRE AR®Tn AR®Tx ARETR
Total revenue B 9,838,550 8,149,009 2,595,520 20,583,079
- Included operation management ~ — B IE&EE R &Rl
and technology output service &)t AR T AR R 2
related revenue: 603,894 411,389 23,300 1,038,583
Gross profit EH 2,254,512 1,005,466 149,942 3,409,920
- Included operation management ~ — &3 &E B IR KT
and technology output service BHRBSHEEER
related gross profit: 89,912 34,402 16,650 140,964
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Year ended December 31, 2017

HBZE2017F 12831 HIEEE

Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Trading Total
ERE BaET
EILER Em 25 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARETRT ARETR
Total revenue Rl 7,875,610 8,375,447 2,407,221 18,658,278
—Included operation management ~ —EFELIBEE K KT
and technology output service &R AR
related revenue: - 1,306,013 - 1,306,013
Gross profit EH 1,173,715 750,808 80,716 2,005,239
- Included operation management ~ — B3R EEE I MR
and technology output service @ REAEER
related gross profit: - 21,405 - 21,405

The following discussion addresses the principal trends that have
affected the Group's results of operations during the Reporting
Period.

(a)

Revenue

The revenue increased by approximately RMB1,924.8
million, or 10.3%, to approximately RMB20,583.1 million
for the year ended December 31, 2018, from approximately
RMB18,658.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2017,
primarily due to increased revenues from the coke and coking
chemical business and trading businesses, partially offset
by a decrease in the revenue from the refined chemical
business. The revenue related to the operation management
and technology output services is RMB1,038.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, accounted for 5.0% of the
total revenue.

Revenue from the coke and coking chemical business
increased by 24.9% from RMB7,875.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 to RMB9,838.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018 primarily as a result of an
increase in the average selling price from RMB1,550.0 per
ton to RMB1,827.4 per ton, and sales volume of the coke
increased from 4.97 million tons to 5.16 million tons. The
operation management and technology output services
played an important role in the increase of revenue from the
coke and coking chemical, and the related products revenue
was RMB603.9 million, which accounted for 30.8% of the
total increased revenue.

TR REMATEREELE XA
MEEBES -

(a)

Yz

W HREZE2017F 12831 BIEFE
H# AR 18,658.3 8 & LI MK A
R#1,9248EBLK103%EHE
2018F 12 AT B IEFEMNHARE
205831 BETL NEEZHRERK
ELEREBRE S EBH I
o B S TE R EBH K
B FTHEE - U= 2018F 12 A31H
IEFE - A& EEE R H R
Bz A AR 11,0386 EEIT 1R
BN FE A 5.0% ©

REEREELCEREFNKEH
HE2017F 12831 BIEFE®H A
R#7,875.6 @ B2 N249% £ &,
E2018F 12 A3 HIEEEMARE
98386 HETL ' FTEHNERFHIE
BREMEA R 1,550.0 LG N = &WA
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Revenue from the refined chemical business decreased by
2.7% from RMB8,375.5 million for the year ended December
31, 2017 to RMB8,149.0 million for the year ended December
31, 2018, primarily as a result of decrease in the volume of
benzene sold during the same period which was due to the
decrease in the volume of benzene sold arising from the
suspension of production by the crude benzene hydro refining
facility of a third party company, which was in connection with
our operation management and technology output services,
partially offset by increases in the average selling prices and
sales volume of the caprolactam.

Revenue from the trading business increased by 7.8% from
RMB2,407.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to
RMB2,595.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
primarily due to increases in the management service income
related to operation management and technology output
service and the average trading price and trading volume of
coke, partially offset by a decrease in the revenue from the
trading of coal and coal chemicals due to a decrease in the
trading volume. The management services income amounted
to RMB23.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Cost of sales

Cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2017 and
2018 increased from RMB16,653.1 million to RMB17,173.2
million primarily due to the increase of coke and coking
chemicals, partially offset by decrease of refined chemical
and trading business.

Cost of sales from the coke and coking chemical business
increased by 13.2% from RMBG6,701.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 to RMB7,584.0 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to an increase in
market prices for coking coal and an increase in the volume of
coke sold.

Cost of sales from the refined chemical business decreased
by 6.3% from RMB7,624.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to RMB7,143.6 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to a decrease in the
volume of benzene sold during the same period.

Cost of sales from the trading business increased by 5.1%
from RMB2,326.5 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 to RMB2,445.6 million for the year ended December 31,
2018, primarily as a result of increased procurement price and
volume of coke.
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's total gross profit increased by approximately
RMB1,404.7 million, or 70.1%, to approximately RMB3,409.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, from
approximately RMB2,005.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017. Gross profit margin increased to 16.6%
for the year ended December 31, 2018, from 10.7% for the
year ended December 31, 2017. Our gross profit related to
the operation management and technology output services
is RMB141.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
accounted for 4.1% of the total gross profit.

Gross profit from the coke and coking chemical business
increased by 92.1% from RMB1,173.7 million for the year
ended December 31, 2017 to RMB2,254.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018. Gross profit margin for
the coke and coking chemical business increased from
14.9% for the year ended December 31, 2017 to 22.9% for
the year ended December 31, 2018, primarily because the
increase in the price of coke was larger than the increase
in the price of coking coal in the year ended December 31,
2018. The increase in the price of coke was primarily driven
by a decrease in the supply of coke resulting from the
government'’s policies to eliminate production capacity and
improve environmental protection.

Gross profit from the refined chemical business increased
by 33.9% from RMB750.8 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to RMB1,005.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018. Gross profit margin for the refined
chemical business increased from 9.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to 12.3% for the year ended December
31, 2018, primarily because the increase in the prices of
refined chemical products (primarily caprolactam and coal tar
pitch) were larger than the increase in the prices of their raw
materials in the year ended December 31, 2018.

Gross profit from the trading business increased by 85.7%
from RMB80.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2017
to RMB149.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2018.
Gross profit margin for the trading business increased from
3.4% for the year ended December 31, 2017 to 5.8% for the
year ended December 31, 2018.
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Other gains and losses

The Group's other gains and losses consist primarily of
fair value gain/(loss) on future contracts and listed equity
securities, loss on foreign exchange and gain on disposal of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid lease payments.
The Group had other gains of RMB119.3 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018, compared to other losses of
RMB34.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2017.
The change is primarily due to (i) a fair value gain on futures
contracts at FVTPL of RMB98.5 million for the year ended
December 31, 2018, compared to a loss of RMB12.5 million
for the same period in 2017; and (ii) gain on disposal of
prepaid lease payments increased RMB41.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased slightly by 3.9%
from RMB700.3 million for the year ended December 31,
2017 to RMB727.8 million for the year ended December 31,
2018, primarily due to an increase in the volume of coke sold.

Administrative expenses

The Group's administrative expenses increased by
approximately RMB85.2 million, or 30.0%, to approximately
RMB369.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
from approximately RMB283.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017, primarily due to an increase in staff
costs reflecting increased employee remuneration.

Listing expenses

The Group's listing expenses increased by approximately
RMB12.9 million, or 110.3%, to approximately RMB24.6
million for the year ended December 31, 2018, from
approximately RMB11.7 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017, as the preparation for listing lasted from
September, 2017 until March, 2019.

Share of results of a joint venture

Share of results of a joint venture increased by 143.2% from
RMB225.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2017 to
RMB548.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2018,
representing an increase in the shared profit of CNC Risun
Coking. The profit of CNC Risun Coking increased significantly
due to the increase in the selling price of coke.
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(k)

Profit before taxation

As a result of the foregoing factors, the profit before income
tax increased by approximately RMB1,814.5 million, or
214.5%), to approximately RMB2,660.4 million for the year
ended December 31, 2018 from approximately RMB845.9
million for the year ended December 31, 2017.

Income tax expense

The Group incurred income tax expense of approximately
RMB533.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2018
and approximately RMB80.4 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017 respectively at effective tax rates of
20.0% and 9.5%. The increase in income tax expense is
due to an increase in profit before taxation. The effective
tax rates significantly increased primarily because the share
of results of associates and a joint venture, which was not
subject to further income tax, as a percentage of the profit
before taxation decreased. In 2017, the deferred tax assets
of RMB76.6 million were recognized in respect of the unused
tax losses and the unrecognized deductible temporary
differences.

Profit for the year

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Group recorded
a net profit of approximately RMB2,127.0 million, an increase
of approximately 177.8% as compared to the net profit
of approximately RMB765.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2017.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

As of December 31, 2017 and 2018, our gearing ratios were
approximately 3.4 and 1.9, respectively. Our gearing ratio
decreased as of December 31, 2018 as compared to that of
December 31, 2017 primarily because of the increase in the equity
and the decrease in interest-bearing borrowings. Our gearing ratio
was calculated based on dividing interest-bearing borrowings by
total equity as of the end of the respective date.

BEAREE RBESRBKEER
R2017F M2018F 12 A31H EXAE
RS RIH /3.4 % 1.9 - 20184 12 A 31
HREARBGELXHK2017F12 A31 B
Lo FERRERE MR EETRD - &
REGELETIRET BERGR S BHRD
AR ATE -

As of December 31,

R12A831H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBBEERT AREBHEL
Bank and other loans RITREME K 8,890 9,780
Obligations under finance leases B & EIE 25 57

Interest-bearing payables for construction &t B 7EiE T2 fE A

in progress 97 641
Total equity B 4,713 3,110
Gearing ratio BEXRGELE 1.9 3.4

We wiill closely monitor our gearing ratio. We analyze the maturity
profiles of our borrowings and manage our liquidity level to ensure
sufficient cash flow to service our indebtedness and meet cash
requirements arising from our business. We will explore various
financing opportunities to improve our capital structure and reduce
our cost of capital. We expect that utilizing the proceeds we
received from the Global Offering will also effectively improve our
gearing ratio.
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The Group's primary uses of cash are operating costs, capital
expenditures and repayment of debts in the PRC. To date, the
Group has funded the investments and operations principally with
cash from operations and debt financing from banks and other
financial institutions. We manage our liquidity, working capital and
funding of capital expenditures by monitoring our cash flows and
predicting our cash flows. The Group believes that the liquidity
requirements will be satisfied through a combination of cash flows
generated from the operating activities, bank loans and other
borrowings, and the net proceeds from the Global Offering. Any
significant decrease in the demand for, or pricing of, the products
and services, or a significant decrease in the availability of bank
loans, may adversely impact the liquidity. As at December 31,
2018, cash and cash equivalents held by the Group were mainly
cash in the banks and on hand denominated in RMB and deposits
denominated in RMB that are readily convertible into cash, the
information of cash and cash equivalents denominated in the
currency other than the functional currency of relevant group
entities is disclosed in Note 28 to the Financial Statements.

The following table sets forth the cash flows for the periods
indicated:

AEENRSTERNTEOHEERA
BAFRX MEEER 25/ AEEE
TEUREMBRERBITREMS BB
BEBREBRNREREE - RIfIRBERE
RenERlBARSAEEERDES
BEESRAREARIREHEZBR - K
SEEEKREIPMEHRSRE RITE
AR EMERAREREEMSRBFE
RA A R R B B 2 F K o HEm KRS
MR SKERERLIRARE /5 - Sr BUSH
RITEFRAEE LD - A REE S IEK
TRFLZ - 702018F 12 A31 B - KEEFT
FHREERRASFEVEIEZRUARES
BENRITRFERS - AR ERER AR
TOAARBEFENTR  NEREEE
BHEEBUINNERHENR S LR
TEEYNERNM B RRME28HE -

TREBIRFIRHAENRERE

As for the year ended
December 31,
BZE12A31MBLEFE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 F
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBBEET ARBEET
Net cash generated from operating LEREBIRES FR
activities 2,247.2 2,462.6
Net cash used in investing activities HEFREGHARS FE (859.5) (267.2)
Net cash used in financing activities BEEETAIR S FE (1,230.3) (1,750.9)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents E & &R & S E ¥ FHE N 157.4 4445
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FROBRERAEEEY
of the year 759.0 600.0
(a) Net cash generated from operating activities (a) KEFTEFABREFRE

For the year ended December 31, 2018, our net cash
generated from operating activities was approximately
RMB2,247.2 million and was less than our net cash generated
from operating activities for the year ended December 31,
2017 of approximately RMB2,462.6 million, primarily due to
the significant decrease in the variance of working capital
such as transactional payables to related parties, trade and
other payables and contract liabilities, compared with the
previous period, offset the increase in profit.

HE2018F12A31HILEFE &
EEHAEMNRSFIENAARE
22472 BB EREE 2017512
A3 BIEFERKEEEBMSMNES
FRHEOARE24626E8 L £BH
RRZEEAEE A RIE  BEHRE
HENREREREBEEEEELRE
ENARE EEARIER D - HEE T s 1
hne
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(b) Net cash used in investing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2017, our net cash used
in investing activities was approximately RMB267.2 million
and was increased to approximately RMB859.5 million for the
year ended December 31, 2018, primarily due to an increase
of RMB313.8 million on investment in property, plant and
equipment, and from a net decrease of RMB276.3 million
to a net increase of RMB465.1 million of restricted bank
deposits, partially offset by an increase of RMB264.7 million
in dividends received from a joint venture and associates.

(c) Net cash used in financing activities

For the year ended December 31, 2017, our net cash used
in financing activities was approximately RMB1,750.9 million
and decreased by RMB520.6 to approximately RMB1,230.3
million for the year ended December 31, 2018 due to the
RMB412.0 million equity financing in 2018.

The Group expects to fund its capital expenditure
commitments principally by the net proceeds of the Global
Offering, bank and other loans and cash generated from the
business operations.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

Capital expenditures principally consist of expenditures for
property, plant and equipment, and land use rights. We have
financed our capital expenditures primarily through cash flow from
operations and borrowings from financial institutions. For the years
ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, we made the following
capital expenditures:

b) REEFDAAREIFR

HZE2017F12A83MBItFE  &E
EEAMARSFEANAARE267.2
BET WEIMEEE2018F 12 A
STHEFEMHARMKESOTHE
T X EHREBEDE  BERSEE
HIR BB IMARE3138F &L T
BE%IJ%E??@%AE?%}W > ANR#276.3
*“7% aai*bu}\ﬁﬁ%%mﬁ%
DWW E —KREEDE R E
Wﬁ HEINA R 26478 8Tk
ﬁﬁ

) BB EEFTAIALSFE
HE2017F12A31BIEFE @&
EENFTAR S FREANAARK 1,750.9
BELTIRIOARKB206EETE
HE2018F 12 A3 HIEFEHHA
R#1,2303B 8T ' ARN20184F i
EFBEAREL4120FB8 T

REBEEH T2 AR RBEEREHIA
FEE SRITMEMERIAREBEE
EEHR B B AR SRE

=N

BERRTEEBREYE BELRERER T
FRAEMANAEL - RMEZUELEEE
EHNRERERSMEBEERRELRMI
BHES - EH 220184 & 2017F12 A 31
HIEFE  BMAEEHERAZ AT ¢

As of December 31,

M12A318
2018 2017
2018 F 2017

RMB in millions RMB in millions

ARBEERT AR%BBER

Property, plant and equipment Y B REE 1,121.1 837.2
Land use rights b {5 FA 111.9
Total st 1,233.0 837.2
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CURRENT ASSETS AND CURRENT LIABILITIES

The following table sets forth our current assets and current

RBEERABDER
TREJNBEMRABERMANRBEE R

liabilities as of the dates indicated: mBBE :
As of December 31,
R12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBBEERT AREBHEL
Current Assets REEE
Inventories FE 1,009.0 807.5
Income tax prepayments FriS B a1 5B 3.8 5.4
Trade and other receivables E 5 K H b FERIE 1,021.5 3,629.8
Trade and bills receivable measured at ~ EAREFAEMEE KR
FVTOCI B 5 R FIE R W R 3,179.3 -
Prepaid lease payments FENEERE 27.4 27.1
Amounts due from related parties JE U F B 5 SROE 675.2 1,530.0
AFS financial assets AHHESmEE - 31.2
Financial assets at FVTPL BERARBEHAEBEZHNEREE 0.3 11.1
Restricted bank balances Z PR B RIT 4588 3,453.3 2,803.1
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEFEED 759.0 600.0
Total current assets REBEEHRE 10,128.8 9,445.2
Current Liabilities REBAE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BARBEFAERNERARE 0.4 0.1
Trade and other payables E 5 R E M EARIE 6,528.9 6,646.6
Contract liabilities EHEaE 1,074.7 1,117.6
Income tax payable FERT TSR 389.0 104.2
Bank and other loans HRITREMERK 7.618.0 7,348.8
Obligations under finance leases R & EFIE 23.6 31.9
Amounts due to related parties FET R E T SR 779.5 702.1
Total current liabilities REBEEEE 16,414.1 15,951.3
Net current liabilities REBEERE (6,285.3) (6,506.1)
The ageing analysis of trade receivable and trade payable are stated 2 5 EW KA R B 5 B REHRE DT
under Note 26 and Note 29 of the Financial Statements. 2 BIS N B 75 TR = Y 7E 26 Bt E29 ©
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INDEBTEDNESS &8
(a) Borrowings (@) f&X
The following table sets forth the bank borrowings as of the TR EEMT B BRITER

dates indicated:

As of December 31,

M12H831H
2018 2017
20184 2017 €

RMB in millions RMB in millions

ARBEERT AR%BBER

Bank loan, secured IRITE - B 3,201.5 4,645.0
Bank loan, unsecured IRITE R - EIEH 1,334.5 578.9
Other loans, secured HEa B B 815.7 1,042.1
Other loans, unsecured HEaER - EEE 260.0 206.0
Discounted bills financing BRIR R R E 3,278.5 3,308.2
Total 1BET 8,890.2 9,780.2
As of December 31,
M12A318
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
ARETR ARETT
Fixed rate bank and other EBIRITREMER
borrowings 5,861,040 1.50-12.00 5,641,374 1.50-12.00
Floating rate bank and FBIRIT R EAMER
other borrowings 3,029,177 4.35-11.81 4,238,838 3.49-12.40
8,890,217 9,780,212
The total borrowings decreased by approximately RMB890.0 BRAEBR2017F12A31HHAR
million, or 9.1%, to approximately RMB8,890.2 million #9,780.2 B B LR 8 AR 890.0
as of December 31, 2018 from RMB9,780.2 million as of BHETK9.1% £2018F 12 A31 H
December 31, 2017, primarily due to the repayment of bank ARS8 2EHETL  TEMR
loans. EEIRITER -
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Most of the borrowings are denominated in RMB, the
borrowings denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of respective entities are set out below:

REHEFTAAREHE  AEER
BT BE B B LASN Y B SHE A (B TR
FIgnR

As of December 31,

M12831H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBEERT ARBEET
usD ETT 375.9 325.0
EUR BT 117.4 116.4
493.3 441.4
Obligations under finance leases (b) BEREFIE
The Group had the following total future minimum lease HEMRAH  AEEMSEREMR
payments under several finance lease arrangements as of the SR T H R K S K FH & SR IE 42 %8 10
dates indicated: N
As of December 31,
®W12A831H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBEERT AR®BEET
Within one year —FNR 245 35.7
After 1 year but within 2 years —FAEEMFA 0.8 24.6
After 2 years but within 5 years MFAEEBERFA - 0.9
Less: total future interest expenses W FBRRF B (0.8) (4.6)
245 56.6
The average lease term under these finance lease ZEMEHELRHIETHEIHESF
arrangements is five years, with fixed annual interest rates HART MAEREMEBETEFEANES
underlying all obligations ranging from 9.2% to 9.6%. 92% &E9.6% °
Interest-bearing payables for construction in progress () FTEAERIREEMFIE

As of December 31, 2017 and 2018, interest-bearing
payables for construction in progress amounted to RMB641.3
million and RMB96.9 million respectively, which were
secured and guaranteed by a subsidiary. Such payables carry
a contractual interest rate at 5.8% and 6.2% per annum,
respectively, which is charged on outstanding payments after
construction progress verification.

MR2017F & 2018F 124318 5 &
FEIRENRES R AAREG41.3
BETNAREISIEE T ZAAE
Eﬁ#&ﬁ&ﬁa M B A R AR © 7%
ERNREDRIREBFELFEL8%
&6.2%#%\ FE TR T HEE%E
1B RE FIBUER
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments outstanding of the Group are
set out under Note 43 of the Financial Statements.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

As of 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
outstanding off-balance sheet guarantees, interest rate swap
transactions, foreign currency and commodity forward contracts or
other off-balance sheet arrangements. The Group does not engage
in trading activities involving non-exchange traded contracts.
In the course of the business operations, the Group does not
enter into transactions involving, or otherwise form relationships
with, unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships that are
established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposed.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As of December 31, 2018, we had 3,574 full-time employees. Most
of our senior management members and employees are based in
Beijing and Hebei province.

We enter into a standard employment contract with each of our full-
time employees. Compensation for our employees includes basic
wages, variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and 2018 our staff costs totalled
RMB261.2 million, RMB314.8 million, and RMB424.0 million,
respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING AND USE OF PROCEEDS
FROM INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on March 15, 2019, and the
Company issued 600,000,000 Shares on the Listing Date, allotted
and issued 90,000,000 Shares on April 11, 2019 of par value of
HK$0.1 per share with the Offer Price of HK$2.8 per Share. The
total issuance size and gross proceeds amounted to approximately
HK$1,932 million.

As of the date of this report, we have not utilized any of the
proceeds from the Global Offering. We plan to apply the proceed
in accordance with the plan set out in the section headed "Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the prospectus of the Company
dated February 28, 2019.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK AND MANAGEMENT

The Group maintained some of the capital denominated in foreign
currency, mainly USD and HKD. Fluctuations in exchange rate
would influence the reserve in foreign currencies to a certain extent
and the Company is exploring and discussing measures to respond
to foreign exchange risk. The analysis of the exposure to exchange
rate risk is set out in Note 41 to the Financial Statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group entered into guarantee agreements with certain
commercial banks in the PRC with respect to loan facilities granted
to a joint venture and a related party. Under these guarantee
agreements, the Group agreed to be jointly and severally liable for
the borrowings incurred by such joint venture and related party.
The table below sets forth the maximum liabilities under such
guarantees as of the dates indicated.

SMEE FEL B % B EE
AEBINBEFHOAINEFENES =
ERETMET -EXNRBHEINEES
EHAE—EXE ARAREERRE®
JE SN [ B0 ¥ e © P TED e P =R JEL g B9 2
DI AN R B A

HREE

N R

AEEEPBETHERTARE T KA
BOER-RBEB NS RBE T LER
s - REBEZFERDE  ARERZLHZ
BehX A EENERERKER
AEERE - TREJIBEMR AR
RETHE=AERE-

As of December 31,

M®12A31H8
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB in millions RMB in millions
ARBEEERT AR¥EBE&ET
Financial guarantees issued to a joint M—REELFEHHREEE
venture and fully drawn down IREUH B S HE R 830.0 1,260.0
Financial guarantees issued to a related A — 24 BA s 75 3% H B0 BA A5 42 1R
party - 339.0
830.0 1,599.0

As of December 31, 2017 and 2018, the outstanding balance
of loans under the loan facilities guaranteed by the Group was
RMB1,253.5 million and RMB332.6 million, respectively. In the
opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee
contracts of the Group were insignificant at the date of issue of the
financial guarantee and no provision is necessary at the end of each
reporting period, taking into account that the net realizable value of
the pledged assets held by the banks exceeded the facilities and
credit granted to the relevant parties. In addition, the Directors do
not consider it probable that a claim will be made against us under
any of these guarantees.

HR2017FE K2018F 12 A31H - REF#E
ROBEFBREETNERREERTED
BARE12358E T ARKE3326H
BN -EERAE BEVKERZBELEH-
REENMBEEREONAABTIELN
REFREHR  KZERITHEFHD KR
BEMNAERFEBAX THEBINRE
MEE - WA - 1IN  EERE
REETAARERE EERER M RE -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. YANG Xuegang (% Z [ ), aged 54, is an Executive Director,
the chief executive officer of the Company and the chairman of the
Board. He was appointed as an Executive Director in November
2007. He is responsible for the overall management and business
development of the Group. He is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

Mr. Yang graduated from Hebei Hydraulic College (74t 7K | 2%}
%) (now known as Hebei University of Water Resources and
Electric Engineering (A1 3E7kFE 127 )) in Cangzhou, the PRC in
July 1985 with a diploma in hydraulic engineering construction and
obtained the hydraulic engineer qualification issued by the Handan
City Labour Bureau (HB BB 1 45 &) A = /@) in December 1993. He
completed a master-level training course in business administration
at Renmin University of China (B A R XZ) in Beijing, the PRC
in March 2000 and was a supervisor of a master’'s degree program
at Hebei University of Economics and Business (JA[1L &8 & K &) in
Shijiazhuang, the PRC in July 2002. He completed a further master-
level training course in business administration at the ZhongHua
Yanxiu University (FREEFHERE) in Beijing, the PRC in September
2003. In November 2003, he obtained a master’'s degree in
business administration from Asia International Open University
(Macau) (22 M CRPT) BB A5 K2) in Macau. He obtained the
senior engineer qualification awarded by the Hebei Provincial
Department of Human Resources and Social Security (;A1it& A 7]
&Rt 2 REERE) in December 2012. In January 2017, Mr. Yang
obtained an executive master’s degree in business administration
from Hebei University of Technology (JA1dt T %K) in Tianjin, the
PRC.

Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yang was employed
at the Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center (5 & £ 7K
E &I BR), a public body directly subordinated to the Handan
City Hydraulics Bureau (HB &8 7K /B), on a full-time basis for
approximately 10 years from August 1985, and became a deputy
director of the Dongwushi Reservoir Management Center from
January 1988. He then joined the Group as general manager as
a result of his entrepreneurial efforts since the establishment of
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited in May 1995 and became chairman
since May 1996. Since September 2012, he has been a director
of Beijing Automic Technology Co., Ltd. (1t R B4 =78 Bl &
f% 15 A R 2 &) (“Beijing Automic”), a company listed on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations (2 B & /)N b 2 A% (5
% Z470) (stock code: 430245), whose principal business is the
planning of water conservancy information projects, consultation
and assessment, as well as software and hardware product
development and services, and held as to 49.92% by Mr. Yang and
parties acting-in-concert with him.
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Over the years, Mr. Yang has taken up leadership roles in a number
of industry associations, including those relating to the coking
industry. He has been the vice president of CCIA since October
2005, and the president of HBCCIA since January 2006. In February
2008, Mr. Yang was elected and had served as a deputy to the 11th
NPC and in February 2013, he was elected as a deputy to the 12th
NPC.

Mr. ZHANG Yingwei (R % {£), aged 47, is an Executive Director
and a vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an
Executive Director in July 2009. He is responsible for the overall
management of the Tangshan Production Base and the Cangzhou
Production Base.

Mr. Zhang graduated with a bachelor’s degree in coal chemistry
from Tangshan Institute of Technology (/& L1 T2 F i1 267) (now
known as North China University of Science and Technology (%
1t 32 T KE)) in Tangshan, the PRC in June 1993. He completed
a master-level training program in business administration at
Hebei University of Economics and Business (i 1f 4 & K £2)
in Shijiazhuang, the PRC in November 2004. He also obtained a
master’s degree in metallurgical engineering at Hebei Polytechnic
University (;AT463 T KX) (now known as North China University of
Science and Technology (# 4t ¥ T K )) in Tangshan, the PRC
in April 2007. In December 2012, he obtained the senior engineer
qualification from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei
Province (At A BB EEE NEPAE).

Mr. Zhang has over 25 years of experience in iron and steel
industry and coal chemical industry. Mr. Zhang worked for Xingtai
Metallurgical Machinery and Mill Roll Joint Stock Corporation (7
BRI EL 8 IZ(H B R 2 F)) (now known as Sinosteel Xingtai
Machinery & Mill Roll Co., Ltd. (il &£ B & # i L8R B R A
A1), whose principal business is the manufacturing of metallurgical
machinery and parts for the production of metallurgical rolls and
equipment, from September 1993. He then joined the Group
in February 1996. He has been serving as a vice president of
the Coking Chemistry Sub-committee of the National Technical
Committee on Coal Chemical Industry of Standardization
Administration of China (& B/&{t TIZX#E(L F1l1Z B € ) since May
2016, an expert on the expert panel of the CCIA since January 2018
and an expert of both the HBCCIA and the Department of Industry
and Information Technology of Hebei Province since April 2018.

BREESFRRZETEHSETEER
% BRERCTEABNTRHRE -8
2006 F 10 AREEFERETEH S
& - B2006 F 1 AREBEAILEELITRD
28R 2008F 27 HEEEERET—
EEBAKRKEK H2013F28 - KEER
FT_EEEARRE-
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EIE o

RELEMN199B3F6 AREXNPEEILNE
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AR RERE K TR E BRI
FIERIZ - WP 2007 4 AR B E LT L
BIXRB(BABEILBIASZ)ER ST
RRET B o PR2012F 12 7 @ WEFIEE
BENEAE/ AR AERK SR ITIZA
B -
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Mr. HAN Qinliang (8 &) %), aged 45, is an Executive Director
and a vice president of the Group. Mr. Han was appointed as an
Executive Director in May 2011. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the financial, accounting and information systems
of the Group.

Mr. Han obtained a diploma in industrial economy administration
from Hebei College of Mechanical Engineering (J] 4k # & £ %)
in Xingtai, the PRC in June 1993 (as a result of a merger, Hebei
College of Mechanical Engineering is now part of Hebei University
of Science and Technology (7AI3tEHE K E)). In December 2001, he
obtained a bachelor’s degree in accounting from Hebei University of
Economics and Business (JAIdb4EE K2 ) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.
In July 2001, he became a member of Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (R EIFEf&ETAM % ) in the PRC. In December
2003, he obtained the senior accountant qualification from the Title
Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (i[1k & B il 2 &
EENEMNE).

Mr. Han joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Han has
approximately 25 years of experience in steel and coal chemical
industry. From September 1993 to April 2004, he was the deputy
head of the finance department cost division in Xingtai Machinery
and Mill Roll (Group) Corporation (F8 & i #8828 (@) B R A a))
(now known as Sinosteel Xingtai Machinery & Mill Roll Co., Ltd. (#
i 5 BB & A B A BR 2 7). In March 2004, Mr. Han joined
Xingtai Risun Trading as a general manager assistant.
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Mr. WANG Fengshan (£ & L), aged 60, is an Executive Director
and a vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an
Executive Director in September 2018. He is primarily responsible
for the procurement and sales management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a diploma in statistics from Hebei University (;A]
it KX 2) in Baoding, the PRC in June 1989.

Mr. Wang joined the Group in March 2004. Mr. Wang has
approximately 30 years of experience in procurement and sales
management. From August 1983 to September 1996, he was the
sales manager in Hebei Hongxing Automobile Factory Co., Ltd.
OUdbAT 2 /5 E 2 E AR R A F), a company principally engaged in
the automobile and automobile parts manufacturing business, and
from October 1996 to October 1998, he was the general manager
of Bear Asia Furniture Co., Ltd. (FZRER D BR A F)), a
company principally engaged in the metal furniture and furnishings
manufacturing business. From February 1999 to January 2004, he
was a general manager of Xingtai Zhongxing Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd. (B & A E 2 F R /2 &), a company principally engaged in
the pharmaceutical business. In March 2004, Mr. Wang joined the
human resources department of Xingtai Risun Trading and oversaw
the human resources and administrative management in CNC
Risun Coking from November 2004 to August 2009. He has been
overseeing the Group's procurement and sales management since
August 2009. Mr. Wang has been a vice president of the HBCCIA
since December 2016 and an expert on the expert panel of the
CCIA since January 2018.

Mr. WANG Nianping (£ ¥ ), aged 56, is an Executive Director
and a vice president of the Group. He was appointed as an
Executive Director in September 2018. He is primarily responsible
for the legal and risk management of the Group.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor's degree in law from the Institute of
Hubei Finance (#3EETAE 287 ) (now known as Zhongnan University
of Economics and Law (7 & 8 &Z B K 2)) in Wuhan, the PRC
in July 1984. He obtained a post-graduate degree in international
trade and a juris doctor degree from the University of International
Business and Economics (¥#7ME#EE 5 K2 ) in Beijing, the PRC in
June 1994 and December 2007, respectively. He was admitted as
a qualified lawyer in the PRC in June 1987 and obtained the senior
economist qualification issued by the Sinopec Group in November
2004.
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Mr. Wang joined the Group in February 2011 and prior to joining
the Group, he had over 10 years of extensive experience in the
petrochemical industry. He was recognized as a third level lawyer in
April 1990 by the China National Petroleum Corporation (7 B4/ )
KRR 42X 7)) where he worked. In January 1996, Mr. Wang joined
China Petroleum Engineering Construction Corporation, a company
whose principal business is building oil and gas infrastructures
and undertook various positions including contracts administrator,
senior officer of the debt recovery department and deputy manager
of the projects department. In May 2001, he joined Sinopec
International Petroleum Exploration and Production Corporation
("SIPC"), a company whose principal business is in overseas oil and
gas investment and operations, as the deputy manager of the legal
department. From November 2004 to December 2008, he served
as the vice president of the SIPC's subsidiaries in Kazakhstan and as
the deputy general manager of the SIPC's subsidiaries in Syria from
January 2009 to October 2010.

Mr. YANG Lu (# ), aged 28, is an Executive Director and
the general manager of Beijing Risun Hongye. He is primarily
responsible for the management of the import, export and
domestic trading business of the Group. He was appointed as an
Executive Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yang Lu graduated with a bachelor's degree in chemical
engineering from the Washington University in St. Louis, the
United States in May 2012. He obtained the fund management
qualification from the Asset Management Association of China in
June 2015.

Mr. Yang Lu joined the Group in November 2013. Prior to
joining the Group, he was a junior consultant at Roland Berger
Management Consultants (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (B8 B &> %
&I (+/8) AR AT, aglobal strategy consulting firm, from
September 2012 to September 2013, and from October 2013
to November 2014, he worked in the marketing department of
Beijing Automic. Mr. Yang Lu has been the chairman’s assistant of
Hong Kong Risun since November 2013 and worked in the market
research department as deputy manager of Beijing Risun Hongye
from December 2014 to May 2016. He then worked in Beijing
Risun Fund Management Co., Ltd. (It B E S ETEBR A
A]), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Xuyang Holding, between June
2016 and September 2018, first as deputy general manager and
subsequently as general manager. In September 2018, he rejoined
Beijing Risun Hongye as the general manager.

Mr. Yang Lu is the son of Mr. Yang.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. KANG Woon (B JE), aged 56, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee. He was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director between November 2011 to September 2015 and re-
appointed in September 2018.

Mr. Kang obtained a doctorate of jurisprudence from the University
of Texas in Austin, Texas, the United States in May 1990. He
has been an attorney-at-law of the Supreme Court of the State of
New York since March 1991, and a member of the Law Society of
England and Wales since May 1998.

Mr. Kang served as a supervisor from May 2004 to June 2007
and was an independent non-executive director of Anhui Conch
Cement Company Limited (Z BB ZKERHBER QA a
company principally engaged in cement products manufacturing
dually listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock codes: 914 and 600585, respectively),
between October 1997 and May 2004 as well as between June
2007 and May 2013. Mr. Kang was an independent non-executive
director of China Yurun Food Group Limited (f BIRS/E & @£ H
BRA7]), a company whose principal business is manufacturing
meat products and listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1068), from April 2005 to January 2010.

Mr. YU Kwok Kuen Harry (REI#), aged 49, is an Independent
Non-executive Director and also the chairman of the Audit
Committee and member of the Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2018.

Mr. Yu obtained a diploma in accountancy from the Morrison Hill
Technical Institute, Hong Kong (now known as the Hong Kong
Institute of Vocational Education), in August 1991 and a master’s
degree in business administration through long distance learning
awarded by the Manchester Business School in cooperation with
the School of Accounting, Banking and Economics at the University
of Wales, Bangor (now known as Bangor University) in the United
Kingdom in July 2000. He has been a fellow of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants since July 2001, a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants since April
2004, a registered accountant in Macau since July 2011 and, a
fellow of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales since March 2015.

Mr. Yu joined KPMG China in October 1991 and was a partner of
KPMG from July 2002 to June 2011. He served Golden Meditech
Holdings Limited, an integrated-healthcare enterprise in the PRC
and a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 801) as chief operating officer from August 2011 to
June 2016 and acted concurrently as an executive director from
September 2012 to June 2016.
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Mr. WANG Yinping (E 5| ¥), aged 58, is an Independent Non-
executive Director and also a member of the Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee. He was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in September 2018.

Mr. Wang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in law from Renmin
University of China (F Bl A R K 2) in Beijing, the PRC in July
1985 and a master’s degree in business administration from the
China Europe International Business School (F1 Bt EFE T E67 ) in
Shanghai, the PRC in November 2004.

Mr. Wang has extensive experience in corporate management. He
joined China National Chemical Import & Export Corporation (/
Bt T# & 042 F)) (now known as Sinochem Group Co., Ltd.
(P E P {LEBEHR QA (“Sinochem”), a conglomerate offering
exploration and production of oil and gas, energy, agriculture,
chemical, real estate and financial services, in March 1988 and held
various senior positions between March 1988 and March 2014 in
Sinochem and its subsidiaries (“Sinochem Group”), including the
deputy general manager of the Hainan branch of Sinochem, the
general manager of the Pudong branch of Sinochem, the deputy
general manager of China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust
Company Limited (FR B SMNEEE 5 55E B R 2 7)) a company
principally engaged in microfinance, industrial fmance, capital
market and wealth management, the general manager of the
human resource department of Sinochem Group, the vice president
of Sinochem Group, the general manager of Sinochem International
Trading Company Limited (now known as Sinochem International
Corporation (/b BB (15 5%) B 17 B PR 2 §])), a company listed on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600500) and principally
engaged in the chemical and rubber business, the chairman of the
China Foreign Economic and Trade Trust Company Limited and the
chairman of the Sinochem Lantian Co., Ltd. (F{LE&E X EE AR
A A]), a company principally engaged in research, production and
sale of fluorinem chemicals. Mr. Wang also served as chairman
of the board of Zhejiang Int’l Group Co., Ltd. (3 /T 2 4 & @ i%
5B R A &]), a company that produces and sells pharmaceutical
and Chmese med|cme health products in China and listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 000411) from December
2010 to March 2014. From January 2015 to December 2016, Mr.
Wang was an executive director of China Pioneer Pharma Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1345) and a comprehensive marketing, promotion
and channel management service provider dedicated to imported
pharmaceutical products and medical devices in the PRC, and was
re-designated and has been serving as a non-executive director
since December 2016. He was a director of Western Potash Corp.,
a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange (stock code: WPX)
principally engaged in building a potash solution mine in Canada,
from September 2015 to September 2016, and was re-appointed
and has been serving as a director since April 2017. Mr. Wang has
been an independent non-executive director of Yida China Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 3639) and an operator of business parks in the PRC
since December 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yunshan (E % 1li), aged 51, has been a vice president
of the Group since December 2004. He is primarily responsible
for the financing and cash management of the Group. In July
1990, he completed a program in financial accounting from Hebei
Materials Institute (;AIiE#)& 24%) (now known as Hebei Economy
Management School (A b 4% 7 & 12 22 4%)) in Shijiazhuang, the
PRC. In July 2003, he completed a master-level training program
in business administration at Hebei University of Economics and
Business (JAIdL 48 & K £) in Shijiazhuang, the PRC.

Mr. Jia has approximately 23 years of experience in financing and
cash management. Mr. Jia has been employed by the Group since
the establishment of Xingtai Risun Trading in May 1995. He has
held various management positions in the Group, including financial
manager and deputy general manager of Xingtai Risun Trading from
May 1995 to November 2004. He has been a director of Beijing
Automic since September 2012.

Mr. LI Qinghua (ZE %), aged 55, has been a vice president of
the Group since June 2015. He is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the Xingtai Production Base. He graduated
from the Anhui Economic Management Cadre Institute (% 48
EE B #I0ET) in Hefei, the PRC in July 1987 with a diploma in
industrial enterprise management and obtained a master's degree
in economics from the Party School of the Central Committee of
the Communist Party of China (& R E#?) in Beijing, the PRC
in July 2001. He obtained a senior economist qualification from the
Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province (Ji] 1t B 7%
ME G/ EPAE) in November 1999.

Mr. Li joined the Group in November 2004 as a deputy general
manager of Xingtai Risun Trading. He has approximately 24
years of corporate management experience. Prior to joining the
Group, he undertook several positions at Hebei Changzheng
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. Gt RIEAEREBR A
A]), an automobile manufacturer, from July 1983 to October 2004,
including director of the special cars factory from May 1993 to June
1998, deputy director and director of the general factory from June
1998 to September 2002 and deputy general manager of Hebei
Changzheng Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd. from September
2002 to October 2004.
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Mr. YUAN Xixian (3t % 3 ), aged 56, has been a vice president
of the Group since August 2017. He is primarily responsible for
management of the Group's strategic investments, production
and engineering. He graduated from the Hebei Institute of Mining
and Metallurgy (;AT 4L &) £ F%) (now known as the North China
University of Science and Technology (¥31t32 T KE)) in Tangshan,
the PRC in July 1983. He obtained a senior engineer qualification
from the Title Reform Leading Group Office of Hebei Province in
December 2004.

Mr. Yuan has approximately 35 years of experience in the steel and
coke industry. He joined the Group in May 2017. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Yuan joined Xingtai Iron & Steel Corp., Ltd. (ff & $f i
AR EEAT]), a high-end, specialized, wire manufacturer in July
1983 and was a deputy general manager, general manager and
chairman from June 1998 to October 2016.

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph ({Aj#i %), aged 38, is the company
secretary of the Company. He is responsible for the management
of corporate governance and company secretarial matters,
participation in the making of material business decisions and
development of the business strategy. He obtained a bachelor's
degree in business administration from the University of Hong
Kong in Hong Kong in December 2002. He has been a fellow
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since May 2018.

Mr. Ho has approximately 15 years of auditing, financial and
company secretarial experience. He joined the Group in September
2017. Prior to joining the Group, he was an audit manager at
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from September 2002 to November
2009. He also served as the financial controller and company
secretary of Renheng Enterprise Holdings Limited, a company
principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of tobacco
machinery products in the PRC and listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 3628), from June 2010 to August
2017.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph ({A7fi %) has been the Company’s
company secretary since September 2017. He has over seven
years of extensive experience in providing company secretarial
services to a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. For Mr. Ho's biography, please refer to the section
headed "“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management — Senior
Management — Mr. HO Pui Lam Joseph ({a]Jf1%&)" in this annual
report.

Except as disclosed above there, is no other information that needs

to be brought to the attention to the Shareholders under Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Report of the Board of Directors

LR

The Board hereby presents their report together with the Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2018 to the
Shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW
OPERATING ENVIRONMENT AND PROSPECTS

Please refer to “Management Discussion and Analysis — Overview"
and “Management Discussion and Analysis — Business Review"” in
this annual report for details.

LAWS, REGULATORY AND COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Most of the business of the Company (including the production
and sale of coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals and
the trading of coal, coke and refined chemical products) shall be
in compliance with relevant laws and regulations and industry
standards in the PRC and is subject to extensive regulation by
the PRC government. The Company's aforementioned business
and relevant activities are governed by the regulations in relation
to production, sale, operation, transportation, export, energy
efficiency and environmental protection. In addition, all operations
of the Company in the PRC shall be in compliance with the laws and
regulations on foreign investment, taxation and safety.

Industry Policies

On December 16, 2004, the NDRC issued the Entry Conditions of
Coking Industry (FEALTTZ & AEH)) (the “Entry Conditions”),
which was amended by the MIIT on December 19, 2008 and
March 3, 2014. The Entry Conditions sets out the conditions
to be fulfilled by coking enterprises before production, which
include operational layout, technology and equipment, product
quality, resources and energy consumption, environmental
protection, production safety, occupational health and technical
advancement. For example, coking enterprises shall comply with
the statutory standard of distance for health protection, possess
major equipment that meets the statutory technical standards,
and meet the minimum requirement for production capacity with
resources or energy consumption below the statutory standards.
In addition, the pollutants emitted by coking enterprises shall
meet the national and local standards for pollutant emissions and
the requirements for total emissions of major pollutants. New
construction, renovation and expansion of coking enterprises
should meet all entry conditions of the Entry Conditions before the
commencement of production and operation in coking industry.
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On November 23, 2007, the NDRC issued the Coal Industrial
Policy ((HE R EE ¥ ELZR)) (the “Coal Policy”) which took effect on
the same day. The Coal Policy regulates the planning of targeted
development, industry layout, industry entry requirements, industry
structure, industry technology, production safety, transportation,
trade, energy efficiency and environmental protection.

According to the Coal Law of the People’'s Republic of China
(Amended) ((F 2 A R £ HH k&) (& 1E)) considered and
passed at the 24th Meeting of the Standing Committee of the
12th National People’s Congress on November 7, 2016, the PRC
government advocates and supports coal enterprises and other
enterprises to develop co-generation of coal and electricity, coking,
coal chemical, coal construction materials and so forth and to
engage in the deep processing and fine finishing of coal.

On March 22, 2017, the NDRC and the MIIT promulgated
the Layout Plan for Innovative Development of Modern Coal
Chemical Industry ((RREICTEXAFTEEBBHTER))
(Fa Gai Chan Ye [2017] No. 553), which identified eight major
tasks, such as accelerating the integrated development of
related industries, exploring the potential of and transforming
advantageous enterprises and increasing the efforts in improving
the completeness of technical equipment, as well as the following
six protective measures:

° tightening the requirements for project construction,
standardizing the approval and management procedures and
facilitating the reasonable allocation of resources;

° accelerating the amendment and improvement of standards
on safety protection, pollutant emission and water resource
preservation;

° further enhancing the entry requirements for modern
coal chemical projects in terms of safety, environmental
protection and water resource preservation;

° guiding enterprises to optimize production techniques,
strengthen the selection of equipment models and material,
improve design standards and construction quality and
strengthen operational management;

° standardizing governance measures and practically
implementing the system of simultaneous design,
construction and operation of safety and environmental
protection facilities and the pollutant emission permit system;
and

° requiring enterprises to establish a system of self-monitoring,
information disclosure, record keeping and regular reporting.
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Environmental Protection

According to the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({
EARKEFERKREZL)) (the “Environmental Protection
Law") amended on April 24, 2014 and effective from January 1,
2015, in order to prevent environmental pollution and to protect
the ecological environment, the competent department of
environmental protection of the State Council develops nationwide
standards for environmental quality and emissions, and is
responsible for supervising the implementation of environmental
protection systems in the PRC. The environmental protection
authorities at various levels of the PRC Government (at and above
the county level) are responsible for environmental protection work
within their own jurisdictions.

Local environmental protection authorities have the power to
formulate local standards that are more rigorous than national
standards, and enterprises must comply with the more rigorous
standard as between the national and local environmental
protection standards. The Environmental Protection Law provides
that any factory entities that may cause pollution or generate
other hazardous substances in their operations must adopt
environmental protection measures in their operations by creating
an environmental protection responsibility mechanism and
adopting effective measures to control and properly dispose of
exhaust gas, wastewater, waste residue, dust, noise and other
wastes.

According to the Law of Environmental Impact Assessment of the
PRC ((FE AR X MBIREF L FTE L)) amended on July 2,
2016 and effective from September 1, 2016, the PRC government
implements classified management for environmental impact
assessment of construction projects based on the level of impact
on environment from the construction projects. Environmental
impact assessment documents of construction projects shall be
inspected and approved by the approving authorities in accordance
with relevant laws before commencement of construction.
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The Law of Prevention of Air Pollution of the PRC ({F ZE A R 2L H0
Bl K552 F565%)), amended on August 29, 2015 and came into
effect on January 1, 2016, sets out the supervision, management
and prevention measures for air pollution. Emissions of pollutants
into the air shall meet the emission standards of air pollutant and
the control requirement of total emissions of major air pollutants.
Entities that are subject to pollutant emission regulations shall
also obtain the pollutant emission permit. Enterprises in steel,
construction material, non-ferrous metal, petroleum, chemical,
pharmaceutical and mining industries should also strengthen
the refined management of air pollutants, adopt the measures
of centralized collection and treatment, and strictly control the
emission of dust and air pollutants to the environment. According to
the Law of Prevention of Solid Waste Pollution to the Environment
of the PRC ({H#E A R A AN EH E B2 RE )5 R ERIZF /A% )) amended
with immediate effect on November 7, 2016, enterprises are
required to utilize the industrial solid waste generated by them,
depending on the economic and technical conditions, and for any
industrial solid waste that will not be recycled immediately or that
cannot be recycled, the enterprises shall, in accordance with the
regulations of the administrative department for environmental
protection under the State Council, build facilities and premises for
storage, classify the waste in different types for safe storage or
adopt measures to make innocuous treatment.

According to the Law of Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
of the PRC ((FRZE AR HAME KI5 F7767%)) amended on June
27, 2017 and effective from January 1, 2018, discharge of water
pollutants should be within national or local standards for the
discharge of water pollutants and indicators for the total discharge
control of major water pollutants. It is prohibited to discharge
wastewater to a body of water where a pollutant discharge permit
is required without such permit or in breach of a requirement of the
permit.
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According to the Law of Environmental Protection Tax of the PRC
((PE AR KEFBEIRBIRER L)) (the “Law of Environmental
Protection Tax") issued on December 25, 2016 and effective
from January 1, 2018, enterprises generating air pollutants,
water pollutants, solid waste and noise shall be required to file
and pay the environmental protection tax to tax authorities on
a quarterly basis based on the List of Items and Amounts of
Environmental Protection Tax and the List of Taxable Pollutant
and relevant Equivalent under the Environmental Protection
Law. The environmental protection tax will be collected and
managed by tax authorities in accordance with the Law of
Taxation Administration of the PRC and the Law of Environmental
Protection Tax. With effect from the implementation of the Law
of Environmental Protection Tax, the PRC government started to
collect environmental protection tax in accordance with relevant
requirements and ceased the collection of pollutant discharge fees.

According to Administrative Measures for Pollutant Discharge
Licensing (for Trial Implementation) ({#E)5 & 7] & 32 9% (&
77))) issued on January 10, 2018, the responsibilities of the
environmental protection authorities and pollutant discharge
entities have been detailed and refined, and specific systems in
relation to entities has been stipulated to include their commitment,
independent monitoring, ledger records, execution report and
information disclosure.

According to Circular of the State Council on Issuing the Three-year
Action Plan for Winning the Battle for a Blue Sky (5075 B8 7 )
B RERNREH =F/TBETEIRMED) issued with immediate
effect on June 27, 2018, in order to speed up the improvement
in ambient air quality, the State Council identified the key regions,
including the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei region and surrounding areas,
and focused on the key regions to continue to carry out air pollution
prevention and control actions. In autumn and winter, key regions
shall formulate peak production plans and implement differentiated
management for high-emission industries such as steel, building
materials, coking, foundry, non-ferrous metals and chemicals.
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The main pollutants generated during our production process
include smoke, fumes, solid waste, wastewater and dust. We
have adopted a number of measures and practices to reduce
the environmental impact of our operations. We use appropriate
materials to build ground surfaces in our production bases
and plants to prevent soil pollution. We dispose of the smoke,
fumes, solid waste and wastewater produced in our operations
in accordance with PRC laws and regulations. We have installed
filtration and absorption equipment, coke oven gas desulphurization
units and low pressure dust collectors in our production processes.
We have a wastewater and sewage treatment system at each of
our production bases for the treatment of fluids consumed and
produced during production. We use the treated wastewater for
coke quenching and other production processes. We also treat
residual gas from our methanol production, which reduces the
negative impact on the environment. Each manufacturing entity
we manage and operate, including CNC Risun Coking, has been
accredited the ISO 14001:2004/ISO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management System. In addition, the construction of any new
production facility or any improvement or expansion of any existing
production project must comply with environmental impact
evaluation regulations. We conduct an environmental impact
evaluation for each production project and submit an evaluation
report for approval by the relevant environmental authority as
required by relevant PRC laws and regulations. We have obtained
approvals required for the respective stages of construction from
local government authorities for our projects under construction. In
addition, our production personnel are required to attend mandatory
environment protection trainings, which includes contingency plans
in various situations of leakages and pollution and regular drills to
reduce pollution in the event of an industrial accident.

Production

According to the Work Safety Law of the People’s Republic of
China ({(FZE AR EMBE L 2 £ E X)) (the "Work Safety Law”)
promulgated on June 29, 2002 and amended on August 27, 2009
and August 31, 2014, production and operating entities shall
meet the work safety conditions required by the Work Safety
Law and other relevant laws, administrative regulations, national
standards and industrial standards. Entities that do not meet such
work safety conditions shall not engage in production or operating
activities. Entities engaged in production, operation and storage
of hazardous items shall establish a department to carry out work
safety management or designate personnel solely responsible for
work safety management. Production and operating entities shall
provide their employees with education and training on work safety
to ensure that the employees have the necessary knowledge
regarding work safety.

50 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018

BMEERRTELENTIESAYBEREE
% ER - EEREY - BEKRME - HIIR
M—RFERMNEOEL - AR BPIESSH
RENTE - RAERBEE MR ERA
M ERRM TP EEmE - AT
BISR - BAIRBEPBEAREZRBIEEL
PEANES  ER - BEREYNEK R
MELEBETLZRBRBNRUEZE &
IER R B KB ERS - HIPEEE
FEERIGABEKISKEIERS  ARE
BEAERETERMELNRE - RIFER
REEMENETREREMBEERE
BATREFELERRETNEGRRALE
ML HRENEHETE - RAIEEMNE
EMEBELEER BETRBHEEL &
23838 1SO 14001:2004/I1SO 14001:20153&
BEEE AR - Ubs A EERIEN
BERAEMABLEEREOBERBERZLD
ANEREFZETERT RMEEEL
ERBETREZENE  UREMEED
BORBEMMBRERFERSE - AFA
FARFE B A - HPIE K ESEHBA
BB P 3 PIIE A 2 SR A9 TR B RO & (5 R B
EREVHLAE - AN - BPIAEEABBBES
RHERBRERI AP EESERR
MBRIFERATOESFEARERES -
IBHERE TR FRERISRMEE -

o

HE

RIEFY 20026 829 B 2845 « 200948 A
27 B K2014%F8 A31 BEFTH(PFE AR
HIMEZ2EEFR (Z2EEZE])  £E
KEBENEE ABLT2EERINABRERE -
TBUER MBI RIEEREITERER TN
TEEERNE  TAEGEEELZ2EEGRN
MER THURBEELEEH -BRYS
MEE £8 FREEUEERELREE
ERRENEERL2EETEAR -
AEREEMNEEHREABETZEE
EHEMEI  RIIEABEHELED
LZREEMG -



—t

Report of the Board of Directors

EZER

i3

ofF

According to the Regulation on Work Safety Permits ({(Z & 4
27 A] B 16 01) ) promulgated by the State Council on January
13, 2004 and amended on July 18, 2013 and July 29, 2014, the
PRC government implements a work safety permit system for
enterprises that engage in the production of hazardous chemicals.
An enterprise shall not engage in such production activities without
work safety permits.

According to the Regulation on Safety Management of Hazardous
Chemicals ({fERt 2 REL 2 E IR EM])) issued by the State
Council on January 26, 2002 and amended on February 16,
2011 and December 7, 2013, the PRC government implements
catalogue management for chemicals listed in the catalogue of
hazardous chemicals. Entities engaged in production, storage,
usage, operation and transportation of hazardous chemicals are
required to meet the safety conditions set out by relevant laws,
administrative regulations, national standards and industrial
standards and obtain relevant permits. For example, enterprises
shall obtain a business license for hazardous chemicals before
engaging in operations related to hazardous chemicals. New
construction, renovations and expansions of construction projects
for production and storage of hazardous chemicals shall be
subject to inspection of the safety conditions by production safety
supervision and management authorities.

According to the Administrative Rules on Registration of Hazardous
Chemicals ({fEft 2R Z L B I %)) issued by the State
Administration of Work Safety (now known as the Ministry of
Emergency Management) on October 8, 2002 and amended on
July 1, 2012, the PRC government implements a registration
system for hazardous chemicals. Enterprises engaged in
production or import of hazardous chemicals listed in the Catalogue
of Hazardous Chemicals (/& k1t 2 @ B %)) shall conduct
general inspection of their hazardous chemicals, establish records
for management of hazardous chemicals, apply for registration
of hazardous chemicals with the relevant registration authorities
as set out in the requirements, fill in the registration information
based on facts and submit the required documents, and receive
an inspection from production safety supervision and management
authorities as set out in the relevant laws.

R IE B 75 B 7 2004 % 1 A 13 H 28/ I A
201357 A 18 H X% 20145 7 A 29 B{&:TH)
(CRREEFAEEDN)  PEBRFE TR
CEREECEERTR2EENIEHE -
KB LZEEEHFIENLE  THHRE
EEERE -

18 5 B 7 B 72 2002 8 1 A 26 B 28 /6 37 7
201142 A 16 H X% 2013512 A7 B{&5TH)
(Bt BRL2EREN)  PEBFY
ERICEFESEMIINTEEREREHE
BoftEmRBREE #7F FH &
EREmmENAREEEAR TECERBETE
MBRZE  TEZEMBENLTEMS - I
ESIRRARF AT - B E  SEEERE
ERILEREEHNR  FAEEREE
AR ES TR L EEBRTENEMAas
Hiz MEREZLE HEERLER
MERBHETLERIKEES -

BEERRL2EEEEEEAR (RBA
JE =& IR E0) 7 2002410 A 8 B M 45 I 7
20127 A1 AERTRIKERILERERE
BYOE) FREIBTEEREERERERL
HIE - EESRED(ERCER B 8)FT7
ERIEGFNCERZHERICEREE
B EVERICEREERDE IRREN
HAAEECHEE TR ERERL W
EHBELENMIRRATE XM  LERE
BHHEXLZEEEEEEEBINBKRE -

hEBSEBMARAT 2018 F# | 51



According to the Regulation on Administration of Production Permit
for Industrial Products ({ T % 2 5 A 2 2F i) 2 & B (& 51)) issued
by the State Council on July 9, 2005 and came into effect on
September 1, 2005, the PRC government implements a production
permit system for important industrial products and other industrial
products listed in the Catalogue of Industrial Products under
Production Permit System (the “Industrial Product Catalogue”).
Enterprises engaged in production of hazardous chemicals listed in
the Industrial Product Catalogue shall obtain the production permit
for industrial products in accordance with the requirements of such
regulation. To obtain a production permit, an enterprise should
possess appropriate staffing, production conditions, inspection
methods, production techniques, technical documents, effective
quality management systems and accountability systems, its
products should meet the relevant national standards, industrial
standards and other statutory requirements, and the enterprise
should comply with national industry policies by not using outdated
techniques, having a high consumption of energy, polluting the
environment and wasting resources which shall be eliminated and
are prohibited from investment by the PRC government.

According to the Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals ({2 #| 51{t. 2 @ E B F])) issued by the State Council
on August 26, 2005, came into effect on November 1, 2005 and
amended on July 29, 2014, February 6, 2016, and September
18, 2018 the PRC government implements the classified
administration and licensing or filing system for production,
distribution, purchase, transportation and import and export of
precursor chemicals. The precursor chemicals are classified into
three categories based the Catalog of Classification and Types of
Precursor Chemicals. Category | includes the major materials that
can be used for producing drugs. Categories Il and Il include the
chemical agents that can be used for producing drugs.
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We have adopted and implemented a number of measures in
relation to occupational health and safety. We have implemented
systems and procedures for the identification and prevention of
accidents and hazardous conditions and procedures relating to
emergencies, accidents and other hazardous conditions. We use
our MES and control center to control and monitor our production
bases and plants, including the pressure and temperature of coke
oven gas, the operations of the boilers and the temperature and
volume of flammable and volatile materials during production and
storage. We also provide safety related training to our employees
to increase their awareness of occupational health and work safety
matters. We conduct periodic safety checks to help ensure proper
operation of our machines and to ensure our employees comply
with our safety manual. We reflect any abnormalities noted during
the periodic safety checks in our safety records and the responsible
departments and/or officers take follow-up remedial action
accordingly. Government authorities occasionally conduct safety
inspection checks to ensure our operations comply with workplace
safety laws and regulations and notify us if our operations do not
comply with workplace safety laws and regulations.

On October 12, 2018, an accident occurred in our Dingzhou
Production Base. As of the date of this report, to the best of
our Directors’ knowledge, the investigation by the relevant local
authorities was still ongoing. The Directors understand that, if we
are held responsible for the accident, pursuant to the Work Safety
Law, administrative penalties of more than RMB200,000 but less
than RMB500,000 may be imposed upon us. Such amounts would
not be material to the Company’s business and operations. The
amount of administrative penalties, if any, would be subject to
the discretion of PRC government authorities. WWe may also be
obligated to pay civil compensation for tort liability. As the local
government authorities have not determined liabilities for the
accident, it is unclear whether the Company would be responsible
for the accident. The Controlling Shareholders have agreed to
indemnify the Company for all liabilities arising in conjunction with
the accident.
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Overall compliance

As of the date of this report, save as disclosed above, there are
no material pending or threatened litigation matters or other
proceedings, and the Group is not involved in any litigation or other
proceedings that we believe would materially and adversely affect
our business, financial condition or results of operations.

Directors have confirmed that during the Reporting Period, the
Group had complied with the applicable laws and regulations in
all material respects, and did not have any incidents of material
non-compliance, and had obtained all relevant permits, approval
documents, qualifications, authorizations and approvals upon
examination material to our business operations.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are provided in Note 47 to
the Financial Statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

We recruit new employees based on specific job requirements, our
resources and needs from time to time. We provide technical as
well as operational training for our employees, and we have tailored
specific courses for our management personnel in order to build a
competent team.

As of December 31, 2018, we had 3,574 full-time employees. Most
of our senior management members and employees are based in
Beijing and Hebei province.

We enter into a standard employment contract with each of our full-
time employees. Compensation for our employees includes basic
wages, variable wages, bonuses and other benefits. For the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and 2018 our staff costs totalled
RMB261.2 million, RMB314.8 million, and RMB424.0 million,
respectively.

The Company’s remuneration policy is set out by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of the employees’ merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the Directors are set by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to among others, salaries
paid by comparable companies as well as time commitment and
responsibilities and employment conditions of the Group.
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None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
and there were no emoluments paid by the Group to any of the
directors as an inducement to join, or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of office.

The Group has adopted the Share Option Scheme to motivate and
reward its Directors and eligible employees. For further details,
please refer to the Prospectus and the section headed “Report of
the Board of Directors — Share Option Scheme” of this report.

During the Reporting Period, we had not experienced any
interruptions to our operations caused by major labor disputes and
there were no complaints or claims from our employees which had
a material adverse effect on our business. Our Directors believe
that we have a good relationship with our employees. During the
Reporting Period, the Group had no major labor disputes which
might produce significant impact of the normal business and
operation of the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

We sell our coke primarily to customers in the iron and steel
industry in the PRC, and export a portion to overseas customers.
We sell our refined chemicals primarily to manufacturers and
traders in the chemical industry in the PRC, and export a small
portion to customers overseas. Our end customers may purchase
directly from us or purchase through their affiliated trading arms.
Our customers for trading business are primarily companies in the
iron and steel, non-ferrous, coking and chemical industries. During
the Reporting Period, we did not adopt any distributorship business
models in selling our products.

We maintain long-term cooperative relationships with our major
customers. Some of them have maintained business relationships
with us for more than five years, of which the customer with
the longest relationship has maintained a business relationship
with us for 14 years. Furthermore, we have entered into long-
term framework agreements with certain of our customers. Our
products supplied under such long-term framework agreements
mainly include coke, benzene, caprolactam and methanol. As of
December 31, 2018, 20 of such customers had entered into long-
term framework agreements with us, all of which have a term
starting from 2018. Please refer to the Prospectus for the key
terms of such long-term framework agreements.
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During the Reporting Period, the revenue attributable to our
top five largest customers was approximately RMB3,900.4
million, accounting for 18.9% of the total revenue of the Group.
The revenue attributable to our single largest customer was
approximately RMB1,188.6 million, accounting for approximately
5.8% of our total revenue. Except for Cabot Risun Chemicals
disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial Statements, our top five
customers during the Reporting Period were independent
third parties, and none of our Directors, their associates or any
Shareholder (who, to the knowledge of our Directors, owned more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital as of the date of this
report) had any interest in any of our top five largest customers
during the Reporting Period.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The principal raw material used for our coke and coking chemical
production is coking coal. We mainly source our coking coal from
external suppliers. The major types of coking coal we purchased
included hard coking coal, fat coal, gas coal, 1/3 coking coal and
lean coal. We purchased a large proportion of our coking coal from
suppliers in Shanxi province and Hebei province. If overseas coking
coal is more competitively priced than domestic coking coal, we will
source coking coal from countries such as Mongolia and Australia.

For the production of our refined chemicals, the principal raw
materials are coking chemicals, which include crude benzene, coal
tar and coke oven gas. Coking chemicals are by-products in the
coking process. We mainly source such raw materials externally
from our suppliers, but also source a portion of such raw materials
by utilizing by-products from the coke production facilities at our
Dingzhou Production Base and from CNC Risun Coking at our
Xingtai Production Base.

We generally enter into annual procurement arrangements with
key suppliers. These supply arrangements specify the indicative
quantities of raw materials that we plan to purchase in the relevant
period and are subject to separate purchase orders to confirm
delivery. Our suppliers typically granted us credit terms of 30
to 90 days. Pursuant to these arrangements, our procurement
department purchases the required raw materials from suppliers
in accordance with production plans prepared by our production
department. Generally, purchase prices are based on prevailing
market prices at the time of delivery of the raw materials. We make
and implement our raw material procurement plans in line with our
production plans which are primarily based on periodical review of
customers’ orders in order to reduce our exposure to market price
fluctuations of raw materials. The internal market analysis reports
generated by our market department also provide us with a basis
for determining procurement prices.
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We have a broad base of suppliers and do not depend on any single
supplier. For instance, we procured coking coals from over 100
suppliers in the PRC and overseas during the Reporting Period. A
broad base of suppliers help enables us to procure a wide range
of quality raw materials at competitive prices. Though we did not
enter into any long-term agreements with our suppliers of raw
materials, we maintained long-term cooperative relationships
with our key suppliers. Some of them have maintained business
relationships with us for more than five years.

Our subsidiaries engaged in the production business have
passed the ISO 9001:2008/ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management
System standard which imposes detailed supplier selection and
assessment procurement. The selection and assessment of our
suppliers include:

° the quality and specifications of the raw materials they offer;
° the size and locality of their operations; and

° their past transaction records and terms of trade with us.

During the Reporting Period, our purchases from our top five
suppliers were approximately RMB2,486.3 million, accounting
for approximately 14.5% of our cost of sales. Our purchases
from our single largest supplier were approximately RMB738.5
million, accounting for approximately 4.3% of our cost of sales.
Except for CNC Risun Coking disclosed in Note 39 to the Financial
Statements, our top five largest suppliers are independent third
parties, and none of Directors, their associates or any Shareholder
(to the knowledge of Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s share capital as of the date of this report) had any
interest in any of our top five largest raw material and equipment
suppliers during the Reporting Period.

During the Reporting Period, we did not experience any material
shortages or delays in the supply of our raw materials, and we do
not foresee any material shortages or delays in our procurement of
raw materials in the future. We closely monitor the inventory levels
of our raw materials, and we adjust our procurement volumes
accordingly in anticipation of periods in which we may encounter
raw material supply shortages or product demand increases.
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

The audited results of the Company and its subsidiaries for
the year ended December 31, 2018 are stated on page 135
of the Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income. The financial positions of the Company
and its subsidiaries as at December 31, 2018 are stated on pages
136 to 137 of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position. The
consolidated cash flows of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
year ended December 31, 2018 are stated on page 139 to 141 of
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow.

The discussion and analysis on the Group's business performance
and financial position for the current year are stated under
“Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 16 to 35 of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2018, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$96,271,852.40 divided into 962,718,524
shares of HK$ 0.1 each. As of March 15, 2019, upon the Listing,
the total issued share capital of the Company increased to
HK$400,000,000.00 divided into 4,000,000,000 shares of HK$
0.1 each. As of April 11, 2019, upon the full exercise of the Over-
allotment Option, the total issued share capital of the Company
further increased to HK$409,000,000.00 divided into 4,090,000,000
shares of HK$0.1 each.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the Reporting Period, the Company itself did not redeem
any of its securities and the Company or any of its subsidiaries did
not sell or purchase any of the Company's securities.

Since the end of the Reporting Period, the Company has allotted
and issued 2,437,281,476 new Shares to the then existing
shareholders pursuant to the capitalization issue for the Global
Offering on the Listing Date, has allotted and issued 600,000,000
new Shares pursuant to the Global Offering on the Listing Date, and
has allotted and issued 90,000,000 new Shares on April 11, 2019
pursuant to the exercise of the Over-allotment Option.

DEBENTURE ISSUED

The Group has not issued any debentures during the year ended
December 31, 2018.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT TO ACQUIRE

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or applicable laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company is incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief or exemption available
to the shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

RESERVE

The details in relation to the changes in the reserve of the Company
for the current year are stated under Note 46 of the Financial
Statements. The details in relation to the reserve available for
distributing to the shareholders are stated under Note 46 of the
Financial Statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group's property, plant and equipment consist mainly of
machinery and equipment. We purchased our machinery and
equipment mainly with cash from operations and debt financing
from banks and other financial institutions. Machinery and
equipment are primarily the various types of machineries and
equipment at our production site at our four production bases
in Hebei province in China, including Xingtai Production Base,
Dingzhou Production Base, Tangshan Production Base and
Cangzhou Production Base.

As of December 31, 2018, our property, plant and equipment
amounted to approximately RMB9,406.2 million, with a year-to-
year growth of 4.8%. This was mainly because of the addition of
RMB1,121.1 million in property, plant and equipment partially offset
by the depreciation of RMB577.8 million.
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DIVIDENDS AND DIVIDEND POLICY

We declared dividends of RMB891,148,000 to Texson on April 9,
2018 and the dividends were fully settled as of the date of this
report. Save as disclosed above, no dividends were paid, declared
or proposed during the years ended December 31, 2016, 2017 and
2018.

The Board recommends the distribution of a final dividend of total
amount of RMB626.6 million (dividend amount of each ordinary
share is RMBO0.1532, after the over-allotment option fully exercised)
for the year ended December 31, 2018 to all shareholders, details
of which are set out in Note 36 to the Financial Statements. Subject
to the approval of the 2018 profit distribution plan at the Annual
General Meeting, the final dividend will be distributed on or before
August 30, 2019 to the Shareholders whose names appear on
the register of Shares of the Company on July 10, 2019. Further
announcements will be made by the Company in due course
regarding the details of the date of dividend distribution and other
specific arrangement.

The recommendation of payment and the amount of any future
dividends will be at the absolute discretion of the Board and the
amount of any dividends actually distributed to our Shareholders
will depend on our results of operations, cash flows, financial
condition, payments by our subsidiaries of cash dividends to us,
our future prospects and other factors that our Directors consider
important. We expect to distribute no less than 30% of our annual
distributable earnings in every subsequent year as dividends.

BANK BORROWINGS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The details in relation to the bank borrowings and other borrowings
of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 are
stated under Note 31 of the Financial Statements.
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of the Board of Directors

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board of Directors currently consists of nine Directors, among
whom, six are Executive Directors and three are Independent Non-
executive Directors. The Directors have been appointed with a term

of three years, after which they may be re-elected.

The information regarding the Company'’s Directors are set out as

EENREREERE

EFXZeRRANBRESAN  EP R EAR
HWITESER=-"ZRBUFNTEFT - EF
REEEENEHA=F-

BRARRESHNERIIIWT :

follows:
Relationship with Other
Date of Joining The  Directors and Senior
Name Age Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date Group Management
HEHESR
23 fR Bf AEREE ZERH MAREEHEE ERERENEE
Mr. Yang Xuegang 54 Executive Director, chairman ~ Overall management and November 8, 2007 May 12, 19% Father of Mr. Yang Lu
[E8) of the Board and chief Business development of (35%)
executive officer the Group
CELyk B4 HES ETLIRRAON TEENBRERREHER 2007%11A8H 199555128 RREENRR
Mr. Zhang Yingwei 4 Executive Directorand vice  Overall management of July 24,2009 February 5, 1996 N/A
[REE) president of the Group the Tangshan Production
Base and the Cangzhou
Production Base
RERLE 4 ANESRASEE LY EL4EEERAMEEEE 2000%7A24B 19952458 Nk
HEREE
Mr. Han Qinliang 45 Executive Directorand vice ~ Management of the financial, May 18, 2011 March 1, 2004 N/A
(EY5R) president of the Group accounting and information
systems of the Group
B9tk 45 ATESRARERAH  TRENNE SHRERZ WNEFSA18A 004F3A1H Nk
hER
Mr. Wang Fengshan 60 Executive Directorand vice ~ Management of procurement - September 29, 2018 March 1, 2004 N/A
(EEL) president of the Group and sales of the Group
TRILEE 60 ANESRASEEGY  TEERBRESEE 01859798 004F3A1H R
Mr. Wang Nianping 56 Executive Directorand vice  Legal and risk management ~ September 29,2018 February 22, 2011 N/A
[F£F) president of the Group of the Group
TEVRE 5 AnESRASEE G FEEZEREREE 201859798 0152808 TR
Mr. Yang Lu 28 Executive Director Management of the import, ~ September 29, 2018~ November 1, 2013 Son of Mr. Yang
[B%) export and domestic Xuegangl BE &)
trading business of our
Group
BREE i #nES EEASEMELOR 2018598298 W13E1MATH RERLENTT
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Relationship with Other
Date of Joining The  Directors and Senior
Name Age Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date Group Management
HEHESR
1% fR BO ABRRE ZERH MAZEEHAHS EREEENEE
Mr. Kang Woon 56 Independent Non-executive ~ Oversight of the compliance ~ September 29,2018 November 11,2011(1) ~ N/A
[EE) Director and corporate governance
matters of the Group and
provision of independent
advice to the Board
FEfE 56 BUFNTES EERSENARREERR 018F9A0R WNENANEN  TER
38 URESOREET
)
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 49 Independent Non-executive  Same as above September 29,2018 September 29,2018 N/A
(REE) Director
REELE 49 BUFNTES s 2018595298 018597298 HNER
Mr. Wang Yinping 58 Independent Non-executive  Same as above September 29,2018 September 29,2018 N/A
(F3%) Director
ER 58 BUFNTES s 2018595298 01859A 29 AER
Table Note: FAGHIFE -
1) Mr. Kang Woon () was appointed as an Independent Non-executive (1) FBAEB201MF 11 AZE2015F9AREES

Director from November 2011 to September 2015. He was re-appointed as an

Independent Non-executive Director in September 2018.

62 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018

BIUFMITEE -

BYIEMITES WR2018F 9 BINEZ T A



of the Board of Directors

n
b
Ht
| =5
Hht
>3d
i

The information regarding the Company’s senior management are

set out as follows:

BRAARASREEBNEREINNT

Relationship with
Date of Joining Other Directors and
Name Age Position Roles and Responsibilities ~ Appointment Date The Group Senior Management
HEMHESR
i fk B ABRBE ZERH MARSBHEE ERERENEE
Mr. Jia Yunshan 51 Vice president of the Group ~ Financing and cash December 6, 2004 May 12,199 N/A
(EEL) management of the Group
BELLE 51 KEERIEH REENRERFRER  20M4F1286H 199555128 0 ki
Mr. Li Qinghua ) Vice president of the Group ~ Overall management of the ~ June 8, 2015 November 1, 2004 N/A
(ZRE) Xingtai Production Base
FRERE 55 KEEEEH RorZERNERER  201556A8H 004511818 ek
Mr. Yuan Xixian 56 Vice president of the Group ~ Management of the Group's ~ August 1, 2017 May 8, 2017 N/A
(BA%) strategic investments,
production and engineering
RARLE 56 BRI ERREENRRRE £E 201748810 01755A8H R
kI
Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph 38 Company secretary Management of comporate ~ September 29,2018~ September 20,2017 N/A
[H5) governance and company
secretarial matters,
participation in the making
of material business
decisions and development
of the business strategy
GlES#: 38 AEHE EEATRENATNES 2018597290 017594208 R

The Company has received the confirmation of the independence
issued by the Independent Non-executive Directors in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and is of the opinion that all

B 2EERZHARRA
ERBRE

Independent Non-executive Directors are independent of the

Company.

ARREEREBIINTEERELTR
AIESBREHNBIERRE  ARR
BB IFNTESTHBEILNARE -

Changes to the information of Directors

According to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, and as of the date
of this report, there is no change made to the information disclosed
by Directors pursuant to the provisions of paragraphs (a) to (e) and
(9) of Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.

FEEHNE

B FHRBIE 13 51BN E - REIEARE
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SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors of the Company has entered into a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries that may
not be terminated by the employer within one year without the
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The details of the remuneration of the Company’s Directors and five
highest paid individuals are stated under Note 12 in the Financial
Statements. The range of remuneration of the senior management
are as follows:

EERBELN

BEARNREEE BARBLEEFMNE
NRAFIM AR HEEIR —FAKRIEMEA
S AEEE CRERERIN BRI AL -

EERSREEBHHMN

ARARBEERAAZS T ALTHFHOES
HNMEREMT 12 9 REEEN E B
EEMT

Number of
Range of Remuneration (HK$'000) Senior Management
FINEE (T8 EREEREAH
0-500 -
500-1,000 _
1,000-1,500 4

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (AND THEIR
CONNECTED ENTITIES) IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

None of the Directors (and their connected entities) is or was
materially interested, directly or indirectly, in any transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance entered into by the
Company or the Controlling Shareholders or any of their respective
subsidiaries at any time during the Reporting Period or subsisted at
the end of the Reporting Period.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any competing interests in such business that is in
direct or indirect competition with any of the Group's business.
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THE INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

During the Reporting Period, as the Shares of the Company were
not listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the disclosure
requirements under relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
including Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV and section 352 of the SFO
and the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers in Appendix 10 to the Hong Kong Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"), were not yet applicable to the Company and its
Directors and chief executives.

Save as disclosed below, as at the date of this report, none of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified
to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code as set out in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company
and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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BAT (BREFIRMEGRIIEXVEET R
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Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of
the Company

Name of Director Capacity/Nature of Interest Number of Shares (%)
LR NN

2EBRITRA

BEW

BHAES T

EEHA B REntE BRAEA (%)
Mr. Yang™ Interest in controlled corporation 3,116,074,928(L) 76.2%
g R EE S 3,116,074,928(L) 76.2%

(L) denotes long positions

Notes:

(1) Texson is wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. Accordingly, Mr. Yang is deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by Texson. In addition, Texson holds
27,469.38308 class A non-redeemable participating shares in First Milestone
and as such, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by First Milestone.

L R

B 5

(1) RRRAGTERERSB -Ht - BEEWER
REZRFEORD REE R o 1IN FTRAR
#5/ First Milestone 27,469.38308 i A8 1~ A] &
Bl 2 E2[ ) - A i # 1% B First Milestone 3%
A fn oA A o
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INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN
SHARES

During the Reporting Period, as the Shares of the Company were
not listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, the disclosure
requirements under relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong,
including Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV and section 336 of the SFO,
were not yet applicable to the Company and its Directors and chief
executives.

So far as is known to the Directors of the Company, as of the date
of this report, the following persons (other than the Directors or
chief executives of the Company) had interest and short positions
in the Shares, or underlying Shares of the Company which were
required to be notified to the Company pursuant to Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required, pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred to
therein, or which had already been notified to the Company and the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange:

FERRAROHOESR

RBEHA - ARA R R W ARREE
B 2P BT - AR EEAR SRR KRR
T (BREEFRPEGRIIEXVEF2RES
7B K 5 336 1%) MARERNARAI RHEE
EURETESE -

MARBESAAM  RAFRA - THAL
(BEHARATERERIN RARFN
BB T - A RIBE S MBI
PIZEXVEREE 2 ]2 5 3 70 BR A MG N A BRI HE
@ RORE - RIRIEE Z KRR 5 336 &
ARSNGB L MOV R LR R - 3
EMEARRAREBH XD FIAR

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of

Number of Shares the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest (share)™ (%)
LR VA
BRITRAE
HEEM
BHABED
BREREE fEmME BEOEB (KR)™ (%)
First Milestone"® Beneficial owner 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
First Milestone!"@ E=ERA 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Texson'™ Beneficial owner 2,266,666,669(L) 55.4%
AR EnHBA 2,266,666,669(L) 55.4%
Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
R EE R 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
China Cinda Asset Management Interest in controlled corporation 857,816,259(L) 21.0%
Co., Ltd.@®
PREEZEEETERD REEEER 857,816,259(L) 21.0%
ﬁﬁﬁi\\ Ej (2)(3)
China Cinda (HK) Holdings Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Company Limited®®
PEIEE (BB ZER REEEER 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
ﬁﬁﬁi\\ Ej (2)(3)
Beneficial owner 8,408,000(L) 0.2%
EnHBA 8,408,000(L) 0.2%
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Number of Shares

Approximate
percentage of
the total issued
share capital of
the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest (share)™ (%)
EARAR
BBRITRAE
BEM
BRBEDL
RERERB fEmtE ROEE (R)D (%)
Sino-Rock Investment Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Management
Company Limited?
EAREBEEBBERARR SN 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Cinda Sino-Rock Investment Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Limited?
Cinda Sino-Rock Investment R LB S 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
Limited?
Sinostone Capital Management Interest in controlled corporation 849,408,259(L) 20.8%
(Overseas) Company Limited?
EAERER(EINARRARD EEE#ER 849,408,259(L) 20.8%

(L) denotes long positions

Notes:
(1)

Texson holds 27,469.38308 class A non-redeemable participating shares in
First Milestone and as such, is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by
First Milestone.

Sinostone Capital Management (Overseas) Company Limited holds 100%
management shares in First Milestone. Sinostone Capital Management
(Overseas) Company Limited is wholly-owned by Cinda Sino-Rock Investment
Limited, which in turn is wholly owned by Sino-Rock Investment Management
Company Limited. China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited indirectly holds
48.28% interests in Sino-Rock Investment Management Company Limited,
and is wholly-owned by China Cinda Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Accordingly,
each of Sinostone Capital Management (Overseas) Company Limited, Cinda
Sino-Rock Investment Limited, Sino-Rock Investment Management Company
Limited, China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited and China Cinda Asset
Management Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by First
Milestone.

China Cinda (HK) Holdings Company Limited is wholly-owned by China Cinda
Asset Management Co., Ltd.. Accordingly, China Cinda Asset Management
Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the Shares held by China Cinda (HK)
Holdings Company Limited.

(LIERFR

GEX
(1

7= 572 # ¥ A First Milestone 27,469.38308 fi%
ABT ARG 2 BIR1G  B MR AR First
Milestone FTF5 A% (0 AP # B 1 25 ©

BFEREARERE OFI) AR AR AFirst
Milestone #9100% B2l 7 - A E A E 2
(85)) AR A &/ Cinda Sino-Rock Investment
Limited® & # A& » M Cinda Sino-Rock
Investment Limited # i Z AL EBERBR A
RIZEHR HEEEGEH ERBRARME
BEREERREEIRHARAR48.28% w1
HPEEEEETERNARARZERS -
Hit - EREARERE (O8I AR A A - Cinda
Sino-Rock Investment Limited ~ 2 AR E EEA
RAF - REEEEB ERERATRFTE
FEAETERMNARA RS 8 WK AN First
Milestone FTH5 % 5 R B #E2s ©

TEEE (BB EREARARBPREERE
ERRHERDRZERE - By PEIEESE
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ZRRE R A BRI A s
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Save as disclosed above, as of the date of this report, the Directors
of the Company were not aware of any person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interest or
short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company pursuant to
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
referred to therein, or which had already been notified to the
Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On February 21, 2019 (the "Adoption Date”), the shareholders
adopted the Share Option Scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).
The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance with the
provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

PURPOSE

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives to
Participants (as defined in the following paragraph) to contribute to
the Company and motivate them to higher levels of performance,
and to enable the Company to recruit high caliber employees and
attract or retain human resources that are valuable to the Group.

WHO MAY JOIN

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the
terms set out in the Share Option Scheme (“Options”) to any
employee, executive director or non-executive director (including
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group
(the "Participants”).
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MAXIMUM NUMBER OF SHARES

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme (the “Maximum Number of Shares”) and any other Share
Option Scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the total number of Shares in issue immediately upon completion of
the Global Offering, however, that, subject to compliance with the
Listing Rules:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the Company may, at any time as the Board may think
fit, seek approval from our Shareholders to increase the
Maximum Number of Shares, up to a maximum of 10%
of the Shares in issue at the date of approval by our
Shareholders in general meeting. Options previously granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other scheme of the
Company (including those outstanding, cancelled or lapsed
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
or any other scheme of the Company) shall not be counted
for the purpose of calculating the new Maximum Number
of Shares. The Company will send a circular containing the
details and information required under the Listing Rules to the
Shareholders;

the Company may seek separate approval from the
Shareholders in general meeting to permit the granting of
Options which will result in the number of Shares in respect
of all Options granted exceeding the then Maximum Number
of Shares, provided that the Options exceeding the then
Maximum Number of Shares are granted only to Participants
specifically identified by the Company before Shareholders’
approval is sought. The Company will send a circular
containing the details and information required under the
Listing Rules to the Shareholders;

the total maximum number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding Options granted and yet
to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other options granted and yet to be exercised under another
scheme of the Company will not exceed 30% of the Shares in
issue from time to time. No options may be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of
the Company if this will result in such limit being exceeded.
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MAXIMUM ENTITLEMENT OF EACH PARTICIPANT

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Company (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each Participant in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of
Options in excess of the 1% limit will be separately approved by
the Shareholders in general meeting with such Participant and his
associates abstaining from voting. The Company will send a circular
to the Shareholders disclosing the identity of the Participant, the
number and terms of Options to be granted to the Participant, and
containing the details and information required under the Listing
Rules. The number and terms (including the subscription price) of
Options to be granted to the Participant must be fixed before the
approval of the Shareholders and the date of the Board meeting
proposing the grant will be taken as the offer date for the purpose
of calculating the subscription price of those Options.

GRANTING OPTIONS TO CONNECTED PERSONS

Where any offer of the grant of an Option is proposed to be made
to a director (other than an independent non-executive director),
chief executive or substantial shareholder (as defined in the Listing
Rules) of the Company or any of their respective associates,
the offer must be approved by the Independent Non-executive
Directors (excluding any Independent Non-executive Director who
is the grantee of an Option).

Where any grant of Options to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or any of their
respective associates, would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all Options already granted and to be
granted (including Options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to
such person in the 12-month period up to and including the date of
such grant: (i) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the Shares
in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the Shares at the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million, such further grant of Options will be subject to the issue
of a circular by the Company and approval by the Shareholders in
general meeting at which all connected persons of the Company
must abstain from voting in favor at such general meeting and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from
time to time. Any vote taken at the meeting to approve the grant of
such options will be taken as a poll.
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PERFORMANCE TARGET AND CONDITIONS FOR
VESTING

No performance targets are to be achieved before an Option can be
exercised.

SUBSCRIPTION PRICE

The price per Share at which a grantee may subscribe for Shares on
the exercise of an Option shall be a price determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion and notified to a Participant, which shall be
at least the higher of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares on the Stock Exchange as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
relevant offer date in respect of such Option;

(i)  the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
relevant offer date in respect of such Options or where the
Company has been listed for less than five trading days, the
new issue price shall be used as the closing price; or

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

LIFE OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Share
Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the Adoption Date, i.e. February 20, 2029, after
which period no further Options will be offered but the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full force and effect to
the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any Options
granted before that. Options granted before that but not yet
exercised shall continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme.

OPTION GRANTED

No option has been granted under the Scheme since the Adoption
Date and up to the date of this report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not enter into any
contracts in respect of the management and administration of
all or any significant portion of the business (except for such
service contracts entered into with the Group's Directors and all
employees) and there existed no such contracts in respect of the
management and administration of all or any significant portion of
the business (except for such service contracts entered into with
the Group's Directors and all employees).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

We have entered into some transactions with connected persons
of the Company. In accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, such transactions have constituted Continuing Connected
Transactions of the Company.

PROJECT SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT

The Company entered into a project services framework
agreement on February 22, 2019 (the "Project Services Framework
Agreement”) with Xuyang Holding, pursuant to which Xuyang
Group will provide project design, construction management
and general contracting services to the Group in relation to our
various initiatives to upgrade our energy saving and environmental
protection capabilities and improve the efficiency and quality of our
existing large-scale production facilities in light of the adoption by
the relevant PRC government authorities of more stringent energy
saving and environmental protection requirements. Relevant
members of Xuyang Group may enter into separate contracts with
the Group to set out specific terms and conditions of the relevant
services in accordance with the principles provided in the Project
Services Framework Agreement. The initial term of the Project
Services Framework Agreement and any separate contracts
entered into under it will expire on December 31, 2021 and such
term can be renewed subject to mutual written consent of the
Company and Xuyang Holding and approval in accordance with
applicable laws, regulations and the Listing Rules. The Group is free
to contract with other independent third parties for the relevant
services if Xuyang Group is unable to provide such services or
the terms that Xuyang Group offers become less favorable to the
Group than those offered by other independent third parties.
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Xuyang Holding is a company wholly-owned by our Controlling
Shareholder, Mr. Yang and his spouse. Pursuant to Rule 14A.07(1),
Mr. Yang, an Executive Director and our Controlling Shareholder, is
a connected person of the Company, and thus, Xuyang Holding is
an associate of Mr. Yang and a connected person of the Company.

While the Group could procure independent third parties to provide
such services, the Group considers that the Project Services
Framework Agreement is beneficial to the Group as:

(i) the project design and construction management of various
chemical production facilities requires certain technical
expertise and experience in the design and construction
management of coal, coking and refined chemicals systems
and facilities which Xuyang Group can provide;

(i)~ Xuyang Group has extensive knowledge of our existing
production facilities and our technical and operational
requirements, and may thus be more efficient in
implementing the projects; and

(i) the terms and prices offered by Xuyang Group may be more
favorable than what we may obtain from independent third
parties.

The Group conducts a public tender process for each project for
which we require project design, construction management and
general contracting services. Interested bidders would be selected
on the bases of the prices proposed, the technical specifications
achievable, the business model and background of the bidders,
payment terms proposed and the estimated delivery dates, and
the bidder offering the best overall terms would be awarded the
project. As such, the fees for the services provided by Xuyang
Group under the Project Services Framework Agreement would be
in line with the prices proposed by Xuyang Group in its submitted
bids, and the Group would compare such bids with the bids
submitted by other independent third parties.

The amounts of fees charged by Xuyang Group with respect to
the project services for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB111.6 million.

Since each of the applicable percentage ratios (other than the
profits ratio) for the Project Services Framework Agreement is less
than 5%, the transactions under the Project Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company which are subject to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements but exempt from the circular and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFIRMATION BY THE INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have
reviewed the aforementioned continuing connected transactions
and confirmed that the transactions have been conducted:

(@) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) inaccordance with relevant agreement governing the relevant
transactions, on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Note 39 to the Financial Statements discloses the related party
transactions of the Company in accordance with IFRS. The
transactions disclosed therein between the Company and the
following parties constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules: Mr. Yang Xuegang, Ms. Lu Xiaomei, Texson and the
entities controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang. Since the Listing Date, the
Company has complied with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

On February 20, 2019, the Controlling Shareholders have entered
into a Deed of Non-competition, pursuant to which each of the
Controlling Shareholders agreed that, except for the supply of coal
as described above, (i) he or she or it will not engage in, participate
in or assist others to engage or participate in any business that
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our
business within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the world in
which any member of the Group operates, and will procure its
subsidiaries (where applicable) not to engage in any business
that competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with
our business (the “Competing Businesses”) in the PRC, Hong
Kong or any part of the world in which any member of the Group
operates; and (ii) he or she or it will inform us of any new business
opportunities of the Competing Businesses, and use his or her or
its best efforts to procure such opportunities be made available to
us.
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Each of the Controlling Shareholders have also undertaken in the
Deed of Non-competition that during the term of such agreement,
he or she or it will not, and will procure its subsidiaries (where
applicable) not to:

° directly or indirectly engage in or participate in, or assist
others to engage in or participate in, any Competing
Businesses in any form (including but not limited to
investments, mergers and acquisitions, joint ventures,
cooperation agreements, partnerships, contractual
arrangements or purchases of shares of listed or private
companies) within the PRC, Hong Kong or any part of the
world in which any member of the Group operates;

° assist any entity other than the Group to engage in any
Competing Businesses within the PRC, Hong Kong or any
part of the world in which any member of the Group operates;
or

° engage in any Competing Businesses (directly or indirectly) in
any manner.

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company are
responsible for examining, reviewing, considering and determining
whether to adopt and accept the new business opportunities
referred to the Company by the Controlling Shareholders.

The Controlling Shareholders have confirmed that up to date of
this report, they have complied with the Deed of Non-competition.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have
examined and reviewed the implementation of the Deed of Non-
competition up to the date of this report and have confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders have fully complied with the deed and
there had no violation of the deed.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the retirement and employee benefits plans of the Group
are set out under Note 37 of the Financial Statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Please refer to “Corporate Governance Report — Compliance of the
Code"” in this annual report for details.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information and to the knowledge of the
Directors, there is sufficient public float of the Company’s issued
shares since the Listing Date and up to the date of this report, in
compliance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and as of the date of this report,
the Company (including but not limited to) had purchased and
maintained a group liability insurance for the Directors of the
Company and its associated companies (as defined for such term
under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the Financial
Statements as for the year ended December 31, 2018 prepared in
accordance with IFRS.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants is
appointed as the auditor for the Financial Statements as for the year
ended December 31, 2018 prepared in accordance with IFRS. Such
Financial Statements prepared in accordance with IFRS as stated
herein this annual report have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants and a standard unqualified
audit report has been issued.

Since the Listing Date and up to the date of the annual report, there
was no change in the auditors of the Company.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu will retire at the forthcoming AGM and
being eligible offer themselves for reappointment.

By report of
the Board of Directors
Yang Xuegang

Chairman

March 29, 2019
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The Board of Directors of the Company has hereby submitted
its Corporate Governance Report for the Reporting Period to the
Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE OF THE CODE

The Company focuses on maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance for purposes of enhancing the value for shareholders
and protecting their interests. The Company has adopted such
provisions of the Code as stated in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "Code”) and Corporate Governance Report provided
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Shares of the
Company were not listed on the Stock Exchange during the
Reporting Period, the Code did not apply to the Company during
the Reporting Period. However, the Company has established and
perfected the corporate governance structure in accordance with
the Listing Rules and the Code and has set up a series of corporate
governance system. The Directors believe that commencing from
the Listing Date, the Company has been observing all mandatory
provisions of the code as stipulated in the Corporate Governance
Code except the provisions of A.2.1 (please refer to below for
detailed explanation).

The Board of Directors will examine and review, from time to time,
the Company's corporate governance practices and operation in
order to meet the relevant provisions under the Listing Rules and to
protect the shareholders’ interests.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS CONDUCTED BY
DIRECTORS AND THE RELEVANT EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted the standard code against which the
Directors of Listed Issuers conduct securities transactions as
provided in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Standard Code"),
taking such Code against which the Directors of the Company may
conduct securities transactions.

Since the Shares of the Company were not listed on the Stock
Exchange during the Reporting Period, the Standard Code did not
apply to the Company during the Reporting Period.

Upon specific enquiry conducted by the Company, all the Directors
have confirmed that commencing from the Listing Date up to the
date of this report, they have been fully observing the Standard
Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
BOARD OF DIRECTORS
(a) Composition of Board of Directors

The Board comprises nine Directors, including six Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors.
The Directors have been appointed with a term of three
years.

The Company has at least three Independent Non-executive
Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board), and
among whom, at least one Independent Non-executive
Director must possess professional qualifications or
accounting knowledge or professional knowledge related to
finance management in compliance with the provisions of
the Listing Rules. Moreover, after taking into consideration
of the factors regarding the evaluation of the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the written confirmation of all
Independent Non- executive Directors, the Board of Directors
believes that all Independent Non-Executive Directors are
independent individuals.
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The Board of Directors of the Company comprises the RARIEEZHEKAT -

following:

Name Age Sex Position Appointment Date

A Fir 4 5l -4 ZEBH

Mr. Yang Xuegang 54 M Executive Director, chairman of November 8, 2007
the Board and chief executive
officer

BEEEE 54 2 WITES BEFSIFHF 2007411 A8H
TR

Mr. Zhang Yingwei 47 M Executive Director and vice July 24, 2009
president of the Group

RRERE 47 = WITESERASEHRIER 200947 A 24 H

Mr. Han Qinliang 45 M Executive Director and vice May 18, 2011
president of the Group

BE L 45 = WITESERASERIER 201145 H18H
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Name Age Sex Position Appointment Date

iR Fir 4 5l B ZEBH

Mr. Wang Fengshan 60 M Executive Director and vice September 29, 2018
president of the Group

ERILEE 60 ES BITESERASERIER 201849 H29H

Mr. Wang Nianping 56 M Executive Director and vice September 29, 2018
president of the Group

EFFERE 56 ES BITESHRASERIER 201849 H29H

Mr. Yang Lu 28 M Executive Director September 29, 2018

BT & 28 E= WITES 201849 A29H

Mr. Kang Woon 56 M Independent Non-executive September 29, 2018
Director

BBRE 56 = BYIERITESF 201849 H29H

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry 49 M Independent Non-executive September 29, 2018
Director

REIRESEE 49 2 B EATES 20189 A29H

Mr. Wang Yinping 58 M Independent Non-executive September 29, 2018
Director

E3IFEE 58 = BYIERITESF 201849 H29H

The Directors may,

at the Company's expense,

EXTREERATE

SREBVEXER

seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances. The Company will provide separate
independent professional advice to Directors upon request to
assist the Directors to discharge their duties to the Company.

Before each Board meeting, the senior management will
provide relevant information pertaining to matters to be
brought before the Board for decision as well as reports
relating to the operational and financial performance of the
Group. Where any Director requires more information than is
supplied by the senior management, each Director has the
right to separately and independently communicate with the
Company’s senior management to make further enquiries.
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Job Duties and Authority of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be accountable to the
Shareholders and have the duty to report to the General
Meeting. The Board of Directors is responsible for convening
the General Meeting, implementing the resolutions of the
General Meeting, determining the operational plan and
investment proposals of the Company, setting up the annual
financial budget proposal, final accounts, profit distribution
proposal, proposal for increase or decrease of capital and
others, deciding on the establishment of the Company’s
management authority, determining the appointment or
dismissal of chief executive officer, chief financial officer
and other senior management officers, formulating the basic
management system of the Company and determining the
establishment of the special committees of the Board of
Directors.

Job Duties and Authority of the Senior Management

The senior management is responsible for the specific
implementation of the resolutions of the Board of Directors
and of the daily business management of the Company,
which includes formulating (i) the Company’s operating plan
and investment proposal, (ii) the plan of establishing the
internal management authority, (iii) the basic management
system of the Company and (iv) the Company’s specific
regulations.
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MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MEMBERS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report,
the Company convened a total of eight Board meetings and one
general meeting. The attendance of the meetings by the Directors

is as follows:

Eg Euﬁ&ﬁkﬁ
RERRNREEARFRA  ARAAEH
BRNAESEEER Mh%ﬁ%°§

SHEEZBEREAIWT

EEee

Board meetings E
Number of
meetings Number of Approximate Times of
should meetings attendance attendance
Name Position attend attended Rate by alternate
EHE eHE B ZEHE
i B =N BRRE HER RE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 8 8 100% -
HEMEE HITES
Mr. Zhang Yingwei Executive Director 8 3 38% -
REESE WITES
Mr. Han Qinliang Executive Director 8 8 100% -
Bt WMITES
Mr. Wang Fengshan** Executive Director 3 3 100% -
F R g A x HITES
Mr. Wang Nianping** Executive Director 3 3 100% -
FEFIRAE HITES
Mr. Yang Lu** Executive Director 3 3 100% -
B S ** WITES
Mr. Kang Woon** Independent Non- 3 3 100% -
executive Director
FRIB % A ** BUIEMITESF
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry**  Independent Non- 3 3 100% -
executive Director
REIRE A BYERITESE
Mr. Wang Yinping** Independent Non- 3 3 100% -
executive Director
T FhA BUEMITES
Mr. Zhang Xinzhi* Executive Director 5 - 0% -
SRS A WITES
Ms. Lu Xiaomei* Non-executive 5 - 0% -
Director
B/ ¥ EMITES

* Resigned on September 29, 2018.

*x Appointed on September 29, 2018.
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General meeting N
Number of
meetings Number of Times of
should meetings Attendance attendance
Name Position attend attended Rate by alternate
EHE 2HE ERHE
A B RN =N HEE RE
Mr. Yang Xuegang Executive Director 1 1 100% -
HBEMEE HITES

Mr. Zhang Yingwei
REERAE

Mr. Han Qinliang
EE AL

Mr. Wang Fengshan**
F R S A x

Mr. Wang Nianping**
EFFRE

Mr. Yang Lu**
5B 50 A **

Mr. Kang Woon**

BB SR **

Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry**

REIRESEE
Mr. Wang Yinping**
Fo| TR

Mr. Zhang Xinzhi*
RETAE A

Ms. Lu Xiaomei*

B/ L

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Executive Director

WITES

Independent Non-
executive Director

BIAFRITES

Independent Non-
executive Director

BIAFRITES

Independent Non-
executive Director

WYIENTTES
Executive Director
HWITES

Non-executive
Director

FMITES

* Resigned on September 29, 2018.

*x Appointed on September 29, 2018.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Yang is our chairman and chief executive officer. In accordance
with Rule A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code as provided
in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the roles of the chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be held by the same person. The Board of Directors has noticed
that there was deviation from Rule A.2.1 of the provisions of
the Corporate Governance Code. However, with extensive
experience in the coke, coking chemicals and refined chemicals
industries, Mr. Yang is responsible for the overall management
and business development, the operations of our subsidiaries and
their corresponding production facilities and human resources of
the Group and has been instrumental to our growth and business
expansion since our establishment in 1995. The Board considers
that vesting the roles of chairman and chief executive officer in the
same person is beneficial to the management of the Group. The
balance of power and authority is ensured by the operation of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high caliber individuals. The Board currently comprises six
Executive Directors (including Mr. Yang) and three Independent
Non-executive Directors and therefore has a strong independence
element in its composition.

APPOINTMENT OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association
of the Company, the Directors have been appointed for a term of
three years, after which they may be re-elected. The Company has
formulated the procedures of such appointment. The Nomination
Committee shall be responsible for nominating new Directors and
then submitting such nomination to the Board of Directors for
review and consideration. All newly nominated Directors must be
elected or re-elected at the General Meeting.

TRAINING AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

During the Reporting Period, the Directors of the Company actively
participated in seminars on the obligations and responsibilities
required to be fulfilled for being the directors of a listed company
in Hong Kong, as well as the obligations for the listing compliance
of a listed company. All of the Directors of the Company attended
the training of Directors on September 29, 2018, for purposes of
learning the relevant regulatory provisions in relation to the listing
in Hong Kong, and familiarizing themselves with the requirements
regarding the compliance requirements of a listed company in Hong
Kong.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND HIS TRAINING

Mr. Ho Pui Lam Joseph acts as the company secretary and is
responsible for overseeing the Group's financial and accounting
operations and internal controls, and provides financial and
business advice to the Board and senior management of the Group.
Mr. Ho shall report significant events to the chairman. The profile
of the company secretary is stated in the section of “Profiles of
the Directors and Senior Management” of this Report. During the
Reporting Period, the company secretary undertook more than 15
hours of professional training to update his skills and knowledge.

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the code provision A.1.1 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Board should meet regularly and Board meetings
should be held at least four times a year at approximately quarterly
intervals. Agenda of board meetings are presented to the Directors
for comments and approval. The Board of Directors is provided
with adequate, timely and reliable information about the Group’s
business and developments before each board meeting at which
the Directors actively participate and hold informed discussions.
A notice of regular board meeting shall be given to all directors
at least 14 days before the meeting is convened pursuant to the
requirements of the Code, and such notice shall state the date,
time and venue of the meeting to be convened and the format to
be adopted of such meeting. Other interim board meetings have
reasonable notices be delivered to all Directors.

In accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, the
Company shall publish an announcement at least 7 clear business
days in advance of the date fixed for any board meeting at which
the declaration, recommendation or payment of a dividend is
expected to be decided or at which any announcement of the
profits or losses for any year, half-year, quarter-year or other period
is to be approved for publication.

The quorum for a board meeting shall be the presence of two
Directors. Directors may participate in any meeting of the Board
by means of a conference telephone or other communications
equipment through which all persons participating in the
meeting can communicate with each other simultaneously and
instantaneously and, for the purpose of counting a quorum, such
participation shall constitute presence at a meeting as if those
participating were present in person. The company secretary is
responsible for preparing and safekeeping the minutes of the board
meetings and ensuring that the Directors can enquire about such
minutes.

Since the Listing Date, the Company has strictly complied, and will

continue to comply, with the provisions in relation to the meetings
of the Board of Directors.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMITTEES

The Board of Directors delegates certain responsibilities to various
committees. In accordance with relevant laws, regulations and
the Articles of Association of the Company, we have formed
three board committees, namely the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee in accordance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and has
expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee in
writing. The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Wang Yinping.
All members of the Audit Committee are Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry is the chairman of the
Audit Committee.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to assist the Board in
ensuring that the Company has an effective financial reporting, risk
management and internal control system in compliance with the
Listing Rules, overseeing the integrity of the financial statements
of the Company, selecting, and assessing the independence
and qualifications of, the Company’s external auditor, as well as
ensuring effective communication between the Directors and the
internal and external auditors of the Company.

As for the selection, appointment and dismissal of external auditors
or resignation of auditors, the Board and the Audit Committee have
reached a consensus.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, one
meeting was held by the Audit Committee. The attendance record
of each member of the Audit Committee is set out below:
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PR ZEMBTEE EEQREKE
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B R e E AT

Number of

meetings attended/

should attend Attendance rate

BHEEHE
Name of committee members ZEEHREHUH SERE HE=E
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry RE RS AE 11 100%
Mr. Kang Woon OB AE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wang Yinping T3l F5h4E 11 100%
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal control policy and the risk management and internal
control system of the Group as of December 31, 2018. The
Audit Committee considered that the internal review and risk
management functions of the Company were reasonable, effective
and adequate.

Since the Listing Date of the Company, the Audit Committee
has performed its duties strictly in accordance with the relevant
regulatory requirements, corporate governance rules and the
Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee in
accordance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
and has expressly stated the scope of job duties of such committee
in writing. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Kang Woon, Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and
Mr. Wang Yinping. All members are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Mr. Kang Woon is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
establishing and reviewing the Company's policy and structure
for the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
and making recommendations to the Board on employee benefit
arrangements. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for determining the vesting of the options granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report,
one meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee. The
attendance record of each member of the Remuneration
Committee is set out below:
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Number of

meetings attended/

should attend Attendance rate

BHEEHE
Name of committee members ZEEREM R SERE HE =
Mr. Kang Woon BB AE 11 100%
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry RE A 1/1 100%
Mr. Wang Yinping F5|FEAE 11 100%
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In addition to attending meetings, members maintain close and B FEEZN KERMBBEHELE T
effective communication amongst themselves through channels FERERFBRIRBRER J«ME%FE
such as e-mail and electronic communications to ensure the HBH -

discharge of their duties.

Since the Listing Date of the Company, the Remuneration BZARXAT FHHEE  HMEZESCBE
Committee has performed its duties strictly in accordance withthe AHBEEER - DEEAFEI N EHHR L
relevant regulatory requirements, corporate governance rules and EXIREITHEBE -

the Listing Rules.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZES

The Company has established the Nomination Committee in  ARATDIRE TR S 14FTH D EE
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in A —rH'Jﬁkik%é,\ 2 WEEEAZE
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and has expressly stated the E& E’JH‘H%E%B. REELZEGH=-FNKE
scope of job duties of such committee in writing. The Nomination — #85X * DRl ABSZEELLE  FBEXENEH
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Yang #E5&4E - BRIGEEAENITESRIN  FTBEEAM
Xuegang, Mr. Kang Woon and Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry. Except KEMABIYIFNTES - HBELERRESR
for Mr. Yang who is an executive Director, all other members are ZEEEJE °

independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Yang is the chairman of

the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing REZZEE€WNTIEBEREE L BFRT
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board at ZEEMWEE - HE - @A KEZ il Wi
least annually and making recommendations on any proposed AAQARINERBEAESSIRDTMAES
changes to the Board to complement the Company's corporate & B)iE:% @ (T EIB L IERITEEN B LM
strategy, assessing the independence of the Independent Non- AEEEER  UMRET SENERE
executive Directors to determine their eligibility, and making SUNESHETTERNESSREEE -
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-election and

removal of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

From the Listing Date up to the date of this annual report, one B _EMH Hﬂﬁ_i$¢$ﬁ BHIIE  ]REBZE
meeting was held by the Nomination Committee. The attendance &ERIT— X &% -RHLZEE€EFH/KE
record of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out B HFE L& FIN T ¢

below:

Number of

meetings attended/
should attend Attendance rate

BHEEHE
Name of committee members ZEEREH R eBRERY i FE =R
Mr. Yang Xuegang BERLE 1/1 100%
Mr. Kang Woon EB%A 11 100%
Mr. Yu Kwok Kuen Harry RS A 1/1 100%

Since the Listing Date of the Company, the Nomination Committee HARX A LW HER  REZESERIE
has performed its duties strictly in accordance with the relevant ABREEEK - CEERF A M EHHEE]
regulatory requirements, corporate governance rules and the ERIRBITHBRE -

Listing Rules.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD
DIVERSITY POLICY

In order to enhance the quality of the performance of the Board
and to support the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development, we have adopted a
board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”). Pursuant to
the Board Diversity Policy, we seek to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors when selecting
candidates to the Board, including but not limited to gender, skills,
age, professional experience, knowledge, cultural and education
background, ethnicity and length of service. Appointments will
ultimately be based on merit and the contributions the selected
candidates will bring to the Board. The Board believes that such
merit-based appointments will best enable the Company to service
our Shareholders and other stakeholders.

The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for
reviewing the structure, number of members, and composition
of the Board of Directors. In addition, the Committee makes
recommendations to the Board relating to the size and structure
of the Board of Directors based on the Company's strategic plans,
business operations, asset size and shareholding structure. The
Committee also discusses and reviews the selection standard, the
nomination and appointment process of relevant Directors, and
makes recommendations to the Board of Directors. In identifying
candidates, the Company solicits candidates through recruitment
agencies, referrals by existing directors, and recommendation
by shareholders of the Company in accordance with the Articles
of Association. The candidates will be approved by the Board of
Directors.

The Board Diversity Policy needs to be followed when the
Nomination Committee of the Board makes recommendations on
the candidates or when the Board of Directors makes nomination.
The Nomination Committee of the Board is responsible for
monitoring the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and
reviewing it at the appropriate time to ensure its effectiveness.
The Nomination Committee will discuss any amendments when
necessary and make recommendations to the Board of Directors
for final approval.
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Our Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills,
including in overall management and strategic development,
sales and marketing, finance and accounting, law, consulting and
corporate governance, as well as experience in the coke industry.
Our Directors also obtained degrees in various majors including
business administration, coal chemistry, metallurgical engineering,
industrial economy administration, accounting, statistics, law,
international trade and chemical engineering. The Company has
three Independent Non-executive Directors with different industry
backgrounds, representing one-third of the members of the Board.
Furthermore, the Board has a wide range of age, ranging from 28
years old to 60 years old. Out of the nine Directors, only Mr. Yang
Xuegang and Mr. Yang Lu are related. Taking into account our
existing business model and specific needs as well as the different
backgrounds and abilities of our Directors, the composition of
the Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy, despite the lack of
gender diversity.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the
diversity of the Board. After the Listing, the Nomination Committee
will monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy, and
review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness. The Nomination Committee will also
include in our annual corporate governance report a summary of
the Board Diversity Policy together with measurable objectives
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy, the progress
made towards achieving those objectives, as well as the Board's
composition from a diversity perspective.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the composition of the Board of Directors and concluded that the
Company had met the diversification requirements with regard to
gender, skills, age, professional experience, knowledge, cultural
and education background, ethnicity and length of service. When
making the appointment and re-appointment of Directors in the
future, the Nomination Committee will nominate new Directors
pursuant to the requirements of the Board Diversity Policy to
achieve the objective of diversity in Board members.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to ensure that
the Company maintains sound and effective internal controls to
safeguard our Shareholders’ investment and the Group’s assets at
all times. In order to ensure the internal control operate effectively,
the Company has adopted a series of internal control policies,
procedures and programmes designed to provide reasonable
assurance for achieving objectives including effective and
efficient operations, reliable financial reporting and compliance
with applicable laws and regulations. The Board reviews the risk
management and internal controls annually. Highlights of the
Company's internal control system include the following:

Code of conduct. Our code of conduct explicitly communicates to
each employee our values, acceptable criteria for decision-making
and our ground rules for behavior.

Internal audit. Our internal audit team regularly monitors key
controls and procedures in order to assure our management
and the Board of Directors that the internal control system is
functioning as intended. The Audit Committee of the Board of
Directors is responsible for supervising our internal audit function.

Compliance with Listing Rules. Our various policies aim to ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules, including but not limited to
aspects related to corporate governance, connected transactions
and securities transactions by the Directors.

Enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
non-compliance incidents. The Company also adopted a number of
enhanced internal control procedures to prevent the recurrence of
noncompliance incidents.

We have established a set of risk management policies and
measures to identify, evaluate and manage risks arising from our
operations. Our risk management process starts with identifying
the major risks associated with our corporate strategy, goals and
objectives. Each of our operating departments is responsible
for identifying and analyzing risks associated with its function,
maintaining a comprehensive risk register, preparing risk mitigation
plans, measuring effectiveness of such risk mitigation plans and
reporting the status of risk management. Our audit personnel,
the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and ultimately
the Board of Directors supervise the implementation of our risk
management policy at the corporate level by bringing together
each operating department, such as quality control, research
and development and sales, to collaborate on risk issues among
different functions.
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The Board of Directors and the senior management are
accountable for the overall responsibility in respect of monitoring
the implementation of internal control and risk management
procedures and other measures in the Group. The Company'’s risk
management and internal control system aims at managing but
not eliminating the risk for not being able to achieve the business
objective. Moreover, only reasonable but not absolute guarantee
is made for materially untrue statement or loss. The Board of
Directors will conduct an examination on the Company's risk
management and internal control system once per year. The Board
of Directors has confirmed that it has examined the effectiveness
of the Company's risk management and internal control system as
of December 31, 2018. The Board believed that the Company’s risk
management and internal control system is effective and sufficient.
The Company'’s risk management and internal control system can
effectively guide against such risks existing in the operation.

We have appointed and renewed the appointment of external
professional advisors (including the auditor, legal or other advisors)
for provision of professional suggestions in respect of how we
observe all applicable related laws and regulations.

THE DIRECTORS’ LIABILITY TO THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Company has not encountered with any significant and
uncertain events and circumstances that might produce significant
doubts on the Company’s capability of its continuous operation
of business. The Board of Directors has confirmed that it is
responsible for the preparation of the Group’s Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2018.

REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR

For the Reporting Period, the Company has appointed Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public Accountants, an international
accounting firm, to provide the Company with auditing service
in accordance with IFRS and the amounts of remuneration in
connection to annual audit service are RMB5.8 million. Moreover,
the Company has separately appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu,
Certified Public Accountants to be the reporting accountant
for the Company'’s listing in Hong Kong, the Company has paid
such accounting firm a remuneration of RMB12.6 million. The
responsibilities of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as to the Financial
Statements are set out on pages 129 and 134 of this annual report.

Non-audit services provided to the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2018 of approximately RMB0.53 million represented
the fee for the preparation of the environmental, social and
governance report of the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

SHAREHOLDERS HAVE THE RIGHT TO INITIATE AND
CONVENE THE GENERAL MEETING

In accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association of
the Company, the shareholders shall be entitled to the following
right: Any one or more shareholder of the Company holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of
the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the company secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one
(21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS
AT GENERAL MEETINGS

Shareholders are welcomed to suggest proposals relating to the
operations, strategy and/or management of the Group at a general
meeting. Proposals shall be sent to the Board or the company
secretary in writing to the company secretary at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2303, COFCO
Tower, No. 262 Gloucester Road, Hong Kong.

SHAREHOLDERS ARE ENTITLED TO THE INQUIRY
RIGHT

Shareholders are entitled to make enquiries to the Board should
by sending written enquiries to the Company at its principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Suite 2303, COFCO Tower, No. 262
Gloucester Road, Hong Kong. The Company will deal with all
enquiries in a timely and appropriate manner.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company believes that effective communications with
Shareholders is essential to enhancement of the relationship with
investors and enhancement of investors’ understanding of the
Company's business and strategies. The Company highly values
Shareholders’ opinions and suggestions, and actively organizes and
conducts various activities related to the relationship with investors
in order to keep the communications with Shareholders, and to
timely satisfy the reasonable demands of all Shareholders.

To enhance effective communication, the Company maintains
its website at http://www.risun.com where latest information on
the Company's business operations and developments, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information
are available for public access.

The 2018 annual general meeting (the "AGM") of the Company will
be held on June 28, 2019. The notice of the AGM wiill be sent to
shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the AGM.

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS

The Company believes that good relationship with investors
may help build more stable and consolidated shareholder base.
As a result, since the Listing, the Company has been and will
be dedicated to maintaining a higher degree of transparency,
observing the Listing Rules and timely providing investors
with comprehensive and accurate information, and sustainably
performing the obligation of disclosing the information as a listed
company. The Company will strengthen its communications with
investors and let investors understand corporate strategies and
business operation by organizing road shows, participating in
investors summit, voluntary information disclosure and others.

The Company will continue to maintain open-up and effective
investors communication policies for purposes of timely providing
investors with the latest information on the Company’s business
when the Company is in compliance with the relevant regulatory
provisions.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company has amended the Articles of Association in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
amended Articles of Association have been effective since the
Listing Date. The Articles of Association have been published on
the website of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and the website of
the Company. There have been no amendment made thereto the
Articles of Association since the Listing Date.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
provisions of “Comply or Explain” stated in the Environmental,
Social and Governance (“ESG") Reporting Guide. The Company will
separately issue the Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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Environmental, Social, and Governance Report

BB AL LR

RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT

The Group actively fulfills the enterprise social responsibilities and
promotes the inclusion of social responsibilities in operations of
the Company by establishing the social responsibility management
system with the board of directors as the core, actively responding
to and meeting the demands of the stakeholders etc.

RESPONSIBILITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Group establishes an environmental, social, and governance
("ESG") working group. The board of directors and senior
managements are responsible for the environmental, social,
and governance strategy and report, periodically review
the environmental, social, and governance information and
performance, reviewing proposals about ESG such as safety,
environment, employees, and investment, and direct, decide, and
promote ESG work uniformly; the secretary department of the
board of directors, as the leading and coordinating department,
is responsible for daily ESG coordination and implementation,
and periodically reports to the board of directors and senior
management; departments of the headquarter and the subsidiaries
(branches) are responsible for implementation of the ESG work
according to their own businesses and functions, report the ESG
performance and disclose and report the ESG information of each
year when necessary.

STAKEHOLDERS COMMUNICATION

The Company kept the communication with stakeholders (including
shareholders, customers, partners, employees, community, etc.)
during the year working process, and listened to the demands and
appeals of the stakeholders and made responses to the opinions of
the stakeholders in a timely manner through diversified channels,
including the forum with stakeholders. The Company collated and
prepared stakeholders communication form from the perspective
of sustainable development, and laid a foundation for identification
of material topics of the Company.
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}Efﬁf
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RAEFE TERRRRERRETN SER
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HEE BENEREIERESFZ TR
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R HERERRE

Stakeholders

Communication channels

Topics

MEBEMEEAS

Shareholders

BR

Government/Community

Bt

Customers

BP

Partners

BIERH

BERE

Periodic report and information
disclosure
EHIRRE BRE R RE
General meeting

EDN-

Investor questionnaire

® & & B

Press conference on performance
£ i

Performance roadshow
REKE

Telephone conference

I i

=2 =
B an 5 A&

Daily communication

HE&R

Information bulletin

FEERE

Government and enterprise
cooperation

HbaE

Government review

BT EE

Volunteer services

EREE R

Public charity activities

N EEEE

Daily service and communication
A &R &R

Customer satisfaction investigation
B P mEE R

Portals

PIF 483k

Carry out project cooperation
FRIEB&E

Daily business communication
HEEBZR

Industry Forum

TEWIB
Online service platform
EERBETE
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Continue to return value
SERIEEER R

Corporate governance and risk
management
REE G B E R E IR

Right to know and right to make
decision

GRS ER KR

Observe laws and disciplines
oS

Pay taxes according to the laws
BORMMT

Support economic development
TREBEER

Intellectual property protection
MBERERE

Community public service

MHE AR

Information security and privacy
protection

ERREHEBMRE

Product stability and high efficiency
EMBEESN

Service and feedback response
guarantee

PR 75 B2 [0 65 28 FE (R [

Safeguard customer’s rights and
interests

BEPRERRE

Mutual development

HEK K

Share customers with partners
HE4MRERP
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Topics

BrRE

Stakeholders Communication channels
FzEEEE A BERE
Employees e Periodic staff meeting and forum
8T THETARE  BHAE
e Employee training
8T
e Enterprise WeChat,
PEME

e Email, telephone, etc.
BFE - BEE
e Labor union
Ig
Environment e Green office
FEmA
e Green procurement
HERE
e Green transport
HEER
e Environment information disclosure
RIREEHRE
e Carry out environmental protection
campaign
FERREEEH

ge=:)

R

i

IDENTIFICATION OF MATERIAL TOPICS

With respect to topics concerning the environment, social, and
governance, the Company, in accordance with Appendix 27
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide"” of the
securities listing rules of Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
and based on the stakeholder communication and practices of the
Company, evaluated and screened important environmental, social,
and governance matters concerning business of the Company from
the perspective of importance of the topics to the stakeholders and
to the environment and society to form a matrix of material topics,
as the focus of ESG of the Company and the basis of disclosure.

e Safeguard legal rights and interests
of employees
RIEEI&EER

e Promote occupational development
and improvement of skills
BN B R AR IR

e \Work-life balance

TREATE T

e Energy saving
B A RE IR A
e Emission reduction

BEAXBE IR

B A
ATKEEBH AR PHERAAES L
LB 8827 CRO% - 1 B R B A 4B 55
31) - STEBMEE - HBREARE X
KRR R RRARERER - (T
5 2R B B R R A
) B MBI B 5 ) SR
$HREMESENER HAREATE
TR BRRWER EE M ERRERE - E
AATIESGMIE R BB KR -
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High

Z

Importance to stakeholders
HARMEETNEZ T

Low .
K Importance to the Group H_'Qh
HAEEMNEZ M =
Care for employees Protection of employees’ Safety and health Energy saving and
STHE rights and interest TR @R consumption reduction
iy fabytlly ) ey
Public welfare and charity BTEERE Product quality B0 B i 7
N BAEE Anti-corruption EREE Technological innovations
Customers' rights and RES Emissions management il &1
interest and protection Training and development P E 8
P s RS BIEER Low carbon development
Supply chain Equal recruitment K=
e g8 NERE
GREEN DEVELOPMENT BEBR
EMISSIONS MANAGEMENT R EE

We are dedicated to reduce the impact of pollutant emissions — FAFIEUIRR Dk Rt TAEBFE PN
during the coke and chemical production on environment, actively KIS AVIEIRIBEKN T E  BIBREB 1T
implement the green development idea, and stringently comply @3 EIES - BSET(PEARLMER
with the environmental protection laws and regulations and  BREENFE AR FLMEKT L EAE)
standards, such as the PRC Environmental Protection Law, the PRC (% A R MBI AT 5285 (REA
Law on Prevention and Control of Water Pollution, the PRC Law on = F1E [E 48 B )5 IR B a2 ) (R E
Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, the PRC Law on Prevention  {LE2 T #;5 ¥ EEUZE) SHEBIRIRAE
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste, and the A8 RIZ%E « REHAN  REBKRNEEE
Emission Standard of Pollutants for Coking Chemical Industry. EIREMEERMERSE A FANIBER
During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any action ~ ZlH)E{F -

and punishment due to environmental problems.
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The Group continues to strengthen the environment management
system, improve the internal systems, and carry out ability training.

- Establish a complete environment management system:
The Group established an environment management system
with the environmental management committee as the
highest management agency and the production technology
department as the daily management department. All
subsidiaries established the environmental management
organizational structure specifying clear responsibilities and
objectives for all levels of posts, and ensured continuous
improvement of the system running by assessment and
incentives;

- Establish complete environment management appraisal
systems, such as the Administrative Measures for Pollutant
Discharge Report Management, the Administrative Measures
for Environmental Monitoring, the Management System for
Environmental Protection Facilities, and the Environmental
Protection Responsibility System;

- Stabilize the operation of environmental protection facilities
and equipment and reduce fluctuations during the process to
ensure up-to-standard discharge;

- Actively carry out trainings related to environmental
protection laws and regulations, emergency plans, operation
of environmental protection equipment and facilities to
improve the professional level.

The exhaust gas arising from coke and chemical production process
of our group mainly consists of particle smoke, sulfur dioxide, nitric
oxide and greenhouse gas, and the solid wastes mainly consist of
tar residue, waste catalyst, waste activated carbon and the coal
dust collected by the dust collection facilities, sludge from the
waste water treatment plant, and domestic wastes. \Waste water
arising from production was recycled for production after treatment
to reduce the impact of discharge on the environment. We
stringently controlled the discharges to ensure effective treatment
of discharges, and took various measures to reduce greenhouse
gas emission and various wastes. Hebei Risun Coking and CNC
Risun Coking (joint venture), with their excellent performance in
environmental protection, were honored as National Green Plants.

AEBETEHRERBEEERE  TERM
HIE - WHREE I

- BUYRENRREEEER: AKEF
RARREEZEERESBEIEH
B AEERMER A BB R
BEFRARARREEILABMEE  SE
A E TN - BIREH - Wilis
BRI BB R R ETRE
HE

- BYTEZENREEEZZNE W
BEsBRBEERZDCRREENE R
WOECRREMEE L HIE)CRREE
HED

- REETRARERE RO TEBE
TRNE) - ERERTE

- BERERRERERER EBISEER-
RRREGRIGETSABIFI - 8277
HEKFE -

REBEERRETIEEBRREREENE
RIEBEEEBNY  —8LH A%
WA ERE - BREVIZEREEM
B BEE(CE - BRI A R R EER hE U &
R BE - B K BRI A B A )5 R AN AR T
RE LEBREELNBEKEREZDA
REE  BTRESKMERRELENT
2 BMEBEEENY  BREKDEE
BERRE  UWERREZBEHRAEREH
MEEEERYNESE - BEERRTIIE
ERBEHE  HEBRETILEEEERE
ERRPREBEECEFTERERETIRR
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R HERERRE

Exhaust Gas
Management
BERE B

2

Sewage Management
REKE IR

Solid Waste
Management
B REE

Establish supporting enclosed coal storage facilities and the dust suppression
and removal facilities such as coal transport, coal pulverizing, coal loading, coke
pushing, coke quenching, coke screening, and ammonium sulphate drying to
reduce dust pollution;

MERR D HMAMERBAREEE K RE HE BE B8 W
RERENE  RERE - BABERE

Adopt advanced and stable desulfurization, denitration, and dust removal
technologies to purify tail gas, including coke oven smoke and reduce pollutant
discharge;

KATELE ETRENONG HE KREIZ FEBEREFIER
RO AT R TR

Collect odorous gas arising from the sewage treatment station with sealing
measures and treat it with biological purification technology to reduce the
impact on the surroundings.
KERIRME AN EREMEZ B MK S KA EF M - RDEE
ERBHTE -

Construct sewage treatment and recycling facilities such as the sewage
treatment station, phenol-cyanogen sewage treatment station, and advanced
treatment station, and recycle up-to-standard water for the production system;
BRTKEEY - BEUTKERY  RERIBMETKEE REARE - HK
IKEER B AR EE R

Construct multi-directional comprehensive sewage recycling pipe network,
and optimize "“water resource” dispatching by serial recycling and classified
utilization to realize comprehensive utilization.

BRSPS KEABMES  BBEREM - HRFIHZTNELBE K
BIR] - BREAFA -

Materials with certain heat or necessary for production such as coal dust,
coke dust, tar residue, acid tar oil, and waste activated carbon are returned to
the production system for comprehensive utilization to prevent the impact of
hazardous wastes discharge on environment;

HE - fEE ShE BER BEUREFEE THREIREEMTNR
# o REEERGGEENA  WILEREDBIBUEKERENZE

Waste lubricant is delivered to a qualified third party for compliant treatment;

BEEEARABEENE=TAREE

Waste catalyst is returned to the plant for treatment or handled in compliance
with the regulations by a qualified third party;
BEECHEMANEERRHAEEENE=TEHREE

Domestic wastes are collected uniformly and periodically delivered to the urban
garbage treatment plant for treatment.

RS- WEEREER TN IFRIESEE
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With respect to emissions in 2018, the performance is as below:

R HERERRE

2018 FHE Y T EHYAE AN T

Category of Emission Unit 2018
ERMES B 2018 5
Total SO, emission Ton 374.59
SO B & e
SO, emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 0.19
SO B E FTr/Ex
Total NOx emission Ton 2,488.66
NOxBEm 48 2 e
NOx emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 1.29
NOx BEWU# & FTr/EBx
Total particle emission Ton 340.52
SRR E s
Particle emission density kg/RMB 10 thousand 0.18
SRR E FTr/ET
Total emission of greenhouse gas emission Ton of CO,e 2,949,395.23
RERBEHNES WE CO,e
Greenhouse gas emission density Ton of CO,e/ RMB 10 thousand 1.53
mERBEENEE WECOe BT
Total sewage discharge Ton 1,515,245.01
VSIKBER AR E e
Total COD discharge Ton 47.40
CODHEmAEE g
Total ammonia nitrogen discharge Ton 2.74
[ATRBRE i
Sewage discharge density Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.79
JIKBERE S W, & T
Generation of hazardous waste Ton 32,070.79
EEBREMELS 7
Density of hazardous waste generation Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.02
BEREDELTE W, &
Treatment rate of hazardous waste % 100
BEREYREXR %
Generation of non-hazardous waste Ton 148,204.19
EBEERVELS e
Density of non-hazardous waste generation Ton/RMB 10 thousand 0.08
REBENELDE i,/ BT
Treatment rate of non-hazardous waste % 100
BEBEREYRIEX %

Note: BSE -

1.

Density refers to the amount of discharge/production divided by business 1.

income.

TEREHNE EEERAEERA -
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Example “GREEN PLANT” PRACTICE OF HEBEI RISUN COKING
= AL IERS AL [ 86 T B

-
-

Hebei Risun Coking, actively responding to the national, provincial, and municipal calls, has been making efforts in such fields
as energy saving, environmental protection, circular economy, and low carbon with green environmental protection as the
guide, and has been improving the environmental quality and ensuring environmental safety to creating a green ecological
enterprise with blue sky, green land, clear water, and fresh air, making it one of the First Green Plants in 2017.

With respect to environmental protection, Hebei Risun Coking adhered to the general thought of “Up-to-standard Pollutant
Discharge, Effective Amount Control, Controlling Environmental Risks, Constructing Compliant Projects, Clean Production
Process, and Recycling Resources”, focusing on advanced treatment of pollution source and improving essential up-to-
standard discharge and emphasizing on the optimization and improvement of environmental protection facilities under the
support of technology, process, and management innovation, and through multiple environmental protection reconstruction
projects, such as enclosure of the coal yard, advanced treatment of coking wastewater, and dry quenching, by replacing the
high-efficiency dust remover in the whole plant, to promote cleaner production in all sectors.

With respect to resources utilization, Hebei Risun Coking fully implemented the energy management modular construction
with the energy management center as the platform and taking the requirements of quality, environmental protection, and
safety under the premises of compliance with national and governmental laws and regulations and standards, incorporating
lean management into the energy management system and promoting the implementation of the energy diagnosis project
under the guideline of energy system diagnosis and energy saving plan. Hebei Risun Coking will emphasize on the dry
quenching project and study and promote the implementation of the ascending pipe waste head utilization project to improve
the utilization efficiency of such energy as waste heat and waste energy, coal gas, steam, electricity and water, maximizing
the energy value.

With respect to recycling economy, Hebei Risun Coking kept improving the processes and technologies and carrying
out resources saving work to further reduce the main resource consumption indicators, increase the resource utilization
efficiency, and reduce wastes discharge based on the idea of green, low-carbon, and recycling development.

REBEERBRZIME  HRE  ZFURTILBEELAEERRRLD  FHE  BRRE  BREE  EREREEER
ANE THRERFEE BEREZE AEXE & K5 REFNRELEELE  2017FRIREHREET

EREREDE BB R EERIT DS RICER RERGEN RERRYE BREBAHR LEBEBR -
ARERNAIWAEREE E—TERNSRRRZAE REERE - U T2 - B aHAXE  RHER
RERWELTE  2RBEERBYRER  BES2HMH  SEEKRERE mRESLERRICEER - 2HE
TRREE -

ERERNAAE  REREBTLATE HGEEEEE RR R2FHTHER  ERRERBMERERMEEER
BET  2EEREREERBCER  HREEERMARRERRR  URREAGZEH - SRR E  mETRER
PEER T HREMERLEERR  IREE LAERANBEE TGRS - THIRSRARE KR 27 8-
KERRMARE  BHREREERAL -

ERREBESE  RB&E KiK BRERES  BSEETTERNEBCNRARERGNTE £ PRERELER
TKRERBERSEIZERBERER  REERNBMENR D EZWHIBER
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RESOURCES SAVING

The Group adheres to the clean development philosophy and
actively implements relevant policies and guidelines such as the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on Conserving Energy
to develop recycling economy and realize efficient resources
utilization. The Group promotes the research and development and
application of new energy, new technology, and new equipment in
the course of the coke and chemical production, and is dedicated
to the construction of the “Ecological Chemical” project to
reduce energy consumption and cost. the Group also actively
promotes green office, ensuring efficient resources utilization by
implementing a series of green office actions.

Green Production

- Establish the energy management center to plan, monitor,
and analyze the balance of consumption of energy, such as
coke oven gas, steam, water and electricity of the production
units through the MES system (Manufacturing Execution
System);

- Formulate management systems in connection with energy
saving, such as the Energy Saving Management System,
the Rated Energy Consumption Management System, the
Detailed Energy Management Appraisal Rules, to ensure
efficient energy management;

- Actively apply the dry quenching technology to reduce water
consumption of wet quenching;

- Strengthen water recycling, such as recycling production
wastewater after advanced treatment to reduce water
consumption;

- Adopt advanced energy saving technology and measures to
reduce coal gas, steam, and electricity consumption, such
as using frequency converter to regulate speed of the motor
of the production system to reduce electricity consumption,
and the full heat exchange of the technological units to realize
graded use of energy to reduce steam consumption.

BNEIR

AEBFAFTREERES BEER(PE
ARKMBELREIRE) B 18RI ET Be PR
T BRERKE  BRERERANMA -
EERRC THEEBIET HEENER
M FREBOFEMER - MOREREI(E
TITREITE - ABRENREFEFE - RIBTF -
AEBERBERSERN  BBEHE
B—RINNEERRNTE  REERS K
FIA -

- RAEREEFL EBMES R
(EESERTER) B EEONT
BEEEBETRERR EAR K E

EheRE T

- HIEERAERAEIRGIE - ACRERENKD
EIEHE)ERERHREESEZ)
(REREEEZAR) FRFFEIRE 12
BRETT

- TERERREER  REREEE
KB IRHHERE |

- IRKHMEENA - IAEERKER
BREEREA  RDKERHERE

- FRREENERERMERER RO K
ROEAUARENER WEERRE
WIRRE SRR RO RE & T8
BraoBRBREENBANA
LD B THHRE
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R HERERRE

Green office

Formulate office lamp lighting instructions, requiring lights off
when leaving;

Reconstruct energy saving of the office by using the voice
control, light control and solar energy and other energy-saving
lamps;

Promote the OA paperless office system;

Promote the remote conference system;

Promote the use of durable goods and minimize the
procurement of disposable goods;

Regulate public vehicle management and promote one car for

REeRQ

HEMAZENRAEAZRA - EX
ANERR

ag

T

i NREETTE R S AR R
KEAR KIS FEIBEE R
HETTOABME I R FRAR
HITREERERLL

BEE MM A m
mHEE

CBERD—RER

RBREEE BE—=E%M-

multipurpose.

With respect to resources consumption in 2018, the performance

is as below:

20184 % - EIRBERET EAERAT

Ton of
standard Ten thousand
coal tons
257,481.00 tonmg  935,696.52 mwhkre 4,810,671.28 W IR 941.65 i
Coal Net purchased electricity ~ Comprehensive energy Total fresh water
B iR SFINEE consumption consumption
RERERE FrEEKAKBEE
Ton of standard coal/ Ton/RMB 10
RMB ten thousand thousand
1,300.20  Tonmg  -332,125.76 aume 2.49 WEE BT 4.88 W, BT
Diesel Net purchased heat Comprehensive energy Fresh water
E SFONBE consumption density consumption density
REREMEREE ek RKEE
37.43 Ton Mg
Gasoline
U
Notes: s -
1. Except for production, the rest of the heat generated by the Group is supplied 1. AEBEENBANBRAREESIN - EEREH ML
to third parties, so the net purchased heat is negative; F=7  BILFINER N BEE
2. Density is the total energy consumption/water consumption except business 2. TERRBERE FAKBEERAEERA -
income.
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R HERERRE

ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES
PROTECTION

The Group, giving full consideration to resource endowment
and environmental bearing capacity, adheres to the principle
of coordinating resources development with environmental
protection, gradually increases the input in environmental
protection, carries out multiple measures to protect the ecological
environment for improving the overall ecological quality and
realizing organic combination of environmental benefit, ecological
benefit, and economic benefit, and focuses on the construction of
green and clean plants and the construction of “Beautiful Risun”.

- For management of environment emergencies, the Group
establishes the environment emergencies management
organization; prepares the environment emergencies
response plan and reports to the environmental protection
department for record; carries out drills of the environment
emergencies response plan to ensure the environmental
safety in case of accident risk;

- Take effective measures for the production, use, storage,
transportation, recycling, disposal, and discharge of
poisonous and hazardous substances to prevent their
leakage, loss, and scattering and soil pollution;

- Monitor the surroundings periodically to prevent
environmental risks timely.

fﬁiﬂ};li, NE /J?T%

REBFRDERERRBARIZE AL -
BRERAZERBREMABANRA -
TEMRERREANE  FARZERIERE
HREIRSE CIRAAERBAREE BEEHIRBN
& ERBMEEER SRR RES &
NITEHZE  BRIR 2HER f%@%h

REBREERMESTIE B TR
RIEEHESTIERE  RHREBR
REMEZER LR TERRRIMN
HE ARRBEESERER  ®R
EWERBATHIRELZSE

EEE-ER -7 E%H B
RE  BINESEEMEFROEM
BRIE M Bﬁiﬁ@ﬁimé& U=
MK R BRLTESRSR

EHFREERRERA > REHHR
EE R o
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TANGSHAN RISUN CHEMICALS CARRIED OUT DRILLS OF HAZARDOUS
=2 45| CHEMICALS LEAKAGE EMERGENCIES TO IMPROVE THE ABILITY TO
HANDLE ENVIRONMENT EMERGENCIES
BLEBLtIRREILARBRESER RERBERSHEIEERD

Example

TO ”Vl PROVE THE In June, 2018, Tangshan Risun Chemicals for further improving the
ability to prevent environment emergencies, organized and carried

ABI LITY TO HAN DLE out the drills of environment emergencies to simulate environment

ENV|RON|V|ENT emergencies caused by fire arising from leakage of benzene tank:
E M E RG E N CI ES Upon the occurrence of leakage, notified the employees to evacuate
immediately and cut off the drain value of clean sewage timely;

B = oo Igi:‘z the rescue crew put on protective clothes and oxygen respirator
j:;E Zjﬁ% iﬁ’gﬁ: and entered the site for leaking stoppage and handling, put out the
Jﬁ/&\}ﬁ% Be jj fire timely and started the valve of the pool in accident finally and

delivered the leakage collected to the pool in accident to prevent
the impact of liquid leakage on the environment. The emergency
drill improved the ability to handle environment emergencies, which
ensures the environmental safety of the surroundings.

RE-—TRERERFEHESDEES - 2018F6 AFEILERBIL
THBHRRBRESHEIVER - BHEAER RSB0 N AGEK
RERBEMHER  RRELER  EXBMASHEERE - K
B A BB F KM PR - BRI F BB #IR - AR RS
EARGEREE  EEERAN  RERZSEHRICOE - HIK
SRRAITZEHOL - HIEARBINEHRBERNTE © IRE
SERESTHRERREMESERER ) BREERELER
\_ BRE-
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HEALTH AND SAFETY
SAFETY PRODUCTION

Safety production is the foundation of sustainable development
of the Group. We stringently complying with laws and regulations
in connection with safety production, such as the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Production Safety, the Regulation
on Work Safety Permits of the People's Republic of China, and
the Regulation on Production Safety of Hebei province, laid a solid
foundation for management, improved the safety risk prevention
and control level, promoted the standardization of safe production,
carried out safety production inspection, and dedicated to
promoted a long-term mechanism for safety production to improve
the safety production management level by improving the safety
management system and institutional system.

During the reporting period, the Group input RMB 62.78 million to
safety production in total, and the 5 production companies were
enterprises of above grade Il of National Standard of Production
Safety.

Safe Operation Management

- Establish safety production committee, implement safety
production laws and regulations, periodically organize
and hold safety session, and coordinate problems of the
subsidiaries in the course of safety production;

- Establish the safety production responsibility system
for all posts of all subsidiaries, levels, departments, and
employees with the person in charge as the core, and fulfill
the responsibilities of the leaders, departments and all
employees, specifying the persons in charge of all posts,
scope of responsibility, list of responsibilities, and formulate
appraisal standards and reward as well as punishment
systems for various safety responsibilities, such as, The
Safety Production and Environmental Assessment Ban,
The Safety and Environmental Protection Risk Mortgage
Management Measures;

- Formulate the management system for safety production
objectives, specifying the objectives and indicators of the
preparation, division, implementation and appraisal etc.

RERZR
REEE

LEEERAEBAUFBELEREMORA - &
PBERET(REAREKMBERZ2EER)
(FRE ARKEMBE L2 4 2 3 ] B H)CH
TER2EERINEERL2EEERE
B oSEEEAR BATELE2EREER
MEERR  RALZRABRBIIEKF - #1T
TEEEESELESR BHR2EERDS
BMARHEELZZEERBET  2EIES
TREEEEKT -

BEHRN AEELE2LEERALSER

6,278B L SRAEM AR ABRRELE A
BEREE( ZRLA ¥

LTEBEER

- RIULEHEETES BRLEEE
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HRIFER ERE
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MEEMULEEESES 2%
FEREHMT  BHAEEMEZEET
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- Regulate the production operations, identify dangerous
behaviors of the employees, dangerous status of the
equipment, and dangerous environmental conditions in the
course of production operations, and work out corresponding
control measures, such as implementing the license system
and work permit system for dangerous fire work and work in
confined space; periodically inspect and repair the facilities
and equipment to ensure safe operation;

- Accomplish safety monitoring, make use of the MES
(Manufacturing Execution System) and control center
to control and monitor the operation of the facilities and
equipment of the production bases and the plants, such as
the pressure and temperature of the coke oven gas, and
the temperature and volume of the inflammable and volatile
substances during operation of the boilers and in the course
of production and storage, and ensure safe and stable
operation of the production system;

- Implement hidden risk identification and control, organize and
carry out hidden risk identification of the subsidiaries daily,
weekly, and monthly, and make analysis and assessment to
determine the grade of hidden risk and take effective control
measures to accomplish closed-loop management;

- Implement three level of safety training and education in
100%;

- Set up warning signs at workplaces and equipment with great
hazards for danger indication and warning, stating the type of
danger, consequence, and emergency measures etc.

Emergency Support

- Establish a safety production emergency management
agency equipped with full-time and part-time rescue teams;

- Formulate the safety production emergency plan, and
formulate emergency response plans or measures for key
posts to form a safety production emergency system;

- Carry out regular inspections, maintenance, and services
of the emergency equipment and materials to ensure their
completeness and reliability;

- Organize drills of safety production emergencies, assess
the effect of drills, revise and improve the emergency plan
and improve the emergency management based on the
assessment results.
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Example XINGTAI RISUN CHEMICALS CO., LTD. CARRIED
=l ME MBS TRREHESKERES

Xingtai Risun Chemicals taking the opportunity of the safety month of
the year, actively carried out various safety activities, including organizing
employees to learn various accident cases, taking part in the competition
of safety skills of Xingtai Production Base and the emergency rescue
drill. Xingtai Risun Chemicals also specially organized the emergency
rescue drill of carbon monoxide poisoning. The whole process of drill
was closely connected and carried out orderly. Upon completion of the
drill, Xingtai Risun Chemicals emphasized the importance of emergency
rescue drill and required all employees participating the drill to make a
summary carefully and learn useful theoretical knowledge about safety
from relevant accident cases, so as to get necessary safety skills and
provide strong support for building “Safe Plants”.

MEMEBETASFL2ARRYE BERARSALEEY  BREAH
ANEEBZRBREHEN 206 LERRLR 2L KM ESRIEE
RE o ppsh o BEPIAB T HERRTSERNRIVERER - BEE
REREERT  BIETE - BREREK B RHE T RSRIERRD

2 WEREELEETHERETAERL AKZBEEHW
EWERY RPRREANTEERAE  THEELENLT 2REE
MR TEI R THRIREE RS -

OUT EMERGENCY RESCUE DRILL

“SAFE PLANTS”
[ %2 TR
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OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND TRAINING

The Group, adhering to the guideline of “focusing on prevention
and combining prevention with control” and stringently complying
with relevant laws and regulations such as the Production Safety
Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases, strengthens the occupational health and safety
management system, strengthens the occupational diseases
prevention and control measures, and periodically organizes
physical examination for employees to ensure the occupational
health of the employees. We also continue to improve the safety
education and propaganda, fully explore the potential of human
resources and implement tiered, multi-channel, and targeted safety
training to improve the safety awareness of the employees and
cultivate the safety philosophy of the employees, so as to improve
the safety technical quality of the employees and lay a solid
foundation for safety production.

Occupational Health Management

The Group evaluates the hazard factors of occupational diseases
in the workplace dynamically, organizes the identification and
detection of occupational disease hazard factors covering all
workplaces, finding out the occupational hazard intensity or
concentration meeting the national standards and industrial
standards, and informs the employees of the results; strengthens
the monitoring of key steps, key posts, and key groups specifically,
carries out special treatment of occupational hazards of key
posts, implements source control and process management,
strengthen health monitoring, and shift the work and post timely
in case of any suspicious symptoms to reduce the incidence
of occupational diseases according to the characteristics of the
coking industry and the types of occupational diseases of the
Group; with respect to personal protection of employees, the
Group provides labor protective supplies and carries out periodic
maintenance or replacement to ensure their normal use based on
different occupational disease hazard factors of different posts; for
workers engaged in operations exposed to occupational disease
hazards, the Group organizes pre-work, on-the-post, and off-post
occupational health examinations stringently in accordance with the
provisions of the safety production supervision and management
department and the health administrative department of the State
Council and inform the employees of the results in writing.

During the reporting period, the Group had no occupational disease.
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Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Organized Special Training on
“Correct Use and Wearing of Labor Protective Supplies”

e B E L TAM T ERERMMELS B ERR I SEE

Safety Training

The Group formulates the Management System for Safety
Education and Training, periodically identifies the demands for
safety education and training, and formulates and stringently
implements and executes the safety training plans for safety
management personnel, special operation personnel, employees,
and new employees, respectively. The persons in charge and
safety production management personnel of the subsidiaries
receive safety production knowledge and management ability
trainings periodically as required by relevant national laws and
only those passing the examination can hold the posts; operators
periodically receive safety education and production skill training to
get familiar with relevant safety production rules and regulations
and safe operation procedures and to ensure that their abilities
meet the requirements of the posts, and those not receiving safety
education and training or failing the examination cannot hold the
posts; new employees and job-transfer staff must receive three-
level safety education and training before work; special operation
personnel can only hold the posts after obtaining special operation
certificate.

During the reporting period, the Group carried out 722 safety
trainings.

22
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Example HEBEI RISUN COKING CARRIED OUT SAFETY TRAINING AND EDUCATION FOR
=5 EMPLOYEES BY MULTIPLE CHANNELS
HEEGEECSRERREIZ2RIEE

During the safety month of 2018, Hebei Risun Coking with the theme
of “Life Foremost and Safe Development”, actively carried out various
safety education and training campaigns to improve the safety quality of
Safety awareness the employees from three aspects, including safety awareness, safety
?i\%‘-\gg‘ knowledge, and safety skills. Hebei Risun Coking strengthened the
philosophy of “There is no trifle for safety” by accident parties sharing
their views, combination of theory with operation, organizing the crew
the watching dynamic pictures of safety accidents, carrying out safety
knowledge competition, making safety to be a habit and promoting
o A A A ; i i
“F %ﬂ AB employees to form the safety behavioral habit consciously.

Safety knowledge

201846 %2 AR HILBBELA EHE L R2BEAETHE -
Safety skills W2 BH 2B RERESHSE BENESBR2HEEY
%2 b A EERARTARLEE - BAENEEARSHERTS  EHE

RIS B ERENR2ENDE  HEZZORBES SR
BlER2E | EHES  RR2KA—BEE REETHEERZS
1T AEIE -
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EMPLOYEE COHESION
BUILDING A DIVERSIFIED TEAM

We fully comply with the national laws and regulations such
as the PRC Labor Law, the PRC Labor Contract Law, and the
Minor Protection Law of the People’s Republic of China etc.,
safeguarding the rights and interests of employees on such aspects
of recruitment, dismissal, promotion, working hours, holiday,
salary and benefits, diversity, discrimination prevention, and equal
opportunities by signing official labor contract with the employees,
maintaining the right to know, right to participate, and right of
supervision of the employees, and rejecting child labor and forced
labor in any form, committing to build an equal and diversified team.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of any
violation of laws due to use of child labor and forced labor, nor
subjected to any action due to employment.

Equal Employment

We focus on the diversity of employees, assessing the qualification
of professionals from compliance, attitude, performance and
ability, assuring equal employment opportunities for all employees,
and preventing any discrimination based on gender, age and
other factors. We adopt a multi-channel recruitment system.
Our recruitment channels include campus recruitment, social
recruitment and internal recruitment. We offer equal opportunities
to all applicants in the course of recruitment, without discriminative
condition based on gender, health, and other factors and advocating
the diversity of employees.

Working Hour, Holiday, Salary and Benefits

We, stringently executing national provisions for working hour,
holiday and salary, safeguard the right to rest and vocation of the
employees, providing day off and statutory holidays in accordance
with the national labor laws, advocating employees to have all
holidays as far as possible, and providing additional paid leave other
than the statutory holidays to employees.

We have formulated a scientific and reasonable remuneration
system and determined salaries of the employees based on such
factors as level, order, business line, and region of the employees.
In order to attract, retain and motivate talents of the Group, we will
organize occupational health examination once a year to ensure
the basic health of the employees; and will provide welfares to
employees during holidays such as the Mid-Autumn Day, Chinese
New Year and International Working Women'’s Day. We will also
organize many recreational and sports activities for the employees,
including travel and birthday parties, enabling the employees to
blend in the big family of Risun and enjoy the warmth of home.
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Preventing Child Labor and Forced Labor

The Group stringently complies with the Provisions on Prohibition
of Child Labor issued by the State Council and formulates the
Management Provisions for Anti-Forced Labor to stringently
prevent child labor, forced labor and other illegal labor. The Group
adheres to the legal working hours of eight hours a day or forty
hours a week and sets up the overtime and holiday system to
prevent forced or compulsory labor and ensure reasonable working
hour of the employees.

With respect to employment in 2018, the performance is as below:

HBETREGIST

AEBERETEBRERHOCELERE
THRE)  RSHIE T RBH %8 EE
MRE)  BRERET - BHl53 MEMIE
FERIRR  BHEFE/VNEREFEN /)
B AATE TAFRF [ - YRR E DNLFRRHIE -
BRIRENRT|SE  RESTARETH -

20185 E - BT EBEHHMMGERMT

2018

Number of employees
BT 48

Percentage of Male Employees
FEHB T

Percentage of Female Employees

ZEB T A

Percentage of employees with senior titles
= R B B Tl

Percentage of employees with medium titles

RARETE B Tl

Percentage of employees with junior titles
AR5 B TP

Percentage of contract labor
ERIEIA

Percentage of outsourcing labor
SBI5IKE 8 Tl

Percentage of employees under 30 years old
30mATE LM

Percentage of employees from 31 to 40 years old
31-40B% B T hl

Percentage of employees from 41 to 50 years old
41-50 % B Tl

Percentage of employees above 50 years old
5058 A _E B Tl

Percentage of employees from Hebei Province

AdEE AR E T )

Percentage of employees from regions outside Hebei Province
LA AN & B T )

Percentage of minority employees

LERKEE TG DI

Annual turnover rate of employees
BTFERKLLE
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3,574 (Person A)

85%

15%

1.06%

9.04%

22.89%

100%

0%

31.14%

48.07%

15.98%

4.81%

93.2%

6.8%

1.85%

9.43%
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PROMOTING DEVELOPMENT OF EMPLOYEES

The Group, under the guidance of “Building the Talent Team of
Risun and Accelerate the Growth of Talent”, enriched the training
contents and innovated the training methods by established a
multi-level comprehensive training management system for the
purpose of providing training and learning throughout the whole
career path of the employees, reserving knowledge and experience
for the growth and development of the employees and improving
comprehensive quality of the employees to meet the ever-changing
job requirements and adapt to long-term development of the
Group. We also continues to improve the employee development
and promotion mechanism to provide a smooth path for the
development of employees and build an equal and just talent
development platform, so as to motivate employees to achieve
self-value, post value and social value and build a high-quality talent
team.

Employee Promotion

The Group formulates such policies as the Administrative
Measures for Cadres Selection and Promotion and the
Administrative Measures for Employee Career Path etc. to improve
the employee development system and specify the qualification
standards for professionals. We have established the “dual-
channel” development mechanism for employees taking the
management route and professional route. The employees can
choose a development path suitable for their post according to the
post grading system and based on their own abilities and wills.

Employee training

We have formulated the Training Management System and
established a training system combining internal training with
external training to foster the growth and development of the
employees. The Group provides corresponding study programs for
different levels, professional demands and talent characteristics,
and further strengthens the construction of the talent team by
organizing trainings for new middle-level cadres, trainings for
reserve cadres, trainings for new employees and internship
programs, apprenticeship programs, foreman trainings, and
technical trainings for every post.

We have established the learning platform of “Risun University”
to carry out multi-level training for employees of different orders
and levels according to the development strategy and the results
of training demand investigation, provided trainings on occupational
qualities and standards, professional knowledge and regulations,
general technology and ability, and leadership to help the
employees with their study and growth.
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We engages external professional instructors for employee training ~ FFIEEFHIN T HE SR AE THEE - b
and dispatches employees to non-academic professional ability K& 8 T2MELEHBENHEERE DS -
training. And we also actively cooperate with universities, such as  FIFF - R FIEA LRI AZE - & Efr - &
Hebei University of Science & Technology, Xingtai University, North ~ Jb38 T A2 « 3R[5I8 T A 2% S AR FHE
China University of Science and Technology and Shenyang Ligong & & #EH ARII] - [RE+ UL SEBZ
University, to promote on-the-job education such as the “bachelor & - EBETIRAIEREL HEEZS &
class” and “master class”, helping the employees to improve their & B AEIA K2 BT BT ©

theoretical quality, professional quality, comprehensive skill, and

cutting-edge technology.

EMPLOYEE TRAINING SYSTEM OF THE GROUP
AREETHEIER

e |mplement learning programs of role transformation, management ability
& 1E g improvement, performance management improvement, team building and
empowerment for new cadres, enabling them adapt to the new posts quickly and
promote the team to carry out businesses and realize achievements.

HEFRBESTHERACER TRENRA RNSEXERE  BHER
Mt E2BHEE  EHRBBRBRBEEFOEC T ESEAFARER BR

e G e Carry out studies and trainings from unification of cultural values, improvement
By of front-line management skills, and strengthening professional knowledge and

complete the assessment and promotion of a certain percentage of reserve

cadres.

HE—LEES RA—GREERE RCEEINZE T AHAREZTHESE

BR —FLAln#ERBNETMNE -

e Keep promoting the training of foreman and the standard and visual management

Management

Foreman

W4 £ of crews, absorbing advanced management methods and actively promoting
construction of the crews and laying a solid foundation for the production
system.

SEHETIARNBERNIAREL  ATR(CERTE  RREENERTE
RIGHEEIIARR  FELEBRORE -

Front-line Employees e Carry out study and education of various forms through assessment,
HEST competition, practice, one point lessen, morning meetings, regular meetings and
handover meetings;
BRI BRE RE - —EBR RElexEgRRZENANEZEYE
e |mplement operational skill certification system for key posts and advocate
employee of one post to master multiple skills to promote the workplace learning
atmosphere of all front-line operators and create an environment of training
talents on the post.
R ECETRIERAERIEE  TEE—MEe HEXB—RREELHE
EEMNRE - BT BEAKTBIRIE -

e Realize all-around and systematic directions from mindset shift, cultural
Nel/v Employees integration, instructions to posts, internship, and apprenticeship.

MARRT fEDAEEE LB  BREAES BT HSES AR A
Rz sE -
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Example XINGTAI PRODUCTION BASE HELD THE CADRES TRAINING CLASS JOINTLY
ELY] WITH XINGTAI POLYTECHNIC COLLEGE
& £ EEERM e BRSNSk S RS I

For promoting the construction of the cadres team of Xingtai Production
Base, effectively improving the management ability of assistant cadres,
and motivating the learning enthusiasm, Xingtai Production Base held
the assistant cadres training class jointly with Xingtai Polytechnic
College. The training class adopted the training form integrated with
theory teaching, interactive training, and sand table simulation to make
assistant cadres to keep in mind the “Two Hows", fully realize the
importance of the study and put them into action, proposing good
suggestions on management of the department and playing the role of
mainstay in practice, being able to undertake tasks alone and making
new contributions to the development of the Group.

RIEEMeEER RSB HHEER  ARIEAERBIMEELE N - &
BBEBEN MELERERBAMEBERMBHREEFRNR T BELH
ERIEDIE - BTSRRI MR AR EEIEI - D RERN —RBeEIITT
N BEEEERHEBELBE I MENT] - TORABIRNREENE
2% WAMBBURA  HHPERETHEREGNEZZER UEE
ERTERHERRETNER  BE 0 AAKEERBEOFNE
& o
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With respect to employee training in 2018, the performance is as 20184 [E » B T 7 EAVE LT ¢

below:
Number of employees trained 3,574 (Person A)
RINEITH
Percentage of employees trained 100%
XINEITBED L
Percentage of male employees trained 85%
SHEE T XA
Percentage of female employees trained 15%
ZME TRl
Total employee training sessions 4,450 (Times JX)
BB THBX
Total number of employees trained 60,410 (Person AJR)
BB THRAR
Amount of training expenditures 56.57 (Ten thousand & t)
BB HEHE
Total training hours of employees 9,436 (Hour /)E)
BTHEIERE
Average training time per employee 2.97 (Hour /)\B¥/person A)
BIRIIFHRH
Total training hours of senior employees and above 399 (Hour /M)
SHEEAEETIRIGEER
Average training hours of senior employees and above 4.69 (Hour /NEF/person A)
SRR LB TEIFEHRE
Total training hours of middle-level employees 1,725.5 (Hour /)NEf/person A)
FREIXIBRR
Average training time per middle-level employee 12.69 (Hour ‘)\EF/person A)
R B TR F R
Total training hours of junior employees 7,311.5 (Hour /)E§/person A)
THEIXBER
Average training time per junior employee 2.3 (Hour ‘)ES/person A)

IR E TXITFHEK

118 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report
RIE g RERHRE

ENHANCING CARE FOR EMPLOYEES

The Group attaches great importance to and cares for the work
and life of the employees and pays attention to humanistic care,
actively solving practical difficulties of the employees, carrying out
warmth projects, and caring about the life of the employees. For
example, the Group made donation to sick employees in hospital,
expressed regards to employees with difficulties in life, helped
employees in difficulties with the education of their children,
expressing sincere regards of the Company, helping employees
to overcome difficulties and face their life bravely with positive
and optimistic attitude, and improving the sense of happiness and
belonging of the employees. We also organized various recreational
and sport activities, providing opportunities to employees to show
their talents and relieve their stress in happiness, so that they can
continue their work and life better and more vigorously.

Assistance to Employees

We provide assistance to employees in difficulties, try our best to
relive their life stress, express our regards to employees in poor
family in special holidays, help employees in difficulties with the
education of their children, and donating to employees’ family
member with serious disease.

BEATHE

AREERAERFBALOE THTHEREE
ERANEE BREIPNAEIHRRER
e ANARZAEEE  VEROBT
TR Bl BEAERERBT - BEAEE
REBT  BERRHERTIF2HE  REARQ
AIHETHRERE EPETELEE
BB NBRES - BBmE A - 12
FHETITFRENFEBER - ASRMAAHE
BEVNEBIXNEAY KETIRRTA
TREHEE  ERETRE  BEHERAN
BT -

BETEHK

KMERBETHEER RE2HRES
ITWEEEN cEZHHEMBERRE
BT EHREHSBIRETFTLZLE B0
BETEERRE -

The Labor Union of Hebei Risun Coking organized a visit to employees in
extremely poor families and retired employees before the Chinese New Year
MG ELISEHERERE TREMRKET
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-

Hebei Risun Coking Held the Summer
Karaoke Grand Prix of 2018
SAEERS B L SR 2018 FIEE L OK K #E &

ULBH B 52 e IX

”%é

Cangzhou Risun Chemical Limited. Organized the
“Infinite Chess Delight” Competition of 2018
BMERE A TERARMAM 2018 #H LM EE |ZMHLLE

Recreational and Sports Activities N EEEH

To encourage employees to keep the healthy life style, the ATHEEIREFEEMEEHIN A&
Group periodically organizes and holds various recreational and BEFEHAEHSHESSEN  PEK - E K
sport activities, including basketball, badminton, table tennis, and Bk - HiEE S IE RS  DEE T ¥H4E
chess and card to enrich the spare time of employees, promote & ' R B T/BRR BME TREH -
communication among employees, increase employee cohesion, 7#aIEH BEES - TESEHHEHE L -
and hold team competitions which are good for physical and mental €3k ~ £~ #07 ~ P48 - BEKEHSH %
health during the anniversary of the Company, National Day, and S UHEELLE D5 7T EINES UL
New Year, such as mountain climbing, basketball, long-distance /& * & INE &R B DAL A °
running, tug-of-war, rope skipping and fun activities, enriching the

spare time life of the employees and improving the team cohesion

and centripetal force.
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HIGH-QUALITY PRODUCTS

The Group stringently complies with the laws and regulations such
as the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Product Quality and
has established the awareness of “Quality First” and carries out
the whole-process quality management to improve the quality of
products and services. \We adhere to the principle of honesty, and
identify labels of the coal chemical products with true and accurate
information as required. We adhere to the operation philosophy
of “Market Oriented and Customer First”, actively get to know
problems of the customers in procurement and use of the coke
and chemical products and provide solutions to customers timely.
Regulate customer data management and attach importance to the
protection of customer privacy.

During the reporting period, we did not receive any complaints from
customers concerning products and services.

PRODUCT QUALITY MANAGEMENT

The Group continues to improve the quality management system,
strengthens product research and development and design,
strictly controls raw material procurement, implement standard
operations, realizes whole-process quality control, and keeps
improving the quality management work. The Group stringently
executes and complies with relevant industrial standards for
coke and chemical products, such as the Coke for Metallurgy
(GB/T1996-2017), the Coal Tar (YB/T5075-2010), the Crude Benzene
(YB/T5022-2016), and Industrial Methanol (GB338-2011).

During the reporting period, the customer satisfaction of coke and
chemical products of the Group reached 100%.

— Formulate the ISO9001 quality management system covering
all subsidiaries;

— Formulate a complete quality management and control and
appraisal system, such as the Regulations on Product Quality
Management and Control, the Quality Control Points and
Appraisal Methods;

— Stringently control the input indicators of raw and auxiliary
materials, increase the inspection frequencies of incoming
raw and auxiliary materials. and accept by concession or return
those failing the random inspection and test according to the
test results;

— Set up the quality management file for coal suppliers to monitor
the coals supplied by the coal suppliers, ranking the suppliers
every month and eliminating disqualified suppliers :
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— Regulate the technological operations to ensure smooth
operations and stable quality of the products and intermediate
products.

— Stringently comply with relevant operation procedures during
the production, establish the management systems and
strengthen the examination of steady process operation.

— Organize quality control point inspections periodically and issue
notice of rectification for hidden quality risks which may cause
quality risks and supervise the rectification, accomplishing
closed-loop management °

AFTER-SALE SERVICE AND PROTECTION OF
CONSUMERS’ RIGHTS AND INTERESTS

The Group stringently complies with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Protecting
Consumers’ Rights and Interests and formulates the Rules for
Customer Service and Internal Requirements to ensure high-quality
product and after-sale service. We appoint professional customer
service team to visit the production bases of major customers and
collect feedback about the products and services, get to know the
operation and demands of the customers timely, so as to provide
better services and meet specific demands of the customers.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY AND BRAND PROTECTION

The Group attaches great importance to intellectual property
and patent protection. Our trademarks, patents, trade secretes
and other intellectual properties are important properties of
the Company. During the reporting period, the Group was not
subjected to any dispute, claim and action concerning intellectual
property and brand protection.
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- Intellectual property protection

The Group abides by patent application, management and
utilization fully in accordance with the policies and laws
concerning patent and copyright, protects patent assets, and
promotes inventions and innovations We also formulate
the Patent Management System to specify the patent
management responsibilities, the application and handling
procedures, and the requirements for licensed use and
protection; with respect to technical confidentiality, we
formulate the Confidentiality Management System to keep
the data and information about research and development,
technical import, and technical innovation confidential,
requiring maintaining the confidentiality of secrets arising
from the production, research and development, design,
scientific exchange, and technological introduction and keep
such secrets in accordance with the File Administrative
Measures.

- Brand protection

The Group formulates the Visual Image Recognition System
Handbook and the Brand VI Manual for uniform planning
and management of advertisements and trademarks in
accordance with relevant national regulations such as the
Company Law, the Trademark Law, and the Advertising Law
of the People's Republic of China, so as to keep enhancing
the brand value and give full play to the marketing functions
to make brand management and marketing more scientific
and standard and protect the enterprise, product and service
reputations.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group carefully fulfills the anti-corruption responsibilities
stringently in accordance with relevant laws and regulations
such as the Criminal Law of the People's Republic of China, the
Company Law of the PRC, and the Interim Provisions for Prohibiting
Commercial Bribery, and carries out multi-level anti-corruption and
pro-cleanness education and obtains excellent achievements in
anti-corruption by improving the supervision system, deepening
the system construction, and upgrading risk prevention and control
measures.

During the reporting period, the Group was not aware of nor
received notices of cases involving violation of laws and regulations
due to commercial bribery, blackmail, fraud or money laundering.

- AEERRE

AEBzEETHEREN  EEER
E AR R BOA R - IR E MG -
EIEMAMA - REBNEE - (REH
BREIE - R MIBIE T (&R 5
E)REENEIRRE - BEMPHER
2 HINFRIE R RRERNRR
wifrR=m S E - HAFIHE T RE B
BIE) - EIETE - BT SIE ~ AT elET
ENENBBREEENREET TR
EoOBREARE T R B
R BT sERE AT FHE
TRE - WIR(EREEIEDRE -

YL
AEEREHEARXMBECATE)
(AR TIKES R FRRE @A
B HECRB R BRI 2T X5
EVIF)HES  BmiRa— R8N
BE - TERMmEEE ToRE
MG EHREE - EmEEEMTISE
HITEEMMEE  RE RED
¥ EmBERBEE-

R&ES

REB BB T(REARLMBERZEN S
FARAMBRBEBNE LXK
TRNETRE)SHBERES  REE
ERBMEL BBTEEERH R
EER - FHRRERD R RS ERS

REBERHE  RARBRIERERT
R o

BEHR AEERMZT LB BHEHE
B DR BRFRMARBEFERELRNT
HEA

mEBEEEAERAT 2018 F | 123



Environmental, Social, and Governance Report
RIE g RERHRE

Strengthen the institutional systems and formulate 22
systems such as the Honesty and Self-discipline System,
Provisions for Basic Behavioral Red Line of Employees,
the Full Whistle Blowing and Reasonable Proposal System
etc. to provide powerful institutional guarantee for the anti-
corruption work of the Company;

Employees on key posts sign on the honesty responsibility
agreement, requiring employees to comply with the basic
principles of honesty and trustworthiness, equality and
justice, compliance with regulations, making no personal
gain, interest-based disqualification, and information privacy,
and prohibiting any form of bribery, blackmailing, fraud, and
money laundering;

Enter into the Anti-Commercial Bribery Agreement with
the suppliers to regulate business cooperation prevent and
prohibit commercial bribery and unfair competition and
protect mutual legal rights and interests;

Clear the whistle blowing channel, provide whistle blowing
channels by email, telephone, and interview. The supervision
and audit department verifies relevant information
immediately upon receipt of the whistle blowing and carries
out investigations or special audit as the case may be, and
handles in accordance with relevant provisions of the internal
audit system if facts about corruption are identified,;

Carry out anti-corruption education and carry out anti-
corruption warning education and training during the induction
training of employees, weekly dispatching meeting and
monthly regular meeting to raise the awareness of anti-
corruption of the employees by multiple means such as
internal case sharing.
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SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group attaches great importance to green supply chain
management and selects the suppliers and contractors of the
supply chain in accordance with prudent principles and strict
standards, not only giving consideration to product quality, service
ability and enterprise reputation, but also the philosophy and
actions in assuming social responsibilities such as execution of
the QHSE standards and labor standards. We adheres to the
philosophy of “Win-Win Cooperation and Mutual Development”,
implements centralized, uniform, classified and level-to-level
supplier management, strengthens training and supervision,
optimizes performance appraisal, and implements whole-process
and dynamic management of the supply chain from admission to
exit to ensure normal performance of the economic contracts.

SUPPLIER MANAGEMENT

We have formulated the Administrative Measures for Supplier
Assessment, the Supplier Dynamic Assessment System, and other
management systems to specify the introduction, approval and
maintenance, assessment, screening process and punishment
for violations of suppliers, so as to ensure performance of the
businesses under the principle of safety and green. We attach
great importance to the environmental protection during the
production and transportation of purchased products and terminate
the contract timely according to the laws if the supplier is found
to breach social and environmental policies during execution of
the contract, so as to avoid environmental and social risks in the
supply chain. For suppliers engaged in misconducts, the Company
will give a warning or criticize in a circulated notice and impose a
fine according to the circumstances; in case of gross violation, the
Company will disqualify the supplier permanently and investigate
legal responsibilities when necessary. We will also organize forums
and business analysis meeting to train the suppliers, so as to
improve the quality of the suppliers.

SUPPLIER SCREENING AND APPROVAL

The Group investigates the qualification, safety, environmental
protection and other aspects of the suppliers in the course of
screening, and classifies the suppliers. We requires employees
to give priority to the suppliers in the supplier database in case of
procurement.
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The Group organizes annual review of the suppliers of the previous
year at the beginning of each year, assessing and scoring the
technical indicators, price, quality, delivery time, and service of
the suppliers, and classifies the suppliers by the final scores into:
disqualified supplier, qualified supplier, and excellent supplier.
During the reporting period, the Group had about 850 suppliers
which all comply with the supplier screening procedures and
requirements of the Group.

DISTRIBUTION OF SUPPLIERS IN DIFFERENT REGIONS
TRt E f R

M TRMERHER S H AR R M ARe! -

1. Other provinces H & %
2. Hebei Province i/ it &

3. Shanxi Province L84

4. Shandong Province 14
5. Tianjin X)Z

6. Beijing 3L %

7. Jiangsu Province jT#5&
8. Liaoning Province EZEH

9. Zhejiang Province #T/ T4
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HER AREEHMESHER - REB
W AEEHERARAB0FK - HEREA
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20%
37%
16%
9%
4%
4%
4%
3%

3%

Note: The distribution of suppliers in different regions is based on supplier registration statistics.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group, starting from and aiming to “Returning What is Taken
from the Society to the Society”, carried out charity and public
benefit activities in helping and supporting the poor, donating and
supporting education, and earthquake relief work, and actively
organized employees to take part in the volunteer activities and
public welfare activities to establish harmonious and win-win
relationship with the society and realize the unification of social
interests and economic interests.
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Xingtai Production Base Supported the
Poverty Alleviation Work of Dongtun Village
MetEEEB HARERE

CARRYING OUT PRECISE POVERTY ALLEVIATION
SOLIDLY

The Group, fully complying with the requirements of the spirit of
precise poverty alleviation of the Central Party Committee and the
State Council, actively assumes social responsibilities and takes
part in the poverty alleviation. In 2018, Xingtai Production Base
responding to the Implementation Program of Precise Poverty
Alleviation of “100 Enterprises Helping 100 Villages” of Xingtai City
issued by Xingtai Municipal Federation of Industry and Commerce
and Xingtai Municipal Poverty Relief Office, became a pair with
Dongtun Village, Dongzhao Town, Guangzong County. On the basis
of sufficient investigation and study, combined with actual situation
of the base, solving the problems in square, drainage, dike, swag,
adjustment of planting structure which were closely connected
with the villagers but restricted the development for a long time and
could not be solved by villagers, and seeking for welfares for the
villagers.

DONATING AND SUPPORTING EDUCATION WIDELY

We attach great importance to the development of the educational
business, caring for the growth of the next generation and
actively donating and supporting the education. In 2018, the
Group purchased teaching materials and stationeries for Jiaohua
Primary School and Maying Primary School of Dingzhou City;
Xingtai Production Base carried out the “Gold Autumn Education
Assisting” activity which had raised RMB 80 thousand in total in
four years and assisted 40 students from the poor families of the
community to go to college.
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ACTIVELY CARRYING OUT COMMUNITY PUBLIC BEmBER N
SERVICE

For raising the safety and environmental protection awareness of AEEHEREENLTE2RRFEEH S
the community residents, improving the ability of the community HEEREEEEE B RREEL D &
residents to handle emergencies and their self-defensive abilities, E4FEMENHLRIRE  MAatEREAE
and creating a green and harmonious community environment, i%ﬁﬁﬁlﬁi‘%ﬁﬁ EiRHELE  RREML
Xingtai Production Base organized a volunteer service team which B AR EE/ES)  BiBHIEIE - RIS ES
carried out public service publicity of safety and environmental &fﬁi BRELSN RBAEHERNZS
protection in the community and improved the safety and EiRREH -

environmental protection awareness of the locals by banners,

posters and on-site explanations.

el XINGTAI PRODUCTION BASE ASSISTED THE
Y CONSTRUCTION OF LOCAL COMMUNITY
= MetEEEBHEBTRER

An enterprise cannot survive and develop without the support of
good relationship with the mass. In recent years, Xingtai Production
Base of the Group adhered to the win-win cooperation with private
enterprises and returned to the locals through the government,
extending the development dividend to the people around and of the
counties of Xingtai City. Xingtai Production Base actively took part in
local special and economic construction from the “719" flood-fighting
and emergency rescues to helping and supporting the poor, and from
road hardening and landscaping to village resettlement. On the eve of
the Chinese New Year of 2018, Xingtai Production Base, cared for the
poor people such as the old party members, military vet, “NINA” and
people with serious disease of nearby villages, and organized a visit to
them and sent rice, oil and other necessities to them.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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Deloitte.

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA RISUN GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Risun Group Limited (formerly known as “China Risun Coal
Chemicals Group Limited”, the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “"Group”) set out on pages 135
to 274, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
December 31, 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
("IASB") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the IASB. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

ERESTEE (3

Key audit matter

REBRTER

Revenue recognition from contracts with customers

BEFAHWKTER

We identified revenue recognition from contracts with
customers as a key audit matter because the amount
is significant to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income. Furthermore,
revenue from contracts with customers is a key
performance indicator of the Group and therefore there
is a high inherent risk of misstatement.

EmEREPEANRERRS —BERETEE B
7%%}5/:.\%’Juﬁzﬁﬂﬁﬂf\?’m\ﬁﬁﬁ&ﬁi\ﬁﬂiﬁh&ﬁﬁ%i
BRI BPEAOKET EEEMEREA xﬁt?a
2 At FEERR E’]?nlﬁﬂ g o

As disclosed in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group recognized revenue from
contracts with customers of RMB20,583,079,000 for
the year ended December 31, 2018.

WGV BRERMT6MEE - E5EBEREE
2018F 12 ABMBILEFENTEFPEAREAARSE
20,583,079,000 7T °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
EENETNMEERERETSE

Our audit procedures in relation to revenue recognition
from contracts with customers included:

EREPANWERRNETIZF R

° Assessing the key controls relevant to revenue
recognition from contracts with customers;

o  FHMEEFFPANWSERMEMA BRI

o Performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of the unit sales price, gross profit
margin, production volume, material and power
consumption, and production utilization rate;

e HITHONMBEFIHBELEE ENX -EE M
HEERRERMNBAENGIEN

° Obtaining confirmations for the sales to the major
customers;

s FHTIBEPHIHEEINE

° Checking, on a sample basis, the recorded
transactions by examining the underlying
supporting evidences such as invoices, receipt
notes, final settlements and other documents;

o %m* ﬁéﬁﬁ)\ﬁﬁx% ZE A FER (N
2 WEE BREERAMXHE)

o Performing cutoff procedures by selecting
samples of sales recognized close to the year end,
agreeing the date of revenue recognition to third
party support, such as receipt notes, to confirm
sales are recognized according to contract terms.

e EEBRAFACEIANPESEANTEHILRER
ERE-FZFER(WMKES) ZHKERERB
HAER & R A0 TE B9 SH B MR IR — B o
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B 2 BT R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B YR RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
for the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Yam Siu Man.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
March 29, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

J»Zl‘lilj: ﬁll&

For the year ended December 31, 2018

LAt 2 i Wi 2

HZE2018F 12 A31 BHILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
M FE AR¥T T AREF T
Revenue from contracts with EFEEHWE
customers 6 20,583,079 18,658,278
Cost of sales and services $HE K AR A A (17,173,159) (16,653,039)
Gross profit EF 3,409,920 2,005,239
Other income b A 7 162,099 212,639
Other gains and losses H by & B 1R 8 119,252 (34,551)
Net impairment losses reversed BEE (%R BEEE
(recognized) FEE 9 49,705 (3,196)
Selling and distribution expenses HE MDA (727,833) (700,264)
Administrative expenses TEAX (369,050) (283,861)
Listing expenses EHAX (24,562) (11,694)
Profit from operations rERF 2,619,531 1,184,312
Finance costs & A AR 10 (596,765) (624,238)
Share of results of associates oAl (/NI 89,150 60,350
Share of results of a joint venture DME—REEDEEE 548,455 225,519
Profit before taxation B B1 A1 i A 11 2,660,371 845,943
Income tax expense S X 13 (533,358) (80,370)
Profit for the year FEREF 2,127,013 765,573
Other comprehensive (expense) Hih2mE (B &
income
Item that may be reclassified HEr[fEEF 7 E B
subsequently to profit or loss: HIEA -
Exchange differences arising on MEGINETEE £/
translating foreign operations &R =% (17,711) 21,311
Other comprehensive (expense) FEEME2E (X)W
income for the year (17,711) 21,311
Total comprehensive income FEXHRZHAE
for the year 2,109,302 786,884
Profit for the year attributable to:  FE{5FEEF :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZE N 2,088,668 754,674
Non-controlling interests IFER = 38,345 10,899
2,127,013 765,573
Total comprehensive income for E{HEEEHEUNEHAEE :
the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETE ¥ DN 2,070,957 775,985
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 2 38,345 10,899
2,109,302 786,884
Basic earnings per share BREFTBRN(AR¥ET)
(RMB yuan) 14 0.63 0.24
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Ao B R LA

At December 31, 2018 12018412 A31H

2018 2017
20184 20174
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BT 5 AR®FT T ARETF T
Non-current assets RBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB RRE 15 9,406,195 8,976,237
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 16 1,099,735 1,116,206
Goodwill (RS 17 31,808 31,808
Intangible assets ﬁiﬁ?ﬁ? 18 74,425 52,775
Interests in associates NS R RIS 19 451,311 380,161
Interests in a joint venture E’\ REEPENER 20 853,486 671,677
Available-for-sale (“AFS") financial AEHESmEE
assets 21 - 23,000
Financial assets at fair value through 2 QA R EFF ABZRE
profit or loss (“FVTPL") CREE 22 76,017 93,288
Other long term receivables and H R AR R TR FOR
prepayments 23 63,060 108,403
Deferred tax assets EETIAE E 24 289,249 340,481
Restricted bank balances X R AR 1T SRR 27 128,000 313,140
Amounts due from related parties JFeE i e 39(c) - 286,720
12,473,286 12,393,896
Current assets REEE
Inventories rEe 25 1,009,035 807,490
Income tax prepayments TERT TS L 3,787 5,406
Trade and other receivables 5 Kk H b EWRIE 26 1,021,464 3,629,797
Trade and bills receivables measured &2 Q 7B A E M2
at fair value through other Wt ERNE SR
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)  FIE N EWEE 26 3,179,295 -
Prepaid lease payments FENEERE 16 27,378 27,100
Amounts due from related parties JE U Fa B 5 SRIE 39(c) 675,244 1,529,982
AFS financial assets A ESRERE 21 - 31,220
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARERABRD
TRUEE 22 286 11,118
Restricted bank balances Z PR BIRTT4E 88 27 3,453,297 2,803,055
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFED 28 759,037 599,987
10,128,823 9,445,155
Current liabilities REBEE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRASEFABREA
TRAaf 22 448 68
Trade and other payables %Z%&ﬁmﬁ ERT IR 29 6,528,943 6,646,553
Contract liabilities SHEE 30 1,074,689 1,117,645
Income tax payable fﬁﬁﬁ SHt 388,842 104,159
Bank and other loans HRITREMERK 31 7,618,022 7,348,790
Obligations under finance leases mMEMREHE 32 23,616 31,917
Amounts due to related parties JE <t BA Bt 5 FR0E 39(c) 779,512 702,146
16,414,072 15,951,278
Net current liabilities REBEERE (6,285,249) (6,506,123)
Total assets less current liabilities #EERBABAE 6,188,037 5,887,773
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
IRE B ER

At December 31, 2018 72018412 A31H

2018 2017
20184 2017 F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B e ARET T ARET T
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank and other loans RITREMEFK 31 1,272,195 2,431,422
Obligations under finance leases & ERIE 32 936 24,659
Deferred income IR FE U A 33 68,703 47,999
Trade and other payables B 5 & E b JEA 5B 29 68,314 218,192
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 24 64,866 55,792
1,475,014 2,778,064
NET ASSETS EEFE 4,713,023 3,109,709
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EeRi#E
Share capital & s 34 87,123 80,600
Reserves (E] 35 4,516,717 2,935,790
Total equity attributable to owners 2 TG A B{G R
of the Company EEE 4,603,840 3,016,390
Non-controlling interests FERER 109,183 93,319
TOTAL EQUITY MRS 4,713,023 3,109,709

The consolidated financial statements on pages 135 to 274 were  HF 135 E 274 EFiEG A B REREES
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 20194 3 829 H #t/6 & 154 T 2 30 f LA

March 29, 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: TATREEZEZ:
Yang Xuegang Han Qinliang
BEM CEED
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
o EFE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

A HE 2 B 5%

For the year ended December 31, 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31 BHILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

NG N
Foreign
currency Non-
Share  Share  Merger Reserve  Safety translation Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve fund fund  reserve  profits Total interests  equity
e Re 2R
REx BBEE AHEE HEEE 22EE EXRG Al @it BE 4R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARBTT ARETT ARETR
(Note 34)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)  (Note 35)
(Mskaa)  (WiE3s) (W3Ess) (Wsk3s)  (P33s)  (MsEss)
Balance at January 1, 2017 RN2017%1 A1 RES 80600 70433 7i3726 151608 25134  (42,080) 1569847 2629262 82420 2,711,682
Profit for the year EERH - - - - - - TB4674  ThA674 10899 765,573
Other comprehensive income £t 2N & - - - - - 2031 - 2031 - N3
Deemed distrbution tothe ~ RIERERER AT

immediate holding company 7 (it a)

(note a) - - (388857 - - - - (388857 - (388857)
Nettransfertosafetyfund ~ FEHZZ2ES - - - - 98m - 987 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund EVEHEES - - - 56308 - - (56308 - - -
Balance at December 31,2017 F20174612A31 8% 80600 70433 384869 207916 35006 (20,775 2,258,341 3016390 93319 3,109,709
Adjustments (note 3 2 (it3) - - - - - - 438 3% - 43
Balance atJanuary 1,2018  HA2018%1 A1 R%&R 80600 70433 384869 207916 35006 (20,775 2,263943 3011992 93319 3105311
Profit for the year ER&R - - - - - - 2,088,668 2088668 38345 2,127,013
Other comprehensive expense £t 2R X - - - - - (1 - (1 - (mm
Ordinary shares issued BEEER 6,523 405516 - - - - - 412,099 - 412,099
Capital contributionfroma~~ —&FERBRTE

non-controlling shareholder - - - - - - - - 2,250 2,250
Nettransfer to safetyfund [ FEHZZ2E4 - - - - (28) - 28 - - -
Transfer to reserve fund EVZERES - - - 14332 - - (1435) - - -
Dividends to theimmediate ~ WERERA AMRE

holding company (note 36) & (i ££36) - - - - - - (891,148) (891,148) - (891,148)
Dividends toa non-controling  M—%3FERRRAKS

shareholder 2k - - - - - - - - (4131 (24731)
Balance at December 31,2018 H2018%12 331 B&s: 87123 475949 384869 222268 34978  (38,486) 3,437,139 4,603,840 109,183 4,713,023
Note: B 5T -

a. The amounts were accounted for as deemed contribution received from and a. e BIRAHeEEARY AEEEERAT

distribution made to the immediate holding company under merger basis of
accounting as set out in note 2.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

AR Bl e &

For the year ended December 31, 2018

HZE2018F 12 A31 BHILFE

2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®FT T ARETF T
Operating activities ReETEH
Profit before taxation FR B A& F 2,660,371 845,943
Adjustments for: AT FIBFE
Finance costs A& B 596,765 624,238
Interest income FEHA (130,066) (184,183)
Share of results of associates DIREE N R EE (89,150) (60,350)
Share of results of a joint venture DM —REEDEELE (548,455) (225,519)
Net impairment losses reversed BEE (%R BEEIE
(recognized) R (49,705) 3,196
Depreciation of property, plantand %%  BE RRENE
equipment 569,752 537,187
Amortization of prepaid lease TEfS T & SRIE#E 5H
payments 24,552 26,735
Amortization of intangible assets EREEHHE 8,207 7,523
Gain on disposal of property, HEME - BEREED
plant and equipment L& (1,364) (1,987)
Gain on disposal of prepaid lease HEEMAEREN S
payments (41,838) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB QR MKE - (92)
Government grants released to B EEZABATE
profit or loss (3,792) (3,792)
Change in fair value of financial BARBEHAEBZHNESRE
assets/liabilities at FVTPL E/AENAREES (17,713) (5,587)
Loss on disposal of AFS financial PEIHEESREED
assets 518 - 293
Foreign exchange loss (gain) bE 5 BT (Mas) 14,628 (762)
Operating cash flows before EEESEIHFIMLE
movements in working capital HeRE 2,992,192 1,562,843
Increase in inventories T &30 (201,545) (46,322)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts JiE UK BA B 75 SR IB
due from related parties (3gm) ,/m (5,615) 31,691
(Decrease)/increase in amounts FET B 5 5RE
due to related parties CRA) /4 (390,167) 306,149
Increase in trade and other B 5 R H b JE WK IE L A0
receivables (184,050) (438,289)
Increase in trade and bills receivables %A LBz AH M2 E U
measured at FVTOCI FArEME S EINERIE K E
U 22 4 35 00 (260,445) -
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K H {th FE <t ZUIE 18 A0 518,266 913,785
(Decrease)/increase in contract AHBaECRD) i
liabilities (42,956) 253,195
Decrease in other long-term H b K BRI 5B A
prepayments 8,406 4,338
Cash generated from operations KEMSRS 2,434,086 2,687,290
Income tax paid, net of tax refunded BEfTFTEH » KR ER (186,903) (124,693)
Net cash generated from operating K& EZEHFBREFHE
activities 2,247,183 2,462,597
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

GERERER

For the year ended December 31,2018 #Z2018%F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BT 5 ARMT T AREF T
Investing activities RETH
Purchase of property, plant and EEWE BB MK
equipment (1,090,401) (776,587)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWZE - M= k&
plant and equipment FRB IR 71,613 19,837
Purchase of prepaid lease payments 1 & 8 & 5 (86,841) (6,909)
Proceeds from disposal of prepaid HETEMN A ERIBERIE
lease payments 92,137 -
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (29,860) (1,894)
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL B E AR EF ABZREN
TREE - (100,841)
Proceeds from disposal of AFS HEAHIESHEE
financial assets PSR IA - 30,063
Proceeds from disposal of financial &R A RE ABREN
assets at FVTPL TREEMSHRIA 95,910 -
Interest received 2 U FE 72,276 165,995
Government grants received B U B &9 BT 78 B 26,051 1,133
Dividends received from a joint B —KREEDEARE
venture 275,459 28,756
Dividends received from associates & U Bf & RN A1 A A% S 18,000 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHB AR 38 - 30,000
Placement of restricted bank deposits 17 A2 PRl SR 1717 5k (9,262,610) (7,086,825)
Withdrawal of restricted bank IREVZ R HIERIT T3
deposits 8,797,508 7,363,088
Decrease in amounts due from JE K BR B 5 SRR D
related parties 161,267 66,975
Net cash used in investing RETEHFMARESTFE
activities (859,491) (267,209)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,\,\ Eﬁimui%

For the year ended December 31,2018 #Z2018%F 12 A31 HILFE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Financing activities MEEE
Capital contribution from —HIFERRRAFE
a non-controlling shareholder 2,250 -
Dividend paid to controlling [r] 22 AR AR BR B AR B 9 Tk
shareholder (81,200) -
Dividend paid to a non-controlling A — & FEIE AR AR B A
shareholder % Bk (17,168) -
Interest paid ERFE (612,710) (640,325)
Proceeds from issue of shares A& B 1T FT 1S FUAR 412,039 -
Proceeds from new interest-bearing  #¥1&t S 18 15208
borrowings 7,291,316 9,442,748
Repayment of interest-bearing BEFTEER
borrowings (8,192,753) (10,262,775)
Repayment of obligations under EERMERERIA
finance leases (32,024) (29,181)
Decrease in amounts due to JE {<F R B 77 SR TE R
related parties - (261,378)
Net cash used in financing METEMARESFE
activities (1,230,250) (1,750,911)
Net increase in cash and cash RekReEEYEMFE
equivalents 157,442 444,477
Cash and cash equivalents at FEVRESRESEEY
the beginning of the year 599,987 156,575
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREEHHTE
changes 1,608 (1,065)
Cash and cash equivalents at FERBRESRESEEY
the end of the year 759,037 599,987
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Ak 5 e B

For the year ended December 31, 2018 #;Z= 2018412 A31 BHIFFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

China Risun Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on November 8, 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. On July 23, 2018, the
Company changed its name from China Risun Coal Chemicals
Group Limited to China Risun Group Limited. The shares
of the Company have been successfully listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on March 15, 2019. The respective
addresses of the registered office and the principal place of
business of the Company are stated in the section headed
"Corporate Information” section to the annual report.

The ultimate holding company and immediate holding
company of the Company is Texson Limited (“Texson"”,
the “Ultimate Holding Company”), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI"), and ultimately
controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang (the “Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”), hereinafter they are referred to as “Controlling
Shareholders”.

The Company’s operating subsidiaries are engaged in
the production, sale and distribution of coke, coking
chemicals and refined chemicals (the “Core Business”).
The consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to the “Group”) are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W,

e BRRME

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL INFORMATION

THE GROUP REORGANIZATION (THE “GROUP
REORGANIZATION")

To rationalize the corporate structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company's shares on the Stock Exchange, the
Company underwent the Group Reorganization as described
below.

On December 22, 2017, the Group acquired additional
46.57% equity interests, adding to its then interest of
43.35%, in Cangzhou Risun Chemicals Limited (“Cangzhou
Risun”) which was accounted for as a joint venture of
the Group prior to June 8, 2016, for a consideration of
RMB388,857,100 from Xuyang Holding Limited (“Xuyang
Holding"), a fellow subsidiary controlled by the Controlling
Shareholders. Pursuant to a capital injection, the Controlling
Shareholders obtained its control on Cangzhou Risun on
June 8, 2016 upon the amendment of Cangzhou Risun’s
article and association on that date. In this regard, the
Group, Xuyang Holding and Cangzhou Risun are all under
common control before and after the 46.57% acquisition,
and that control is not transitory. Accordingly, the Group and
Cangzhou Risun are regarded as continuing entities as at
June 8, 2016, the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year ended December 31, 2017 have been
prepared using the principles of the merger accounting as if
the group structure under the group reorganization had been
in existence throughout the year ended December 31, 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Going concern

At December 31, 2018, the Group had net current liabilities
of RMB6,285,249,000. The directors of the Company (the
"“Directors”) are of the opinion that, taking into consideration
the net proceeds from the global offering of initially an
aggregate of 600,000,000 shares of the Company and
the availability of unutilized banking facilities of the Group
amounting to RMB4,531,213,000 at the report date, of which
RMB2,000,000,000 is with conditions to be determined
by a bank, and the assumption that approximately 60% of
bank loans and other bank facilities at December 31, 2018
will be successfully renewed upon maturity, the Group has
sufficient financial resources to meet its capital expenditure
requirements and liabilities as and when they fall due for the
foreseeable future. Accordingly, the consolidated financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”)

For the purpose of preparing and presenting the consolidated
financial statements for the reporting period, the Group
has consistently applied IFRSs, which are effective for the
accounting period beginning on January 1, 2018 throughout
the reporting period, including IFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, except that the Group applied
IFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” from January 1, 2018. The
accounting policies for financial instruments which conform
with IFRS 9 that are applicable from January 1, 2018
onwards and IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement” which are applicable for year ended
December 31, 2017, are set out in note 4 below.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in IFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognized as at January 1, 2018 (date of initial
application) and has not applied the requirements to
instruments that have already been derecognized as at
January 1, 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at December 31, 2017 and the carrying amounts as at
January 1, 2018 are recognized in the retained profits as at
January 1, 2018, without restating the financial information
for the year ended December 31, 2017.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRERME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 3. FERANE RS BRI HR
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING HEA ((HRTBEREELD D
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued) (#&)
The table below illustrates the impact on classification and TERHAFRERERBEH2018%1 A
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities under 1 EI *ETF.WEM%?&%EEE\'J%Q%&
IFRS 9 and IAS 39 at the date of initial application, January 1, Rt ERE RN EREEREH
2018. BESHEKITENTE -

Amortized cost

previously
Financial classified as  Trade and bills Deferred
AFS financial assets loans and receivables tax assets/ Retained
Notes assets at FVTPL receivables at FVTOCI liabilities profits
BROAEHA
BROABHA REHRAHE E2EWE
e BREN XAAEAER NERRUGE BEHE
it SREE SREE REWZE REWEE EE/8f REEF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AEBTR AEBTR AEBTR

Qriginal carrying amountat #2017 12 4318
December 31,2017 under ~ BIEEB €518

IAS 39 FENFNRREAE 54,220 104,406 8,196,125 - 284,689 2,258,341
Effect arising from initial BRERERIBRE
application of IFRS 9: ER|EORELNTE:
Reclassffication BHNE
fom AFS financial assets ~ EFHESBERE a (54,20) 54,220 - - - -
from loans and receivables B EF R ERFE b - - 2,918,850) 2,918,850 - -
Remeasurement E¥ifE
from cost less impairment  BRAFEAEZS
to fair value AR 3 - 2,000 - - (500) 1,500
from amortized cost to fair  KAIHEEFRERA
value less impairment BUNAZLNE
under expected credit RERE
loss (“ECL") model c - - (2,621) (5,243) 1,966 (5,898)

New carrying amountat 201851818 4%
January 1, 2018 under EIRABHEER
IFRS 9 FIRNTRAE - 160,626 5,274,654 2,913,607 286,155 2,253,943
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e BRRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

Notes:
a. AFS financial assets
From AFS equity investments to financial assets at FVTPL

At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, the Group’s unquoted
equity investments previously stated at cost less impairment of
RMB23,000,000 were reclassified from AFS financial assets to financial

assets at FVTPL.

The fair value of the non-current equity investments at January 1,
2018 amounted to RMB25,000,000. Accordingly, as at January 1,
2018, the fair value increase of RMB2,000,000 was recognized in
the financial assets at FVTPL and the corresponding deferred tax
liability of RMB500,000 was recognized as non-current liabilities on
the consolidated statement of financial position and the net gain of

RMB1,500,000 was recognized in retained profits.

From AFS debt investments to financial assets at FVTPL

At the date of initial application of IFRS 9, the Group's structured trust
product with a fair value of RMB31,220,000 were reclassified from
AFS financial assets to financial assets at FVTPL. This is because even
though the Group's business model is to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows, the cash flows of these investments
do not meet solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

b. Loans and receivables

As part of the Group's cash flow management, the Group has the
practice of discounting and endorsing some of the bills receivable to
financial institutions and suppliers before the bills are due for payment
and derecognizes bills discounted or endorsed on the basis that the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards to the relevant
counterparties. Accordingly, the trade and bills receivables of the
Group amounting to RMB2,918,850,000 were considered as within the
hold to collect contractual cash flows and to sell business model, and
reclassified to debt instruments at FVTOCI as at January 1, 2018.

c. Impairment under ECL model

An additional impairment loss allowance of RMB7,864,000 and the
resulting deferred tax asset of RMB1,966,000 were recognized with the
corresponding adjustment of RMB5,898,000 made to retained profits as

at January 1, 2018. Details are set out in note 41.

146 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018

3.

P& P 37 5] I A4S R B PR Bt 35 3
=R ([EIRR R 3 3R & 2 A1 1)

(&)

BiEE

a.

AHEESREE

BRI EREREZIZAAEGAE
mHE A EE
REREAEBRMBRESENEIR
ZH BEUKEBREREARE
23,000,000 T3 BR A AR S B IE_E T ARAER
BHAHLESREEETH»EEZRA
AEFABENEREE -

IEREARIEIRER 201851 A1 HHAR
&5 AR¥E 25,000,000 7T ° Hlit #2018
¢1 H 1 EI @h@ibu/&ﬁ% 2,000,000

AREFALEZNEREE
EPﬁEm ﬂﬁﬁ&a’mu}%ﬁ%%/\ﬁ%
500,000 ST AR & B iR 2k R BERR /S 3F
HEBEE - F U AR 1,500,000 7T 8l
MR g FI| AP HERR o

BA#HEEFREZHAAESAR
mHEHEE
RERERBERTBREENFEIR 2
E REBMRREAR 31,220,000 TH
EREEEEREARIESREES
ﬁ YRERAAEHABRNECHMEE -
BT EME R R B EBEA BEE
SREENKBRAENRSTE BZER
ENBEeREY T EARINARE KX
BEASHFE -

BB &R E
¢ﬁ¢ﬁlﬁ$ﬁ§§@m—%ﬁ'$%
lmmﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂ%wmﬁﬂﬁﬁ&
HIERAIR R A EIHD EKER - WHAAE
E@h%?%ﬁmﬂ R ERER EE
BRI BRIERAZSEHRLE
EZE A AREE HERFIENE
Uy Z= 4R Hy A R %5 2,918,850,000 JT 1K 48 A
WEEHHEeREREEEKERNS
B WR2018F 1 A1 BEHHBEEZRA
REFAHEMEZERENESTA -

TEHEEBBEXFHRE

B HNAE B 18 B E A A R 7,864,000
T HABEENELHBEEAEARKE
1,966,000 7T B #ERER © 1R 2018F 1 A1
ElE’M%‘%/M\MHLEJ*J%AEM5,898,000
TC o AEIEERKIEEAT o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

IFRS 16 Leases'
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'

Amendments to IFRS3  Definition of a Business*
Amendments to IFRS9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
and 1AS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

Amendments to IAS 1 Definition of Material®
and IAS 8

Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
Amendments to IAS28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures'

Amendments to IFRSs ~ Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017
Cycle'

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2021

4 Effective for business combinations and assets acquisitions for which

the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after January 1, 2020
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will
supersede IAS 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

IFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases (off balance sheet)
and finance leases (on balance sheet) are removed for lessee
accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognized for
all leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and leases
of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain
exceptions) less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease
liability. The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and
lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash flows, the
Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned
use while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows.. Upon application of IFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into
a principal and an interest portion which will be presented
as financing cash flows by the Group, upfront prepaid
lease payments will continue to be presented as investing
or operating cash flows in accordance to the nature, as
appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under IAS 17, the Group has already recognized an asset and
a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement
and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of IFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending
on whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately
or within the same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were owned.

Other than certain requirement which are also applicable
to lessor, IFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in IAS 17, and continues to require
a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 16.

As at December 31, 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of RMB2,457,000. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these arrangements
will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application of IFRS
16, the Group will recognize a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.
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e BRRME

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs”) (Continued)

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs IN ISSUE BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE (Continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of RMB279,000 as rights under leases to which
IAS 17 applies. Based on the definition of lease payments
under IFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating to the
right to use the underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying
amounts of such deposits may be adjusted to amortized cost.
Adjustments to refundable rental deposits paid would be
considered as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of right of-use assets.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. The Group intends to elect the practical expedient
to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease and not apply this
standard to contracts that were not previously identified as
containing a lease applying IAS 17 and IFRIC-Int 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts are, or
contain a lease which already existed prior to the date of
initial application. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect
the modified retrospective approach for the application of
IFRS 16 as lessee and will recognise the cumulative effect of
initial application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.

The Directors anticipate that the application of IFRS 16 will
have no material impact on the financial performance and
financial positions and/or on the disclosures of the Group in
future financial statements.

In addition, the Directors anticipate that the application of all
other new and revised IFRSs, will have no material impact on
the financial performance and financial positions and/or on the
disclosures of the Group in future financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
in accordance with IFRSs issued by IASB. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements includes applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements has been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in the consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except
for leasing transactions that are within the scope of IAS 17
“Leases”, and measurements that have some similarities to
fair value but are not fair value, such as net realizable value in
IAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in IAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments which are transferred at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is to
be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the
valuation technique is calibrated so that the results of the
valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
where the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in
line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests
(if any) are derecognized. A gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill), and
liabilities of the subsidiary attributable to the owners of
the Company. All amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e., reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39/
IFRS 9 (as applicable) or, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Acquisitions of non-common control businesses are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the
Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners
of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs
are generally recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognized at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or
assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognized and measured in accordance with IAS 12
“Income Taxes” and IAS 19 “"Employee Benefits”
respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2
"Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognized
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognized amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date, and the
resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognized in profit or loss.
Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have been recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where
such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were
disposed of.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS
COMBINATIONS INVOLVING ENTITIES UNDER
COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements incorporates the
financial statement items of the combining entities or
businesses in which the common control combination
occurs as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or businesses first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling parties’ perspective. No amount is recognized in
respect of goodwill or bargain purchase gain at the time of
common control combination.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this
is a shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates or joint
ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting. The
financial statements of associates and joint ventures used
for equity accounting purposes are prepared using uniform
accounting policies as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under the equity
method, an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Group's share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the associate/joint venture other than profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are not accounted
for unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognized as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognized immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate or a joint venture may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value less costs
of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognized forms part of the carrying amount of
the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognized in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an
associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a
resulting gain or loss be recognized in profit or loss. When
the Group retains an interest in the former associate or joint
venture and the retained interest is a financial asset within the
scope of IAS 39/IFRS 9 (as applicable), the Group measures
the retained interest at fair value on the date it lost significant
influence or joint control over the investee and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture
and the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a partial interest in the associate or joint
venture is included in the determination of the gain or loss
on disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognized in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate or
joint venture on the same basis as would be required if that
associate or joint venture had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss previously
recognized in other comprehensive income by that associate
or joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant associate or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES (Continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in an associate. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits or losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate or joint venture are recognized
in the consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related
to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of a product
or service to a customer in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those products or services. Specially, the Group
uses a b-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract
Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation

The Group recognizes revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the products or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customers.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle or goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

N,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Control of the products or services may be transferred over
time or at a point in time. Control of the products or services
is transferred over time if:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the products or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognized over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress toward complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognized at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the products or services.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Revenue from the sales of products (mainly including coke
and chemicals products) directly to customers, is recognized
when control of the goods has transferred, being when the
products are accepted by the customers in the customer's
specific location (delivery) or the Group's plants. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products. A receivable is recognized by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the customers
as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due. Customers have no
right to return the products purchased once accepted.

Revenue from the management service provided to
customers is recognized when services are provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)
Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or services
to a customer, the Group determines whether the nature
of its promise is a performance obligation to provide the
specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal)
or to arrange for those goods or services to be provided by the
other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it is controls the specified good
or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When the
Group acts as an agent, it recognizes revenue in the amount
of any fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled in
exchange for arranging for the specified goods or services to
be provided by the other party.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating lease is recognized in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognized as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASING (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognized as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognized immediately in
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance
with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see the
accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are recognized
as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter
into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a
liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element separately
based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element
have been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that
both elements are operating leases, in which case the entire
property is accounted as an operating lease. Specifically,
the entire consideration (including any lump-sum upfront
payments) are allocated between the leasehold land and
the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values
of the leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition. When the payments cannot
be allocated reliably between the leasehold and building
elements, the entire payment is generally classified as
a finance lease and amounted for as property, plant and
equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

LEASEHOLD LAND AND BUILDINGS (Continued)

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease payments
can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is
accounted for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid
lease payments” in the consolidated statement of financial
position and is amortized over the lease term on a straight-line
basis.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the entity's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e., RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognized in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of foreign
currency translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling
interests as appropriate). Such accumulated differences are
reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the foreign
operation is disposed of.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognized until there is a
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognizes as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognized as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or loss
on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the
related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME CONTRIBUTION

Payable to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and the
retirement funds scheme managed by local social security
bureau in accordance with the government regulations
in Hong Kong and of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"), are recognized as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFIT

Short-term employee benefits are recognized at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits to be paid as and when
employees rendered the service. All short-term employee
benefits are recognized as expense unless another IFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit in the cost of
an asset.

A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages, salaries and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is based
on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before taxation as reported in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwvill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

TAXATION (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary
difference associated with investments in subsidiaries and
interests in associates and joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realized, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amounts of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes
(other than properties under construction as described
below), are stated in the consolidated statements of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services, or for administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Costs
include professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalized in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
the same basis as other property assets, commences when
the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the costs (other
than properties under construction) less their residual values
over their useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the profit or loss in the period
which the item is derecognized.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortization
and any accumulated impairment losses (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets below). Amortization is recognized on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset are measured at the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
are recognized in the profit and loss in the period when the
asset is derecognized.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (the
“CGU") to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE AND
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwvill
(if applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The
carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest
of its fair value less costs of disposal (if applicable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognized for the asset (or a CGU) in prior years.
A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in
profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Costs of inventories are determined using weighted
average cost formula. Net realizable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
to completion and the costs necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized in the
statement of financial position of a group entity when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Recognized financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial labilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as
appropriate, on initial recognition Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of’ financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date where the purchase or sale of a financial asset is
under a contract whose terms require delivery of the financial
asset within the timeframe established by the market
concerned, and are initially measured at fair value, plus
transaction costs, except for those financial assets classified
as at financial assets FVTPL. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets classified as
at FVTPL are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are
initially measured in accordance with IFRS 15.

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair
value, including unquoted equity investments measured at
cost less impairment under HKAS 39.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortized cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets;
and

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income (“OCI") if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business
combination to which IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a debt
investment that meets the amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria
as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Receivables classified as at FVTOCI

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for receivables
classified as at FVTOCI as a result of interest income
calculated using the effective interest method, are recognized
in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of
these receivables are recognized in OCl and accumulated
under the heading of investment revaluation reserve.
Impairment allowance are recognized in profit or loss with
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing the
carrying amounts of these receivables. The amounts that
are recognized in profit or loss are the same as the amounts
that would have been recognized in profit or loss if these
receivables had been measured at amortized cost. When
these receivables are derecognized, the cumulative gains or
losses previously recognized in other comprehensive income
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortized cost or FVTOCI are measured at
FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any
fair value gains or losses recognized in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the
“other gains and losses” line item.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subject to impairment under IFRS 9
(including other receivables, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, amounts due from related parties and
bank balances) and financial guarantee contracts. The amount
of ECL is updated at the end of each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the end of each reporting period. Assessments are
done based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the end of each reporting period as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognizes lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and amounts due from related parties arising
from contracts with customers. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with
appropriate groupings except that significant balances are
assessed individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognizes lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognized is based on significant
increases in the likelihood of risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
end of each reporting period with the risk if a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition.
In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and forward-
looking information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit
spread, the credit default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor's ability to
meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of
the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the debt instrument is determined
to have low credit risk at the end of each reporting period.
A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk
if (i) it has a low risk of default, (ii) the borrower has a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is considered
to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of
assessing the financial instrument for impairment. In
assessing whether there has been a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition of financial guarantee
contracts, the Group considers the changes in the risk that
the specified debtor will default on the contract.

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable:

° When there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

o Information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

The Group considers that default has occurred when the
instrument is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information.

Generally, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective interest
rate determined at initial recognition.

For a financial guarantee contract, the Group is required to
make payments only in the event of a default by the debtor
in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is
guaranteed. Accordingly, the expected losses is the present
value of the expected payments to reimburse the holder for
a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts that the Group
expects to receive from the holder, the debtors or any other

party.

For ECL on financial guarantee contracts for which the
effective interest rate cannot be determined, the Group
will apply a discount rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks that are
specific to the cash flows but only if, and to the extent that,
the risks are taken into account by adjusting the discount rate
instead of adjusting the cash shortfalls being discounted.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortized cost of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment under ECL model (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Except for trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI
and financial guarantee contract, the Group recognizes
an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial
instruments by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognized through a loss allowance account.
For trade and bill receivables measured at FVTOCI, the
loss allowance is recognized in OCIl and accumulated in
the investments revaluation reserve without reducing the
carrying amounts of these debt receivables. For financial
guarantee contracts, the loss allowances are recognized at
the higher of the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with IFRS 9; and the amount initially recognized
less, where appropriate, cumulative amount of income
recognized over the guarantee period.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor
is unlikely to pay all amounts due in accordance with the
contractual terms.

The Group considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate than a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

176 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018

TESTHHER @)

£RTE(A2018FE181HH 2
BIRBER T EREERE IR
(&)

TREE (&)
BHEEEERARTRE (&)
RS REBEA G B R IER (&)

BRTRARESARMEEKREZE
5 WA N B IR M ERE
BN REBERBAEMAESHITA
MEREERBERRRE 2R EK S
SHEHE - EE A RUGRIRRR SN - iR
AT ERERBEEREDAEHE -
RIEAREFARMEEREZE S
FENIR K R RIEM = - BIREHE
REMEPEWETERTNRESR
R R MAER D ZFERES
ZHREE - LM BEREOME B
RBHRRBERM B REERF IR
RENBABRFHESHE  BEEERER
T iRV BREEEFRAR
ERNRFTBASBTFHNRSEER -

ERIE

RABEERRERME - BRBE
ERERE SN IR AR R - (&
BATATERES O BERE N A
BIHEORR - AR ERABAENT
o

MEMEECAMBHE0R » BIARE
BRRCELED BIEAKEAS
BRAIFEENEARTRVENRE
ERERAE R -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the Group's
recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognized in profit or
loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire, or when
it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred financial asset, the Group recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the consideration received
and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as
either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement.

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash
or another financial asset or to exchange financial assets or
financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially unfavorable to the Group or a contract that
will or may be settled in the Group’s own equity instruments
and is a non-derivative contract for which the Group is or
may be obliged to deliver a variable number of its own equity
instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity that
will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed
amount of cash (or another financial asset) for a fixed number
of the Group's own equity instruments.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities
"at FVTPL" or “at amortized cost”.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A BRI

JA=AN
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading, or (ii) it is designated as
at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’'s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and IFRS 9 permits the entire
hybrid (combined) contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value with any
gains/losses arising on remeasurement recognized in profit
or loss to the extent that they are not part of a designated
hedging relationship.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (UNDER IFRS 9 ON OR
AFTER JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities at amortized cost, including trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties and bank and other
loans, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction
costs. Financial liabilities at amortized cost are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, canceled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid
and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories: financial assets at FVTPL, AFS financial
assets and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases
or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant reporting periods. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognized on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
assets is (i) held for trading; (i) it is designated as at FVTPL;
or (iii) contingent consideration that may be received by an
acquirer as part of a business combination to which IFRS 3
applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets and is included in the “other gains and losses” line
item. Fair value is determined in the manner described in note
41.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, restricted bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents) are measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated as or not classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b)
held-to-maturity investments or (c) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as AFS financial assets and are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period except for
unquoted equity investments whose fair value cannot be
measured reliably. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS
debt instruments relating to interest income calculated
using the effective interest method recognized in profit
or loss. Dividends on AFS equity are recognized in profit
or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established. Other changes in the carrying amount of AFS
financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of
or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy
on impairment loss on financial assets below).

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market
price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be
reliably measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of the reporting period.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there
is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the investment have been
affected.

For an AFS equity investment, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of that investment below its cost is
considered to be objective evidence of impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial reorganization.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
of 30 days, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables, amounts due from
related parties, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance accounts are recognized in profit
or loss. When a trade and other receivables, amounts due
from related parties is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited against the
allowance account.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the
period.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a
subsequent reporting period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognized.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognized in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent
to an impairment loss is recognized in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investment,
impairment losses are subsequently reversed through profit
or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the recognition
of the impairment loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognized and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant reporting periods. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition. Interest expense is recognized on an
effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amounts due to related parties and bank and other loans) are
subsequently measured at amortized cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

W,

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (BEFORE THE ADOPTION
OF IFRS 9 AS AT JANUARY 1, 2018) (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, when
it transfers the financial assets and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets to another entity. If
the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred financial asset, the Group recognizes its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the consideration received
and receivable is recognized in profit or loss.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and the consideration paid and
payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W,

e BRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the Directors are required to make
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognized in the period in which the estimates is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition

Application of various accounting principles related to the
measurement and recognition of revenue requires the Group
to make judgments and estimates. Specifically, significant
judgments include determining whether the Group is acting
as the principal in a transaction. The Group is a principal in a
transaction if the Group obtains control of the products sold or
services provided before they are transferred to customers.
If control is unclear, when the Group is primarily obligated
in a transaction, is subject to inventory risk, has latitude in
establishing prices and selecting suppliers, or has several but
not all of these indicators, the Group records revenues on a
gross basis. Otherwise, the Group records the net amount
earned as commissions from products sold or services
provided.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W,

e BRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next twelve months are as follows:

Useful life and impairment of property, plant and
equipment

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
management requires an estimation of recoverable amount
of an individual asset or the cash-generating units to which
the asset belongs, and has to exercise judgement and
make significant degree of estimation in determining the
recoverable amount of the assets, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset's value; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
in the case of value in use, the net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued
use of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate. VWWhen
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash generating unit to which the assets belongs.

Changing the assumptions selected by management to
determine the level of impairment, including product price,
volume of sales and growth rate, gross profit ratio or
discount rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the net present value used in the impairment
test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses as at December 2018 were RMB9,406,195,000 (2017:
RMB8,976,237,000).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Impairment of interest in associates

The Group assesses whether there is any objective evidence
of impairment of interest in associates at the end of each

5.
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reporting period. Test for impairment is required when RSB ER T EEEWERE
there is any objective evidence that the carrying amount B BB EETRENR - BEEE
may not be recoverable. For the interest in associates, NEERME  EEERAEBLE

an impairment exists when its carrying value exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use. The value in use
calculation for the interest in associates requires the Group
to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the
associates and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, or change in facts and circumstances
which results in downward revision of future cash flows, a
material impairment loss/further impairment loss may arise.
The carrying amount of interest in associates as at December
2018 were RMB451,311,000 (2017: RMB380,161,000).

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables

Prior to January 1, 2018, when there is objective evidence
of impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition, where applicable). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
being revised downward due to the change in facts and
circumstances, a material impairment loss/further impairment
loss may arise. As at December 31, 2017, the carrying
amounts of trade receivables were RMB137,189,000, after
deducting allowance for doubtful debts of RMB104,592,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W,

e BRRME

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of doubtful receivables (Continued)

Starting from January 1, 2018, the Group recognizes lifetime
ECL for trade receivables, using a provision matrix based on
the Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions at end of the reporting
period. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition. Where the future cash flows are less
than expected, or being revised downward due to changes
in facts and circumstances, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at December 31, 2018, the carrying amount of trade
receivable is RMB186,555,000, after deducting allowance for
doubtful debts of RMB86,834,000.

Taxation

Determining tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatments of certain transactions. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatments of such
transactions are reconsidered periodically to take into account
of all changes in tax legislations.

The recognition of deferred tax assets require formal
assessment by the Group of the future profitability of related
operations. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates,
amongst other factors, the forecast financial performance,
changes in technology and future assessable profits or
taxable temporary differences. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, a reversal or further
recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which would
be recognized in profit or loss for the period in which such
estimates are changed. Further details are included in note
24,
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e BRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the reporting period, the Group's revenue represents
the amount received and receivable from the sales of goods
to external customers arising from the coke and coking
chemicals, refined chemicals, trading and management
services. The revenue is recognized at a point in time when
the customers obtain control of the goods delivered or
management services provided.

All sales/trading are for period of one year or less. As
permitted under IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

Information reported to the executive directors, being the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance, focuses on types of goods or services delivered
or provided. Specifically, the Group's reportable segments
under IFRS 8 are as follows:

° Coke and coking chemicals segment: the production
and sale of coke and a series of coking chemicals
from externally sourced coking coals processed at the
Group’s coking facilities;

o Refined chemicals segment: the purchase of coking
chemicals from the Group's coke and coking chemicals
segment and third parties, and processing such coking
chemicals into refined chemical products, as well as
marketing and selling such refined chemicals; and

° Trading segment: the sourcing of coke, coking
chemicals and refined chemicals from third parties
and the marketing, sale and distribution of such coal
chemicals.

The CODM reviews operating results and financial
information for each operating company separately.
Accordingly, each operating company, including associates
and a joint venture held by the relevant operating company,
is identified as an operating segment. Those operating
companies are aggregated into coke and coking chemicals
segment, refined chemicals segment and trading segment
respectively for segment reporting purpose after taking
into account that those operating companies are operating
in similar business model with similar target group of
customers, similar products and similar methods used to
distribute their products. The accounting policies of the
reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting
policies described in note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W,

e BRRME

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The CODM monitors the results, assets and liabilities
attributable to each reporting segment on the following
bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments or
which otherwise arise from the depreciation or amortization
of assets attributable to those segments.

All assets are allocated to segment assets other than
unallocated head office and corporate assets. All liabilities are
allocated to segment liabilities other than unallocated head
office and corporate liabilities.

The measure used for reporting segment profit is “segment
results”. To arrive at segment results, the Group's earnings
are adjusted for unallocated head office and corporate
expenses and listing expenses which are not specifically
attributable to individual segments.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
segment results, management is provided with segment
information concerning revenue (including inter segment
sales and share of losses/profits of associates and a joint
venture), depreciation, amortization and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.
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AR REMN
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WERkDIER &
(Continued)
SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES DEEE EEREE HE)
(Continued)
The following is an analysis of the Group's results, assets and INTATEBEE2ROBESE  BE
liabilities by reportable segments: LEET
Year ended/as at December 31, 2018
BZ2018F12A31BLEE R&A
Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals chemicals Trading Total
xRk  BHALT
ELLER Em 25 mat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTrR ARBTR AR%®TxR
Sales of goods to external customers HMNBEFHE SR
Sale of coke and coking chemicals ~ SHEEKREEER 9,838,550 - - 9,838,550
Sale of refined chemicals HERMALIER - 8,149,009 - 8,149,009
Trading = - - 2572220 2,572,220
Management services B R - - 23,300 23,300
9,838,550 8,149,009 2,595,520 20,583,079
Inter-segment revenue 2 2B Bk s 826,874 90,927 - 917,801
Reportable segment revenue A2 5 HWE 10,665,424 8,239,936 2,595,520 21,500,880
Reportable segment profit AE2HS BT 1,986,094 695,855 94,818 2,776,767
Reportable segment assets AE/AHEE
(including interests in associates (BHEREERAFR
and a joint venture) —RAELERNER) 8936922 9,239,372 4,339,127 22,515,421
Reportable segment liabilities ‘I%%’w BaE 7,155,304 6,251,067 3,983,065 17,389,436
Other information: Hith &R -
Additions to non-current segment FANREFERDDBEE
assets during the year 1,075,963 180,540 6,405 1,262,908
Share of results of associates k(oL AN E S 5,160 83,990 - 89,150
Share of result of a joint venture DE—RKEELEEE 548,455 - - 548,455
Depreciation and amortization for the 4 [E #7 & [ i# 4
year 223,950 379,825 6,828 610,603
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IRA SRR ET
6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. WaEkoHBER @)
(Continued)
SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES PUEE  BERARE (E)
(Continued)

Year ended/as at December 31, 2017
BE2017F12A31 BILEE KRB

Coke and
coking Refined
chemicals  chemicals Trading Total
Exk AT
FLEmM Em B85 et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
Sales of goods to external customers FSNBEFHE SR
Sale of coke and coking chemicals ~ SHEERLE{EmR 7,875,610 - - 7875610
Sale of refined chemicals HERMCIER - 8375447 - 8375447
Trading = - - 2,407,221 2,407,221
7,875,610 8,375,447 2,407,221 18,658,278
Inter-segment revenue o E s 928,598 78,906 - 1,007,504
Reportable segment revenue AE2H 5 BWE 8,804,208 8,454,353 2,407,221 19,665,782
Reportable segment profit/(loss) ~ AI2#{ S WEA,/(FB) 457,973 555,279 (103,461) 909,791
Reportable segment assets HEHIBEE
(including interests in associates (BEREERAFAR
and a joint venture) —REELEMEDR) 7046493 9,516,281 5,063,929 21,626,703
Reportable segment liabilities HEHSHEE 6,024,912 7,654,113 5,044,524 18,723,549
Other information: Hitp &R
Additions to non-current segment FRARNEERE
assets during the year DEEE 652,784 177,443 8,912 839,139
Share of results of associates DIEEERAEE (6,367) 66,717 - 60,350
Share of result of a joint venture DE—REEDLEEE 225,519 - - 225,519
Depreciation and amortization for the 4 [& 37 & K # 4
year 185,764 379,410 6,786 571,960
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e BRRME

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

SEGMENT RESULTS, ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, results,

assets and liabilities.

6.

Year ended/as at December 31,

BZE12831BLEE WNZE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Revenue U 3
Reportable segment revenue Al 2 /oy U = 21,500,880 19,665,782
Elimination of inter-segment revenue B B M (917,801) (1,007,504)
Consolidated revenue &z 20,583,079 18,658,278
Results E
Reportable segment profit Al 2 8,5 5% F 2,776,767 909,791
Listing expenses A% (24,562) (11,694)
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBRMERR
expenses NEIRX (91,834) (52,154)
Consolidated profit before taxation PR RIAR A s F 2,660,371 845,943
Assets EE
Reportable segment assets AEHRHBEE 22,515,421 21,626,703
Unallocated head office and corporate ROMBIEE R
assets NAElEE 86,688 212,348
Consolidated total assets A EERTE 22,602,109 21,839,051
Liabilities =
Reportable segment liabilities AZ®oHaE 17,389,436 18,723,549
Unallocated head office and corporate ﬂi L@ R &
liabilities T =N 499,650 5,793
Consolidated total liabilities meBERE 17,889,086 18,729,342

Geographic information

Substantially of the Group's revenue and profit were derived
from PRC sales and all principal assets employed by the
Group are located in the PRC during the reporting period.

Major customers

No individual customer had transactions exceeding 10% of
the Group's turnover for each of the reporting period. Details
of concentrations of credit risk are set out in note 41.
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e BRRME

7. OTHER INCOME 7. HiA
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MHILLEE

2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Interest income L EHA 130,066 184,183
Production waste sales EEREREE 1,320 4,543
Government grants (note) RS 4 B (P 7) 18,748 14,761
Others HAh 11,965 9,152
162,099 212,639

Note: Government grants were received from several local government
authorities as subsidies for the Group’s contribution to the
environmental protection, energy conservation recycling resources,

M ARBERLRBRE  SHOEREARLDK
ELEBNIRE - BB -1 Ak R A
R i 2 (B 20 75 BT RS BRI

relocation, purchase of land use rights and infrastructure construction. Bp o
8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HKhzmREE
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
20185 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARTIT
Fair value gain (loss) of financial BAREBEFAEBZNES R
assets/liabilities at FVTPL: BE/BENALERS
(E8) -
— Futures contracts (note 22a) —HE&54 (MFF22a) 98,481 (12,504)
— Listed equity securities (note 22b) — R ARES
(Mi3E22b) 17,728 (2,712)
— Held-for-trading non-derivative financial ~—¥#1F& & IF{74
assets TREE (15) 58
Loss on foreign exchange, net SNEE 5 1B F 5 (29,508) (11,307)
Gain (loss) on disposal of: HENT&EMN K
(E8) -
— property, plant and equipment o E N 1,364 1,987
— prepaid lease payments —JEEEREAE 41,838 -
— subsidiaries (note 38) —MEB AR (MIFE38) - 92
— AFS financial assets —AtrEemEE - (293)
Others HAftb (10,636) (9,872)
119,252 (34,551)
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e BRRME

9. NET IMPAIRMENT LOSSES REVERSED 9.

(RECOGNIZED)

ERO (SRR RESERE

Year ended December 31,
HZ12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Net impairment losses reversed BUATZEERE (BER)
(recognized) in respect of: HIREEEFE
Trade and other receivables (note 26) B 5 M H IR GRIR
(HF5E26) 48,122 (3,196)
Amounts due from related parties JrE Uk BE B 5 7B 1,583 -
49,705 (3,196)

10. FINANCE COSTS

10.

BE A

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20185 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARTIT
Interest on bank loans RITERF A 303,666 290,476
Interest on other loans HaE A B 75,720 87,410
Finance expenses on bills receivable Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬁlm%}%ﬁ’\]ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
discounted 231,641 253,314
Finance charges on obligations under BMEHERIENYHER
finance leases 2,858 5,594
613,885 636,794
Less: Amount capitalized under B ERIRBETNERNME
construction in progress (note) <& (M) (17,120) (12,556)
596,765 624,238
Note: The finance costs were capitalized at annual rates of 4.79%-8.86% Mizk: B E2018F12A31HIEFE BER

per annum during the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: 4.57 %—

8.86%).
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e BRRME

11. BREANEF
B o BT FIAE B -

11. PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31MBILEE

2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR®EFT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BIEESFHH)
remuneration)
Salaries, wages and other benefits e IEREMER 394,339 288,312
Contributions to retirement benefits IRIREFET B4R
scheme 29,622 26,438
Total staff costs B IR 4%8 423,961 314,750
Capitalized in construction in progress EEIRERE (13,252) (15,736)
Capitalized in inventories GFEEXRE (230,643) (184,894)
180,066 114,120
Other items Ha1EE
Depreciation of property, plant and Y BEREFEITE
equipment 577,844 537,702
Amortization of prepaid lease payments &1 T & FR I8 # 4 24,552 26,735
Amortization of intangible assets EREEEE 8,207 7,523
Total depreciation and amortization EREHAEE 610,603 571,960
Capitalized in inventories FEEARL (534,547) (506,148)
Capitalized in construction in progress FRIEERL (8,092) (515)
67,964 65,297
Auditors’ remuneration % B4 5 T 6,937 3,675
Cost of inventories recognized as an ERAERITNFEKA
expense 17,237,592 16,659,886
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12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND 12. E5 - FESEREEMNE
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

Year ended December 31, 2018

BZ2018F12A31ALEE
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefits
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
& 28 RIKER
ESHe REUVEF MERA HE 23 @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBETRL AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®T=

Executive directors BITES
Yang Xuegang* BEE* - 2,982 600 59 3,641
Zhang Yingwei REE - 700 500 59 1,259
Han Qinliang BY - 700 500 59 1,259
Wang Fengshan** F R ** - 244 349 2 595
Wang Nianping** FEF - 234 445 14 693
Yang Lu** 1R = - 176 400 9 585
Zhang Xinzhi*** SRAT & *** - - - - -
Subtotal Nt - 5,036 2,794 202 8,032
Non-executive director FHITES
Lu Xiaomei*** Bl * e - 651 - - 651
Subtotal NEt - 651 - - 651
Independent non-executive B EHTEE

directors
Wang Yinping**** F 5| rexx - 63 - - 63
Yu Kwok Kuen Harry**** B f ***x - 63 - - 63
Kang Woon**** FRIB *** - 63 - - 63
Subtotal INEt - 189 - - 189
Total @t - 5,876 2,794 202 8,872
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12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

12. EE FESEREEME @)

Year ended December 31, 2017
HE2017E12 A8 EEE

Salaries,

allowances

Directors’  and benefits
fees in kind
e 2R

ESHE EMER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETR

Retirement
benefits
Discretionary scheme
bonuses  contributions Total
RIKEF
WiEEa AT Bt

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE ARBTT ARBTR

Executive directors BITES

Yang Xuegang* A - 1,931 100 51 2,082
Zhang Yingwei REE - 499 71 51 621
Han Qinliang BY - 499 71 51 621
Subtotal gt - 2,929 242 153 3,324
Non-executive director FUTES

Lu Xiaomei N - 524 - - 524
Subtotal Pt - 524 - - 524
Total @Er - 3,453 242 153 3,848
* Yang, Xuegang was appointed as an executive director and chief * BEMR2007F11 ASHEZE AT

executive officer on November 8, 2007.

*x Wang Fengshan, Wang Nianping and Yang Lu were appointed as
executive directors on September 29, 2018.

***  Zhang Xinzhi and Lu Xiaomei were resigned as executive director or
non-executive director on September 29, 2018.

*¥*** Wang Yinping, Yu Kwok Kuen Harry and Kang Woon were appointed as
independent non-executive directors on September 29, 2018.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

The emoluments of non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors shown above were for their services
as directors of the Company.

Directors are entitled to bonus payments which are
determined based on the duties and responsibilities of the
Directors as well as the operating results of the Group.

Neither the chief executive nor any of the directors waived
any emoluments during the reporting period.

EERTREE -

> R TEFRIGER20189F9 A 29
ABZRTARITES -

*xx REFERE/MER 201849 A 29 B EHE
WMITEFRINITES -

*xxx o F 5| REIRE K FEIER 201849 A 29
BEZTABIIENTES -

FHITEEWNE ABEERERLRR

AIRAEEEBHREERBOME -

ERIFMITE R MBI IFAITE
ERUEEETARRESTNMHE -

MR E R R E AR
R S R R ALK -

R|BEMA - TRARSEFNERY
RAMEEABE -
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12. DIRECTORS', CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S AND

12. EE FESEREEME @)

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the year
ended December 31, 2018 included four Directors (2017:
three Directors), whose emoluments are disclosed above.
The emoluments in respect of the remaining highest paid
individuals during the reporting period are as follows:

AEREHAL

HZE2018F12A3MBILFE K
CEERAAEeFATERNLAES
(2017F : =Z%ES) FEHESN L
NHEE RBEHAN EESTES
FALTHES T

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

2018 F 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET R ARETF T

Salaries and other emoluments FehEMmie 1,780 1,140
Retirement scheme contributions RIRTE T &I R 104 102
1,884 1,242

The remunerations of the five highest paid employees
(including Directors) are within the following bands:

hEs&eHFAL(BRES) OHFHN
FLATAR

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
Number of Number of
employees employees
EBEAE BE AR
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000% 7T - 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 % 7T £ 1,500,000
BT 3 _
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 % 7T & 2,000,000
BT 1 _
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 % 7T £ 2,500,000
BT _ :
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7 7T 2 4,500,000
BT 1 _

During the reporting period, no amount was paid or payable
by the Group to the Directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office.
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W,

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

13. FIEHAX

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T AREF T
Current tax BN EA B 18

PRC income tax for the year FERBIMEH 453,581 160,463
Land appreciation tax (“LAT") T IR E R 18,005 -

Deferred tax charge/(credit) (note 24) B IEXH (K R)
(MyzE24) 61,772 (80,093)
533,358 80,370

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group did not earn any income subject to any
income tax in these jurisdictions during the reporting period.

No provision for taxation is made for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017 as the Group had no
assessable profits in Hong Kong for those years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate applicable for PRC group entities is 25% for the reporting
period.

Certain subsidiaries of the Company operating in the PRC
are eligible for tax holiday and concession. Pursuant to
the relevant tax rules and regulation in PRC, revenue from
comprehensive utilization of resources (* ER#REFI A ") is
eligible for additional tax deduction.

The provision of LAT is estimated according to the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. LAT has been provided at ranges of progress
rates of the appreciation value, with certain allowable
exemptions and deductions.

REFASESMABRELESNHAA
K g ) 7N S B R & HY 9 3 4 R EX
REMZF AR EBRATERATMA
WA o

HZE2018E K 201712 A31 BIEE
EWEERFIEBEREG  DARAEER
REZEFEVERBERTEF -

BERBEPCEMETE(REMSE
BOE]D) REEMEBOEEITIRD - F
HEBRERNRSHANERRER
25% °

ARARFEZENE THEARN
BERFERBHEBER R - RIK
FTEBABEHRGRUN AR - B ERE
BNAELZ Wms EREBREINA
HIEER -

TR ERBETRE BT BRGEE
BREERAEOREEL AR - L
BENEHIEEEENREREFED
B (MmETrAn#Re L)
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A BRI

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statements of

13. FR{E®iBE X (&)

profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: ™

REEHBRAXREE
i 22 TED A 5% ) R 5 B it M) 0 3 B 4

B R EH

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARET T
Profit before taxation R 50 A& A 2,660,371 845,943
Tax at the PRC tax rate of 25% BB K 25% T ERTHIE 665,093 211,486
Tax effect on: LATXIEEWR?F%??; :
Share of results of associates and a joint ~ D{EHE A AN —FK
venture BEMEXE (159,401) (71,467)
Non-deductible expenses TR R 2 6,506 3,268
Non-taxable income BERBUA - (768)
Unused tax losses and temporary RERRBAHIBEEER
differences not recognized HRF =T 17,007 46,859
Utilisation of tax losses previously not A BERERL
recognized HIgEE (1,671) (23,378)
PRC tax concessions A B A TR R R (23,234) (21,785)
Recognition of deferred tax assets on HERELERIAEE EN
unused tax losses and deductible REARIEEERL
temporary differences previously not B AR W R AT R A0
recognised HRF = - (76,622)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of 1 Bl & & 7k 75k i A1 A9 T8
PRC entities n 11,053 -
Withholding tax on gain arising from AEERNSHEBEED
a reorganization activity within the W IBHE (Mt a)
Group (note a) - 12,777
LAT (note b) T RER (Bt b) 18,005 -
Income tax expense for the year FEMBHRAS 533,358 80,370
Note : BT
a. The amount represents the withholding tax of 10% on gain arising from a. FRSHEAEE B QR IR EEE
the equity transfer relating to a subsidiary of the Group from a Hong B REZE2017F12A31BIEFER
Kong subsidiary to a PRC subsidiary during the year ended December BB AR T E M E A R RS E
31,2017, FTiE £ W E ) 10% TB 08 -
b. The amount represents the LAT on gain arising from a land transferred b. BB BEENEZ 201812 A31HIEF

within the Group during the year ended December 31, 2018.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable
to the ordinary shareholders of the Company is based on the
following data:

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share for the years ended December
31, 2018 and 2017 are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year on
the assumption that the capitalization issue as set out in note
47 had been effective on January 1, 2017.

14.

BRAEF
ARRBEBEBRREESRERNRT
T TP 8RR B

BREFXEBF

HZE2018FE K% 2017FE 12 A31 HILE
E - BRERABFTRARRESR A
JIE {35 F B DA F IR B 3517 3 38 A% ke
FHEE - B4 TEHE R
{LETER2017FE1B1BAER -

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017
20184 20174
Profit attributable to owners of the RRRHA AL BT
Company (RMB’000) (ANRETT) 2,088,668 754,674
Weighted average number of ordinary Tim AR g 8
shares 3,293,008,315 3,116,074,928
Basic earnings per share (RMB yuan) BRERAF (ARET) 0.63 0.24

No diluted earnings per share for the reporting period was
presented as there were no potential ordinary shares in issue
during the reporting period.

RBmERA  WEEEDETEER
WA K2 RERAEREERN -
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M1 - BERRXE
Leasehold ~ Machinery
land and and Motor Office Construction
buildings  equipment vehicles  equipment in progress Total
HELH 3
RkEF K&t RE BRAERE  REEIR o

RMB000  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETL AREBTR ARETL ARETR ARETR

Cost B
At January 1, 2017 120171 /18 3,881,965 6,549,483 43,693 40,186 313,726 10,829,063
Additions RE 11,707 35,658 8,816 1,156 779,907 837,244
Transfer from construction  EEEERTR

in progress 48,159 227,784 - 1,235 (277,178) -
Disposals HE (18,221) (73) (10,734) (235) - (29,263)
At December 31, 2017 2017512 A318 3,923,610 6,812,852 41,775 42,342 816,465 11,637,034
Additions RE - 30,268 11,318 5,195 1,074,331 1121112
Transfer from construction  EEEHEETR

in progress 521,912 778,846 - - (1,300,758 -
Disposals HE (45,961) (7,662) (9,787) (913) (68,115) (132,438)
At December 31, 2018 12018E 12 A318 4,399,561 7,614,304 43,306 46,624 521913 12,625,708
Depreciation and RERAE

impairment
At January 1, 2017 120171818 683,640 1,390,843 29,439 30,586 - 2,134,508
Depreciation e 134,794 395,426 5,359 2,123 - 537,702
Disposals HE (5,066) - (6,263) (84) - (11,413)
At December 31, 2017 20175124318 813,368 1,786,269 28,535 32,625 - 2,660,797
Depreciation e 159,348 408,058 7,877 2,561 - 577,844
Disposals HE (7,846) (1,999) (9,059) (224) - (19,128)
At December 31, 2018 2018E 12 A318 964,870 2,192,328 27,353 34,962 - 3,219,513
Carrying amounts REE
At December 31, 2018 20184 12A31H 3,434,691 5,421,976 15,953 11,662 521,913 9,406,195
At December 31, 2017 R2017E12A318 3,110,242 5,026,583 13,240 9,717 816,455 8,976,237
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W,

15.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other
than construction in progress, after taking into account their
estimated residuals, are depreciated on a straight-line basis as
follows:

Leasehold land and buildings ~ Over the shorter of 30 years or the term of

the leases
Machinery and equipment 5-30 years
Motor vehicles 3-12 years
Office equipment 2-15 years

As at December 31, 2018, the carrying amounts of
equipment and other machinery held under finance leases of
the Group were RMB117,104,000 (2017: RMB126,053,000).

Details of the pledged property, plant and equipment are set
out in note 44.

As at December 31, 2018 and 2017, all leasehold land and
buildings were located in the PRC.

During the current year, the Group was in the progress of
relocating one of its plants between locations in Dingzhou
City pursuant to the local government’s arrangement. The
old plant was shut down and began dismantling after the
new plant completed and operated in November 2018.
The compensation agreed by the local government was
determined on the basis of the assessed value of all relevant
property, plant and equipment in the affected plant as well
as the market value of the land use right recalled and to be
publicly auctioned. The compensation would be finalised and
settled after the public auction of the land use right.

Certain portion of the land use right and relevant building with
carrying amounts of RMB21,943,000 and RMB9,515,000
respectively were taken over by the local government
in November 2018. The Group recognised an expected
compensation receivable amounting to RMB71,374,000
and a gain on disposal amounting to RMB39,916,000 at the
disposal date. Subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the public auction of the land use right was finalised and the
compensation of RMB71,374,000 was received.

15. M3 - BERRE @

BREZTERI  LilimE  BE AR
IR B AT R A MET RIS EERIZA
TUREHENE

HETHREF 304 ok #H
(ABEEA%E)

MR R 5ZE 304

b= 3124

MAERE 2E 154

M2018412 A31H @ "EB R IE &l

EHERBENRENMEMKSORE
BEAARE 117,104,000 7T (2017 4 :
AR #126,053,0007T) ©

BEEME - BERRENFBIHR
BI3T 44 -

R2018FE M 2017F 12 A31H » FTA
ME T MEFHMRFER -

RAFE - AREEIFZRRBI A BT
ZHE - EEMTARME 2 MiREE
F—fERE ¥RE 2018 F 11 AL
% EMEBEEAIL ARG o K
HREZENHEDNIREZZERENA
HEME - BFE LR ENTEEEN
MAE MBI R AFIAE & T A
MEETE - #mEBRARMAE L 1E
B EERESE -

EREED R A AR 21,943,000 7T &
AR# 9,515,000 LAY E0> L Hb {5 A
RAEEREYC hit H AR 20184
11 AEE - AEBWRTEEWRE
BEARET71,374,000 TR AEEH
BRI B W AELA K% 39,916,000
T e RIS HIRE - THEAENR

HAAREDEEE AR 71,374,000
TCE A E B B URER ©
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W,

15.

16.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

As at December 31, 2018, the carrying amounts of
the remaining land and property, plant and equipment
in the old plant are amounting to RMB18,243,000 and
RMB190,384,000 respectively. These land and property, plant
and equipment will be taken over successively by the local
government according to the progress of dismantling which is
expected to be over one year. The Directors are of the opinion
that the compensation to be received would be higher than
the carrying amounts of these land and property, plant and
equipment and therefore no impairment has been made as at
December 31, 2018.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Movements in the prepaid lease payments, which represent
land use rights in the PRC, during the reporting period are
analyzed as follows:

15.

16.

ME - BB RRE @

MN2018%F 12 A31H EMENEET
THRYE  BERERENRAED
Bl A AR118,243,000 7T & A BRI
190,384,000 7T ° %% L ih K% - R
ERREG AT BFRERBEE
(FEH BB —F) LkEE -EERA
BB R EESRZEL R E
= MR EREREE - MR 20184 12
A31 BEELRE -

BANEEARK

RBEHA - FANEE AR (BN E
E’Jiiﬂzﬁﬁﬁﬁé) ‘‘‘‘‘‘ EBI T ¢

Year ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017

2018 20174

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET T ARETF T

At the beginning of the reporting period %R & Hi¥] 1,143,306 1,170,041
Additions NE 111,939 -
Released to profit or loss HEER (24,552) (26,735)
Disposals e (103,580) -
At the end of the reporting period R E R 1,127,113 1,143,306

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: DWEZIRAE

Non-current asset FRBEE 1,099,735 1,116,206
Current asset MEEE 27,378 27,100
1,127,113 1,143,306

Details of pledged prepaid lease payments are set out in note
44,
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W,

17.

18.

GOODWILL

Goodwill on the consolidated statement of financial position
as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 represents goodwill
arising on an acquisition of Cangzhou Risun and is carried
at cost as established on June 8, 2016, being the date of
Cangzhou Risun becoming a subsidiary of the Group, less
accumulated impairment losses. At the end of each reporting
period, goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
for the purpose of impairment testing. No impairment has
been recognized during the reporting period.

As of December 31, 2018, the Group prepared cash flow
projection for Cangzhou Risun based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a b-year period, and pre-
tax discount rate of 12.5% (2017: 12.2%). The cash flow
beyond the 5-year period was a steady 3% growth rate. Other
key assumptions for the value in use calculations related
to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include
budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation is based
on Cangzhou Risun’s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management
believes that any reasonably possible change in any of these
assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of Cangzhou Risun to exceed the aggregate recoverable
amount of Cangzhou Risun.

17.

mE

HZE2018F K& 2017F12 A31 BiFA
B TS AR L 2R A P 8 BB SR N JB B P
EAMEE - JyR20164F 6 A8 H (B
EMBIEK AR EENE AT A HE)
BERRAR ZETRERBTE - ¥
EREPR BEEHIEZERESESE
BAAEITRERG - REREHRL
EIERRE °

HZE2018F 128318 KREFHIRE
EREHENSFHEMNBEEE R
BTRMNBEMNRESRETEA - Wik
12 5% (20174 : 12.2% ) K9BLATAL IR
TEM”EHZII EL5£|EHHFEJE}]£EiU|LE
Tﬂ%ﬁﬁ 3% E’ﬂ‘mi-ﬁﬂﬁ”’a i o

CREBESENEMFERREARS
//ILA///\L:H:'JE)J1EE+$HF§ @?ﬁ]’ﬁi%‘?fﬁ

ERMENE BB ERNRIMNB
BeERREEEBAEMSERNTE
Ho-BEERA  ERZERERNE
MAEREEEFT T2 EHORM B
V4R PR B 48 8RN TERZ B9 A2 AT U (]
TR

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. BILEE
Year ended December 31,
BZE12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARTT
Cost: B
At the beginning of the reporting period R ¥R E1 %)) 108,697 106,802
Additions NE 29,857 1,895
At the end of the reporting period REREHIR 138,554 108,697
Accumulated amortization and Bt BEREE
impairment:
At the beginning of the reporting period TR & Hi¥] 55,922 48,399
Charge for the year FAZH 8,207 7,523
At the end of the reporting period MR & ER 64,129 55,922
Carrying amounts: BREE
At the end of the reporting period R E IR 74,425 52,775

The intangible assets are mainly patented use rights of
techniques. The intangible assets are amortized on a straight-
line basis over the patented periods ranging from 5 to 10
years, based on the shorter of the period of their contractual
rights or expected useful life.

EWEETZBREEFIMERRE -
EREERE %@%%IJHWE&%EHHT@
AFHMERREENRLE1I0FNE
FHAB A B AR RS -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REEE NTIMESRS
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Cost of investments A& KA 535,272 535,272
Share of post-acquisition profits and other TD%’}EH& K e Uk i B
comprehensive income, net of dividend 2 fh BB 1& 5 7l &2
received and receivable Emzmkas 112,947 41,797
Less: impairment (note) B ORE (FEE) (196,908) (196,908)
451,311 380,161
Note: Before the reporting periods, impairment of RMB196,908,000 was BEE - SRS HAAT - RE AR % 196,908,000 7T

recognized against 30% equity interest in Yangmei Group Shouyang
Jingfu Coal Co., Ltd. (“Jingfu Coal”) held by the Group mainly due to the
insufficient utilization rate and the coal price below the expectation at
the initial investment.

BAEEREREEESHREEEERR
A (TRBRED FER30%RERR -
TEHRRMBETR KRR ERENY
RIRERTRE -

Details of the associates at December 31, 2018 and 2017 MR20184F K 2017412 A 31 HEE R
were as follows: AIFFIBT .
Country of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ Principal place ownership interest voting rights
Name of entity registration of business held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
rEEREN FEEREN
ERER FMAYL/AMEAR ITEEHY BEERELY REELH TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
20188  2017F  2018F  2017F
Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC/ The PRC 50% 50% 50% 50%  Production of refined
("Jinniu Risun Chemicals”) March 28, 2008 chemicals
(AL 2B TERRAAF) (hote)
Ak RBLIERAR wE/ HE EERANIER
(e B L)) (F) 200843 A28H
Cabot Risun Chemicals (Xingtai) Co. Ltd. ~ The PRC/ The PRC 40% 40% 40% 40% Production of carbon black
("Cabot Risun Chemicals”) June 23, 2011
(FEEEREI(Fa)ERAH) hote)
FEERHLI(Ba) BRAR) wE/ HE FERR
(IRERERET)) (W) 201146 A23A
Jingfu Coal The PRC/ The PRC 30% 30% 30% 30% Mining of coal
(GREESGRREEERAA) ote)  June 27, 1992
GEEEEEREEEERAT wE/ HE BRHRE
(F2BEX) (M) 199256 A27A
Cangzhou Senxu Port Co. Ltd. The PRC/ The PRC 35% 35% 35% 35% Port transportation
(EMABABARAF) (note) May 9, 2016
EMZFBEBERAR (F) HE/ HE BOER
2016F5A49H
Note: The English translation of the name of the above associates is for MiE -

reference only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. RE&E QM ER (&)
In the opinion of the Directors, none of the associates EERR BIEBE QREHASEDN
principally affected the results or net assets of the Group. To HXESEEFEEIERE -EER
give further details of the associates of the Group would, in "OE—SPREASEEBREAANE
the opinion of the Directors, results in particulars of excessive BEEHERBRITE °
length.
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in BE RNRIRGE M BmAPHRAER
the consolidated financial statements. BB R ©
Aggregate information of associates that are not individually FEER BRI E A FIMBIEER
material:
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A3MBLEE
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Profit and total comprehensive income FERFIREZEK LT
for the year 201,426 132,045
Group's share of profit of associates REBHEFEHE
for the year ANSIbi| 89,150 60,350
Dividends declared by associates FABE AT TIRMKE
for the year 18,000 137,000
20. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE 20. R—REELENER
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREF T
Cost of investments B AR 45,000 45,000
Share of post-acquisition profits and other [k 2 U Kz & U A B 59
comprehensive income, net of dividend 25 W BB 18 3% | &2
received and receivable E 2w 808,486 626,677
853,486 671,677
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20. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 20. A—REELENER (&)
Details of the joint venture as at December 31, 2018 and %2018@&2017@12)3 31 HAED
2017 were as follows: EFBWT

Country of Proportion of Proportion of
incorporation/ Principal place ownership interest voting rights
Name of entity registration of business held by the Group held by the Group Principal activity
FREREN REEREN
BHER EMRY/ HERER FEEEHE RERERLA REELH TEEH
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20176 20185 20175
Hebei China Coal Risun Coking Limited The PRC The PRC 45% 45% 45% 45%  Production of coke and
("CNC Risun Coking") coking chemicals
(Tt ERGEELERAE) hote a)
AR ERGELERAR M L CEERRENER
(THEEBEL)) (Hie)
Notes: M5 -
a. The Group, China Coal and Coke Holding Limited (“CNC Coke"), an a. AEE —RBUEZHPEEIERE
independent third party, and another independent third party, hold REEAR([RPEELRD UES—F
45%, 45% and 10% equity interest in CNC Risun Coking, respectively. BYE=F DRFAEREREGELSN

45% RHE - 45% AR F2 10% AR 1 < AR 1%
200741 A1 BRI W - AEEHE
ZAREESTHOME  AFRPEERE

Pursuant to the agreement dated January 1, 2007, the Group has the
right to appoint two out of five directors which is responsible for making
decisions on the financial and operating activities of CNC Risun Coking,

where these decisions require a minimum resolution of two-third of the
voting right of the board of directors. Accordingly, the Group and CNC
Coke who is also entitled to appoint two directors share joint control
over CNC Risun. In this regard, CNC Risun Coking is accounted for as a
joint venture of the Group.

The English translation of the name of the above joint venture is for
reference only. The official name of the entity is in Chinese.

SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF CNC

EER IS RS EEEIELIRE » Tt
REFHEFTEPEL =2 _FKE
HERK BORZE BB o FIt - $El&ﬂﬁﬁ
BEEMBESHORREKRZHF
BB - st s - HEBB AT AR
SEMEEDRE-

b. e E R R EEER2E -
BENEXNBREAP -

R SERS R VBT S E R R

RISUN COKING
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 & 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBEF T
Non-current assets ERBEE 3,303,368 3,158,907
Current assets MEEE 1,117,105 1,526,476
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 325,895 781,125
Current liabilities mENa & 2,197,942 2,411,643
Net assets BEFE 1,896,636 1,492,615

212 | China Risun Group Limited Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRRME

20. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 20. R—REELENER @)

SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF CNC FEERECNTEERBIE (&)
RISUN COKING (Continued)

The above amounts of assets and liabilities include the T EENEBESEAENT
following:

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2018 2017
20185 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 408,261 70,182
Current financial liabilities (excluding trade REEmEE (TREE S
and other payables and provisions) K2 E A JE A SRIE R A ) 295,054 507,746
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding 3ERZBEc/RmEE (FTEEE
trade and other payables and provisions) 5 Kz L fE A< 3008 & 4 ) 296,321 447,914
Year ended December 31,
BZ12A31BLEE
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®FT T AREEFT
Revenue Was 8,134,525 8,274,596
Profit and total comprehensive income FERMNR2E W B
for the year 1,218,788 501,153
Dividends received from the joint venture WHELE & ZMEMKE 275,459 28,756
The above profit for the year includes the — F#i FERS A BIEAT ¢
following:
Depreciation and amortization WER#H 217,106 206,188
Interest income FEHA 3,522 5,139
Interest expense FERX 41,663 63,038
Income tax expense TS X 408,831 181,799
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20. INTERESTS IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 20. R—REELENER 5
SUMMARIZED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF CNC PR ERE RN ERBIE (&)
RISUN COKING (Continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarized financial information FAl B ER B E RN S I IEIRE
to the carrying amount of the interest in CNC Risun Coking NIERK R EBRE S ERREEN
recognized in the consolidated financial statements: HER
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Net assets of CNC Risun Coking PEBREELCHEEFE 1,896,636 1,492,615
Proportion of the Group's ownership AEBMPN A EBEREELER
interest in CNC Risun Coking WA R 45% 45%
Carrying amount of the Group's interest in  R&E B IEBSE/1LE
CNC Risun Coking EmREE 853,486 671,677
21. AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS 21. AHHEESHMEE
As at
December 31,
2017
R 2017 4F
12 A31H
RMB'000
ARBEF T
Unlisted equity investments at cost (note a) IEETRAKE - KRS (M sEa) 35,000
Provision for impairment (note a) BERE (Miita) (12,000)
23,000
Structured trust product, at fair value (note b) B HEETER  BAAESER (HiEb) 31,220
Total #E 54,220
Analyzed as: IR
Non-current assets JEMENEEE 23,000
Current assets MEEE 31,220
54,220
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21. AFS FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

21. AHEEESHEE @

Notes: L

a. The unlisted equity investments represent equity investments in a. EEMRARERNPREK LI LT
unlisted entities established in the PRC. They were measured at cost HEEMBRAKRE 20157 + 2016 F &
less impairment at December 31, 2015, 2016 and 2017 before adoption 2017 412 A 31 B £ 40 B B2 B 75 5 15 2 R
of IFRS 9 because these investments did not have a quoted market FIFAINERARERENE RAA
price in an active market and their fair value could not be reliably ZEREBRERMS EWEMIS®RER
measured. Upon the adoption of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018, the unlisted HARETEASE - R2018F1 A1
equity investment was subsequently mandatorily measured at FVTPL as HERNBIR B s s 5 2RI 95R1% - FE L
stated in note 22. TMRAREEBRFIZRAAEGT AR

P& (BT 22 i) -
Before year 2015, impairment of RMB12,000,000 was recognized 2015 71 ¢ B A R # 12,000,000 7T
against 5% equity interests in FAH & BE AR EE A7 (“Xi Gan Railway DEtAAEEHAENATERERE
Limited") amounted to RMB35,000,000 held by the Group mainly due to ERE ([EHERARETAFI) %K
the insufficient utilization rate in the railway operations of Xi Gan Railway ## (BEAR®350000007T) ' EZH
Limited. RAHEKRARETARNEKEERF
FAETREATH -
In September 2017, the Group disposed of an unlisted investment with R2017F 98 AEBHEREEAAR
the carrying amount of RMB1,000,000 to a third party at a consideration #1,000,000 THIFELTIRE T —RE=
of RMB707,000, resulting in a loss of RMB293,000 recognized in the 7 REARAREET707,0007T - BHERE
profit or loss for the year ended December 31, 2017. AR #293,0007T ' EREE2017F 12
A31AIFERIBSEPIER -

b. In 2015, the Group subscribed for a structured trust product from b. R2015%F « AEE R —HFE S mEE
a licensed financial institution. The structured trust product is not RBEBUEETED - ZAEBEETED
principal-protected, carrying an expected annual return at rates WIERA - FEEFRIHEBETF6.5% -7
of 6.5% per annum. As at December 31, 2017, the Group's bank 201712 A31 8  ZEEMBITERA
loans of RMB60,000,000 were secured by the structured trust R #60,000,000 T E A Z & EIEETE
product. The Group redeemed aggregate principal amount of such of IR c REBEREZE2018F 12 A31
RMB31,220,000 during the year ended December 31, 2018 (2017: AIEFEAHBERAS AR 31,220, OOO
RMB29,356,000), which was mandatorily measured at FVTPL upon the 7t (20174 + AR #29,356,0007T)
adoption of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018 as stated in note 3. R20184F1 A1 EIT%iJ?‘JWﬂﬂ&iEiEE‘J

FoRERHIRANBEFABRE K
WM EE 3 FA) -
22. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL 22. BARBEFABENESREE

e\

AFTER ADOPTION OF IFRS 9 KRB R EERE IR R
As at
December 31,
2018
A 2018 F
128318
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Non-current assets ETEEE
Listed equity securities (note b) ETBRAES (MsEb) 51,017
Unlisted equity investment (note d) IEETRAKE (H5Ed) 25,000
76,017
Current assets MENEE
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial assets BEEBTESRMEE 286
Current liabilities ﬁ@]fﬁﬁ
Futures contracts (note a) HEA 4 (HEa) (448)
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS/LIABILITIES AT FVTPL

(Continued)
BEFORE ADOPTION OF IFRS 9

22, BARBEFABENERHEE

J B & E)
R4 B PR B S R 5 ZE BI B8 9 S B

As at

December 31,

2017

® 2017 F

12A31H

RMB'000

ARBFIT

Futures contracts (note a) BHEA#4 (Hita) 6,059
Listed equity securities (note b) EREAES (FisEp) 33,288
Wealth management product (note c) HEEEESR (Mztce) 60,000
Held-for-trading non-derivative financial assets BEEERTESREE 4,991
104,338

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: SERHRAR

Non-current assets JERBEE 93,288
Current assets RBEE 11,118
Current liabilities RBafE (68)
104,338

Notes:

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Group
entered into certain futures contracts of coke, coking coal, and chemical
products with licensed futures trading companies to mitigate its risk
associated with the prices of its coke, coking coal, and chemical
products sold without applying hedge accounting, and recognized a gain
of RMB 98,481,000 and a loss of RMB12,504,000 arising on changes in
fair value of these financial instruments in the profit or loss during the
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (note 8).

On September 22, 2017, the Group subscribed for 13,000,000 H shares
of Henan Jinma Energy Company Limited as a cornerstone investor
with six months lock-in period through a subscriber-directed structured
trust product issued by a qualified institutional investing company. The
initial investment principal amounted to RMB36,000,000. The fair value
was RMB51,017,000 as at December 31, 2018(2017: RMB33,288,000),
and a gain of RMB17,728,000 and a loss of RMB2,712,000 arising on
change in fair value of the instrument in the listed equity securities
during the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 (note 8).

On December 21, 2017, the Group subscribed for a non principal-
protected wealth management product from a licensed asset
management company due on December 20, 2022, which invests
mainly in coke-related futures contracts. The initial investment principal
amounted to RMB60,000,000, of which RMB40,000,000 was financed
by a borrowing secured by a structured trust product subscribed by the
Group from a licensed financial institution bearing total expected return
at 6% per annum and due on September 21, 2022. The Group early
redeemed the wealth management product in full in December 2018.

These financial assets at FVTPL were reclassified and remeasured on
January 1, 2018 and details are included in note 3.
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23. OTHER LONG TERM RECEIVABLES AND 23. HhRHAEWRER AN FIE
PREPAYMENTS
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREF AREF T
Amount due from an investee (note) JE W 15 & 77 3R I8 (B ) 25,000 25,000
Prepayments for property, plant and Y - HE REED
equipment B RIE 7,905 19,744
Deposits for prepaid lease payments ENHEENRNIZS 3,056 28,154
Others H A, 27,099 35,505
63,060 108,403
Note: The amount due from an investee represents a capital reduction MIGE - B IR & 75 FUIA A FE W IE £ IR AR
receivable from an unlisted equity investment recognized as AFS & (R2018F1 A1 BEEMEIEM SRS
financial assets (note 21) before adoption of IFRS 9 on January 1, 2018 ERIFEINRAT (MisF21) At E LR
and financial assets at FVTPL (note 22) after adoption of IFRS 9, arising BENRMBEBRGEREEDEINRE
from a capital reduction resolution passed in the shareholder meeting of (fsE22) AR B ABEZNEREE
the unlisted equity investment before 2015. The amount is unsecured ) BB A ZRIE - TIE 2015 FATE%
and its interest is to be negotiated. FE LR AN B M AR R A2 A B R R
TRERMESE < xS BEAEIEKR 7B
BEERER -
24. DEFERRED TAX 24, EERIE
As at December 31,
Mm12HA31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®F R ARETF T
Deferred tax assets IR E E 289,249 340,481
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEAE (64,866) (65,792)
224,383 284,689
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24, EIETBIE (K)

RBERREZEE
ERIBEE,(AE)EKID RES

The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized
in the consolidated statements of financial position and the

B 5RO R FE R R R

movements during the reporting period are as follows: wmr
Temporary
differences Fair value
on property, adjustment
plant and Impairment on
equipment loss acquisition
Impairment and on interest ofa
losses on intangible Unused inan  subsidiary
receivables assets taxloss  associate (note) Others Total
®B
n% - BE R-% KBE-X
R BELT WEAFAMN
EUFEN REFEE  RBAN BEN QAERE
AEER EREE HEER  HERR (W) Hitr @t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETE ARETR ARETR ARETT ARSTR
At January 1, 2017 R201751 718 46,296 78,266 60,082 49227 (37,865) 8,590 204,596
(Charged)/credited to (IR E) /T AB&R
profit or loss (7,089) 71,303 22,907 - 768 (7,826) 80,093
At December 31,2017 7201712 A31H 39,237 149,569 82,989 49,227 (37,097) 764 284,689
Effect arising from initial & /% F FR B4 75 3
application of RS9 &EB|E9%EL
(note 3) k2 G 1,966 - - - - (500) 1,466
(Charged)fcreditedto (MR B) /FHABE
profit or loss (12,427) 27,022 (78,530) - 768 1,39 61,772)
At December 31,2018 74201812 A31H 28,776 176,591 4,459 49,227 (36,329) 1,659 224,383

Note: Deferred tax liabilities of fair value adjustment recognized by the Group
represented the fair value adjustment on prepaid lease payments arising
from the business acquisitions.
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 24. JEFERBLIE (&)
As at the end of each reporting period, the Group has unused REREMR  NEBERSAFIEE
tax losses available for offsetting against future profits as BRI EAR R AT
follows:

As at December 31,

MW12A31H

2018 2017

20184 2017 4

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T ARET T

Unused tax losses RENABTEEE 732,346 1,115,123
Less: recognized deferred asset B EERELEEE (17,838) (331,955)
Unrecognized tax losses (note) AR EERE (M) 714,508 783,168
Note: The use of these tax losses is subjected to the agreement of the tax Misk: FAZEREEBECHEKBEREY
authorities and compliance with certain provisions of the tax legislation BEFREFANE TREE - AERKRIEE

of the PRC. The unrecognized tax losses will expire in five years after BEREABRATANEE  WHERERE

they are incurred. No deferred tax has been recognized due to the FRIE - Jh i P R 2R B T8 v R B9 A AT FEUAI

unpredictability of future tax profit streams. The unrecognized tax losses 1 o RIERRBEBBRATEEZEIE -

declared will expire in the following years:

As at December 31,

R12A831H

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARBTT
2018 20184 - 76,681
2019 20194 20,125 23,681
2020 2020 F 286,168 286,168
2021 2021 F 209,202 209,202
2022 2022 F 187,436 187,436
2023 2023 4F 11,577 -
714,508 783,168
As at December 31, 2018, the Group has other deductible 2018F 12 A31H  AEEBE HAb
temporary differences of approximately RMB78,234,000 A0 E R = BB A A R #5 78,234,000
(2017: RMB21,783,000), which are mainly arising from JC (2017 F + AR¥21,783,0007T) °
unrealised profits arising from a land transferred within FTEELBARSERNTHEEMEN
the Group and impairment of trade and other receivables AERGANEETHBARNE S &
of certain subsidiaries. No deferred tax asset has been H th B Ue B B o I 2 BhE Ath AT 30
recognized in relation to such other deductible temporary R EREEAELRIBEE  JIH
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will be FAFE SRR S5 M A Rl R S m & R Y

available for offset against which the deductible temporary A R R = E o

differences can be utilized.
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24. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

25.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from January 1, 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to retained profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to RMB4,289,199,000 as at December 31,
2018 (2017: RMB3,041,509,000), except for the deferred
taxation amounting to RMB11,053,000 provided for the
dividends declared of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB221,053,000 on January 10, 2019, as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EERLIE ()
RFEPEMEMSHE - 820084 1
A1ABRPENE QR MBI G
FE R &R BB TEI R - 722018
F12A31H REAMBHRERITE
BLAR BT B A B R A E AR AL
Z% AR #4,289,199,000 7T (2017
£ AR¥3,041,509,0007T) 5TiRIE
TR IEREAE - MR 2019F 1 H10
HHREWEARMEROBREARE
221,053,000 JLEHR AR ER B R A
R #11,053,000 TCER AN + ThERA RS
Bl i H B O TR E AR m
R EEARE TG ER BARKRER -

INVENTORIES 7E
As at December 31,
M12H831H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETF T
Raw materials R 564,484 451,400
Finished goods AN 191,726 99,223
Trading stocks BEo51FE 252,825 256,867
1,009,035 807,490

Details of the pledged inventories are set out in note 44.
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HREMBHRERME
26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE 26. EZRHEMEBBWFE BRAR
AND BILLS RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT Bt AHMtZHKRBFTENE
FVTOCI ZRBUREBERERRE
As at December 31,
®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Trade receivables B 5 W EIE 273,389 241,781
Less: impairment B ORE (86,834) (104,592)
186,555 137,189
Bills receivable W & 2,992,740 2,781,661
Prepayments for raw materials AR FEAS FOR 797,252 507,778
Other deposits, prepayments and other  Hithiz & - BT KB KX
receivables A E W kIR 188,250 80,246
Deductible input Value Added Tax and AT HUR 8 A S E R &
prepaid other taxes and charges TERTE M 118 & B A 84,976 197,058
Less: impairment R E (49,014) (74,135)
4,200,759 3,629,797
Analyzed for reporting purpose as: DITEZ2 AR
Trade and other receivables B 5 KA b e GRIE 1,021,464 3,629,797
Trade and bills receivables measured BARBEFAEMEE
at FVTOCI Wt EmME FEK
A N E W R IR 3,179,295 -
4,200,759 3,629,797
As at 1 January 2017, trade receivables from contracts with R2017F1H1H  REEFAHH
customers amounted to RMB308,349,000. H 5 EUGRIA B A K ¥ 308,349,000

JC °
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE 26. B REMEKRRE BAA

AND BILLS RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT
FVTOCI (Continued)

The customers usually settle the sales by cash or bills. The
credit period granted to the customers who settle in cash is
usually no more than 30 days, interest free with no collateral.
Aging of trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses/
doubtful debts based on invoice dates, which approximated
the respective revenue recognition dates, are as follows:

EHf AHMEHEKWSEITENE
ZRWHRIER ERRE (@)

EFRENRSXZREEBRMH
E - ARABTURSHEENTFH
EEMBETEBI0H (2R RALE
Efim) RERAMIINEZHE
WHIE (KR EEEER/ REREE) R
fic (AR EER A REE) AT

As at December 31,

R12H31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
Within one month —EAA 177,022 108,472
1 to 3 months 12318A 3,485 4,626
3 to 6 months 3E61EA 961 366
6 to 12 months 62 121@A 5,087 22,715
1-2 years 1226 - 177
2-3 years 2E3F - 833
186,555 137,189

No credit period is offered for sales to be settled by bills,
carrying interest at market rates. Bills receivable are bank
acceptance notes and the average aging based on the
maturity date is from 90 days to 360 days. The Directors
believes that no impairment allowance on bills receivable is
necessary as there is no significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.

Details of the pledged trade and other receivables are set out
in note 44.

Starting from January 1, 2018, the Group applied the
expected credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, and the
impairment methodology of ECL model is set out in note 41.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE
AND BILLS RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT
FVTOCI (Continued)

The movements in the impairment for prepayments and
allowance for doubtful debts under IAS 39 during the year

26. BESREMBERNRE EOR
B AHM2EHRETRNE
% PSR IR K FE R R ()
IR EER & RIS 305  BE 2017
12 431 B FEM TN HORRE

ended December 31, 2017 are as follows: LRRBEEZHOT
Year ended
December 31,
2017
HE2017F
12 A31H
IEFE
RMB’'000
ARETFT
At the beginning of the reporting period Rk E BB 206,964
Impairment losses recognized BEREREEE 10,279
Impairment losses reversed BB RERE (7,083)
Amounts written off during the year I8 B TR (31,433)
At the end of the reporting period REEEAR 178,727

The table below is analysis of trade receivables as at
December 31, 2017 under IAS 39:

TERABBEREBE T ERFEI9RRA
201712 A3 HWE S EWARIERN

DHT
As at
December 31,
2017
72017
12 A31H
RMB'000
AR T T
Not past due and not impaired (note a) K E E W AR RE (HEa) 108,472
Past due but not impaired (note b) BB RBE (HiEb) 28,717
Total trade receivables B 5 W IR BEE 137,189

PEESSEEARAR
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE 26. EZRHEMBWNRE RAR

Ju
AND BILLS RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT Bt \HfttZHKEFENE
FVTOCI (Continued) 5 EWE IE&@WEE (#&)
Notes: L
a. There has not been a significant change in credit quality of these trade a. ZERBBMARBENE S EBGRIEN
receivables that are not past due and not impaired. FEEERTEERET-
b. Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with b. REEMNE FEUGIELE SR BIER 2017
aggregate carrying amount of RMB28,717,000 which are past due FN2ANHEHMNBEREAARKE
as at December 31, 2017, for which the Group has not provided for 28,717,000 JLHY FEURZRIE » T AR 14 K
impairment loss. The Group has assessed the recoverability of trade FHEREEERE AEEE2EZEBE
receivables with reference to the debt aging, historical settlement B BARELE  REEE - RRIEH
experience, subsequent settlements, future expected settlement plan, HEHE REFPHNEBBRELEPEER
business relationship with the customers and credit assessment of uﬂﬁ LB 5 IR/ AT IR B - 3
customers, and considered that there has not been a significant change REEEEEREHBRERES B840
in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable, %E?%—JE%UISZ Bl - B R 5T R E B
and accordingly no impairment has been provided. No collateral over Eo-BERZSERFEERRR - ZE
these balances is held. Age of these trade receivables that are past due BMHERRENE S ERFENRE D
but not impaired is analyzed as follows: W
As at
December 31,
2017
#2017 4
12A31H
RMB'000
AREFT
Less than 3 months past due wEI LR 3ME A 4,626
3 to 6 months past due w3 E61EA 366
More than 6 months past due mHAtE A6 A A 23,725
28,717
The following bills receivable as at December 31, 2018 and AT R 2018F K% 201712 431 H
2017 were transferred to banks or suppliers by discounting, BREMAEEMBRBEREEIR K
pledging to banks or endorsing those receivables on a full HWZERRFAIBETRITAEEZESE
recourse basis. As the Group has not transferred substantially W 3k T8 T 6 5 T 4R 17 Sk A e R A0 R UK
all the risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it i Hﬂﬁ’\ﬁﬁljﬁ?ﬂi@}%&?%%l
continues to recognize the full carrying amounts of the HIERB A AR KRR EEE
receivables and the corresponding liabilities are included TR U5 IEE’JE%EEE@EBU‘H e
in secured borrowings or trade payables, whichever is Bt ABEIRERE SR FIE (A
appropriate. These financial assets are carried at amortized EREBE) - %5 & A E IR IR BIPR
cost under IAS 39 and reclassified as FVTOCI under IFRS 9 GRS 39 SRIR B SR AR AR - W
since January 1, 2018 in the Group's consolidated statement Q 2018¢1 A1 AR R R B S R
of financial position. £B|F RN A E B LR E HIEMRNR
%WE%’\* BIEAABEFTAEME
HEE -
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR ARBTIT
Carrying amount of transferred assets PRHEEEEREE 2,765,994 2,708,274
Carrying amount of associated payables ~ #8 FAWEHT LIE B SRR RR B
to suppliers (note 29) (fff5E29) (2,596,558) (2,534,042)
Carrying amount of associated loans MHEAEFEREE (H:E31)
(note 31) (169,436) (174,232)
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26. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/TRADE
AND BILLS RECEIVABLES MEASURED AT
FVTOCI (Continued)

At December 31, 2018 and 2017, bills receivable issued
among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions
have been discounted with full recourse to secure
bank borrowings amounting RMB3,109,052,000 and
RMB3,133,972,000 respectively, and these bills receivable
have been eliminated in these consolidated financial
statements (note 31).

During the reporting period, the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards relating to certain bills
receivable discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers
even if the banks and suppliers have the right of recourse.
The Group’s obligations to the corresponding counterparties
were discharged in accordance with the commercial practice
in the PRC and the risk of the default in payment of the
endorsed and discounted bills receivable is remote because
all endorsed and discounted bills receivable are issued and
guaranteed by reputable banks in the PRC. As a result, the
relevant assets and liabilities were derecognized and no
longer included in the consolidated financial statements. The
maximum exposure to the Group that may result from the
default of these endorsed and discounted bills receivable at
the end of each reporting period are as follows:

26.

ESREMBRRE ROR

BHAE méﬁw&%ém%
5 1 I A L S (o

5@2018@&2017@12531 SE
AEENBRARZEREBRRAQ

ARAZXZETHREREREZNE
EPHERBEEMBURD AR

AR #3,109,052,000 T B A R
3,133,972,000 JTAYER 1T fE ZRIEHK I -
MZERKZERERZELAUBR
RN (FFFE31) »

RB|BEHMA - AEECERARET
METRITHEE T HEBNEKE
ERBAE D R K B ¥R (BMERTT
%M,ftﬁ%?éﬁﬁ?ﬁ%?%) o AR EEHME
RHHFHERGCEBTEBRED
ﬁﬂﬁf}\ EEEREMBERERENN
FENERSMTEN  BRMED
BENMCDHREBEREIETEASE
BRRITEITRER - At - HEE
EMBBECRUIBRATHEENE
BMBRERT RNEREHK - XK

B H2 % BERBRRBERERE
KRR E MR ARBRIAT

As at December 31,

M®12HA31H
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®EFT
Discounted bills for raising cash BEMEEENEERS 881,059 961,047
Endorsed bills for settlement of payables T &= Z 1% LB~ fE
to suppliers HE R RIE 2,444,176 2,682,130
Outstanding endorsed and discounted bills B 738 R HEH) i R B HIE &
receivable with recourse ERE AR EWEE 3,325,235 3,643,177

The outstanding endorsed and discounted bills receivable will
be matured within 12 months from each reporting date.

HARZHHNE S E M MBRRERRE
KESREAREI12EA AR -

PEESSEEARAR
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27. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 27.

The carrying amounts of the Group's restricted bank balances
placed to secure various liabilities of the Group are as follows:

ZREIRITAEER

ARERARESEEARNAKRER
RBIRITAESRM BRI E T

As at December 31,

®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T

Restricted bank balances to secure: BRHOZRBRITER
Bills payable (note) FEAT 4% (P 3E) 2,505,852 2,368,758
Letters of credit ZHFE 239,656 114,555
Futures contracts HEAH 148,158 78,776
Bank loans RITER 661,972 554,106
Other loans EMER 25,659 -
3,581,297 3,116,195
As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREF T

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: SWEZRAE

Non-current assets IEREE E 128,000 313,140
Current assets MENE E 3,453,297 2,803,055
3,581,297 3,116,195

Note: Certain restricted bank balance were placed to secure bills issued
among subsidiaries of the Group for intra-group transactions which
have been discounted with full recourse to secure bank borrowings of
RMBS3,109,052,000 and RMB3,133,972,000 as at December 31, 2018
and 2017 respectively. Further details of which are set out in notes 26
and 31.

Restricted bank balances are deposited with banks mainly
in the PRC and the remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government. These bank deposits carry interest at
market rates ranging from 0.30% to 2.10% per annum as at
December 31, 2018(2017: 0.30% to 1.75%).
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28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances, included bank deposits, carried interest at
market interest rate ranging from 0.35% to 0.40% per annum
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017. Bank balances and cash
as at December 31, 2018 and 2017 were mainly denominated
in RMB which is not a freely convertible currency in the
international market and the remittance of these funds out of
the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the
PRC government.

Denominated in the currency other than the functional
currency of relevant group entities:

28.

BERBEZEEY
R2018F & 2017912 A31 H » $R1T
@R (BRREBITFHETEMENT

FHF035% E0.40%:HE 20184
K2017F12 A31 BWRTEHLIR
SEEUARBIE  ARBWIETE
M FERLBRNEE  mzE
&5 IE A B78 5 R B B pE N e BE
HRH o

AR SEERNIEEE AT
#atE -

As at December 31,

®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 20174
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T
United States Dollars (“USD") (=) 29,089 36,695
Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD") B (L)) 2,040 801
Others (note) Hab (M) 198 14
31,327 37,510

Note: Others mainly contain Euro (“EUR"), Australian Dollars ("AUD") and
Renminbi.

Mz EEEaEET (BRI
TN RARE -

PEESSEEARAR
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29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BEZRHEMESRE

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBTIT
Trade payables 2 S EMNRIA 1,276,180 1,485,760
Payables to be settled by the endorsed REERKEEREENENS
bills receivable (note 26) B (M5 26) 2,596,558 2,534,042
Bills payable R RE 1,504,737 1,219,217
Payables for construction in progress R ITIRENNRIE
— interest-bearing (note) —&H B (FiaE) 96,910 641,254
— non-interest-bearing —REHE 613,017 666,343
Other payables and accruals HMENRIBERESTER 509,855 318,129
6,597,257 6,864,745
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: DITIEEFRAR ¢
Current liabilities ER=Ni 6,528,943 6,646,553
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 68,314 218,192
6,597,257 6,864,745

Note: Amount represents payables to two independent construction
companies carrying contractual interest rates of 5.80% and 6.2% per
annum, respectively, charged and chargeable on outstanding payments
after construction progress verification of the corresponding projects.
They are measured at amortized cost and will be settled by instalments
by June 30, 2019 and December 31, 2021 respectively. The payables
to one of the independent construction companies are secured by
property, plant and equipment under the related projects with carrying
amount of nil as at December 31, 2018(2017: RMB756,861,000).

Except for certain payables for construction in progress above
due after more than one year, all trade and other payables are
due within one year. The average credit period on purchases
of goods is 30 to 90 days.
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RE MBS MR T
29. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) . B RHEHMEMKIE @
The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based on AT TR & ?ﬁlﬁiﬁﬁﬂikﬁé *HEWE
the invoice date at the end of each of the reporting period: R FIERRBR DT
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T R ARBTT
Within 3 months 3EAA 967,908 1,187,143
3 to 6 months 3E6MEA 88,071 162,952
6 to 12 months 621218 A 135,241 56,929
1-2 years 1226 50,109 36,973
2-3 years 2E3F 2,324 35,852
More than 3 years 3FEMN 32,527 5,911
1,276,180 1,485,760
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. EHEE
Contract liabilities primarily represent advance from EHNEBETERREASEMINESR
customers when the Group receives payments in advance of i‘EHﬁZﬁ KIS 2R B B P W B SR TR HR A
the delivery of products, and are expected to be settled within —FANBE - HN2017F 1A TB R
one year. For the contract liabilities as at January 1, 2017 and 2017¢12 ANBMEHERE 2F
December 31, 2017, the entire balances were recognized as EHRET —EARSFENERH ﬁEm\
revenue to profit or loss in the next reporting year. J%HSZ/\ o
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31.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

The analysis of the carrying amount of bank and other loans is

RITREMER
RITREMERRAEES AT -

as follows:
As at December 31,
®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREF T
Bank loans RITER
Secured [ 3,201,500 4,644,993
Unsecured 4 1,334,499 578,935
Other loans HiEx
Secured R 815,730 1,042,080
Unsecured 4 260,000 206,000
Discounted bills financing (note 26) ARIR T IERE (Fi5E26)
- Discounted bills receivable from —REE=FHELIR
third parties B R & 169,436 174,232
— Discounted bills receivable from —RBERRTNE AT
subsidiaries of the Company AL IR Uk 22 4% 3,109,052 3,133,972
8,890,217 9,780,212
At the end of each of the reporting period, the bank and other REREHR BT LEMEREAET
loans were repayable as follows: EEBERAAT

As at December 31,

R12A831H
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Within 1 year 1FER 7,618,022 7,348,790
After 1 year but within 2 years 1R EE2FR 1,191,352 1,488,498
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F A EB5FA 80,843 942,924
8,890,217 9,780,212

Analyzed for reporting purpose as: SE2HAE

Current liabilities nRBEE 7,618,022 7,348,790
Non-current liabilities FmBEE 1,272,195 2,431,422
8,890,217 9,780,212
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31. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (Continued) 31 RITRHEMER (&
NEEENT ﬁ%i@?ﬁ%%?l\ﬁ@iéﬁﬁﬂﬁ
HERTT R E A A RE ST

Bank and other borrowings denominated in currencies other
than the functional currencies of respective entities are set

out below:
As at December 31,
®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARET T
uUsh EVv 375,915 325,005
EUR BT 117,396 116,444
The carrying amount of the bank and other borrowings and RITREMERNERENRTREE
the range of interest rates are as below: m
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 %
RMB’000 % RMB'000 %
AR¥T % AR®ETIT %
Fixed rate bank and EEIRIT M EMER
other borrowings 5,861,040 1.50-12.00 5,541,374 1.50-12.00
Floating rate bank and  J% 88R1T M A &
other borrowings 3,029,177 4.35-11.81 4,238,838 3.49-12.40
8,890,217 9,780,212

The secured other loans represent mortgage loans from the
licensed finance lease companies secured by property, plant
and equipment and prepaid lease payments, as well as loans
from licensed financial institutions secured by the Group's
bank deposits.

Details of the assets pledged for securing the banking
facilities of the Group are set out in Note 44.

Except for the bank and other loans guaranteed by the related
parties as detailed in note 39(d), a Group’s bank loan of
RMB30,000,000 as at December 31, 2018 is fully guaranteed
by an independent guarantee company, and in the meantime,
the Group provides counter guarantee to the independent
guarantee company for this bank loan.

EEAEMERIEAYE - KE KRR
wBREMHEMFTEERRNSERE
HERFIRIBER - WRAKREER
TEFEEROF RS RBBER -

$Elﬁm SIRTTRAE MIERIEME
EFFIBHNM T4 -

[é%%a G EROIBITREME R (5F
5 &R BT FE39(d) #h - A 20184 12
ﬂmam$%lﬁﬁ§ AE%
30,000,000 7L — KB R A
R - R - $%‘%?¢f§%ﬁﬁf§%ﬂ(
MEERABREBERER -
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32. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 32. MEHERE
As at December 31,
M®12A31H

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T

Analyzed for reporting purposes as: SE2HMAE -
Current liabilities nEBE 23,616 31,917
Non-current liabilities EREBAE 936 24,659
24,552 56,576
The Group entered into several finance leases with the KEB DRI REE2018F X 2017 F
licensed financial institutions for its equipment during the 12 A3 BIEFERERBEEFES R
years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. WREITVHIERERE - ZZ/ &M
The average lease term for those finance leases entered is 5 ERTFHHEERLF - R2018F &
years. Interest rates underlying all obligations under finance 2017F12A31B MEMRE NHAT
leases are fixed at the respective contract dates ranging from BEFENHEBTI RN EZHES 4 E
9.2% t0 9.6% per annum as at December 31, 2018 and 2017, HET NTEFI2% £9.6% ° &
respectively. The Group has the options to purchase the EEERBENBEREBESRE -

equipment at immaterial consideration.
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32. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(Continued)

The Group has obligations under finance leases repayable as

32.

B E AR E E ()

AEEHNREHEFRAETEERBR

follows: wmr
As at December 31,
M®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 F
Present Present
value value
of the Total of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
REHEE BREHEE =EEE HEEE
NRBRE R NHIRE I aass
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRE AR®BTR AR®FTT ARETT
Within 1 year 1FER 23,616 24,503 31,917 35,726
After 1 year but 1FAEE2FR
within 2 years 936 838 23,723 24,609
After 2 years but 2F A EBEBFER
within 5 years - - 936 838
24,552 25,341 56,576 61,173
Less: Total future W RRF B X
interest expenses kS (789) (4,597)
Present value of lease T EFKIAIRE
obligations 24,552 56,576
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33. DEFERRED INCOME 33. IEZEUWA
Year ended December 31,
BZ12BA31BLEE
2018 2017
2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Government grant related to assets REVEEEFBN
at the beginning of the year B B 51,791 54,450
Additions NE 26,051 1,133
Released to profit or loss HEig (3,792) (3,792)
At the end of the year RER 74,050 51,791
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: SWEZIRAE
Current liabilities (included in other nEBEE(BEREME
payables) RRRIE) 5,347 3,792
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 68,703 47,999
74,050 51,791
Deferred income arising from government grants relating B & B G A A U B B AR YR AE
to assets represents the government subsidies obtained ANIEBMAEE T Ak R E WS IE
in relation to the purchase of the land use rights and the BEPERMEA  RNEEMBARR
infrastructure construction, which was included in the FRARSBIRLEWA - LABE FE AR
consolidated statements of financial position as deferred BRI EEEMER A RS G
income and credited to the consolidated statements of profit ANireiEakEMmeEKER -

or loss and other comprehensive income on a straight-line
basis over the expected useful life of the relevant depreciable
assets.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. BA
As at December 31, As at December 31,
M12A31H MW12831H
2018 2017 2018 2017
20185 20174 20185 2017 %
Number Number
of shares of shares HKD ‘000 HKD '000
RHEE BGE ! FERT FET
Shares of HKD0.10 each &% 0.108 LAY AR {7
Authorized ordinary shares: &7 % B
At beginning of the year F4 9,815,418,172  9,815,418,172 981,542 981,542
Conversion (note a) 82 (Hita) 184,581,828 - 18,458 -
At end of the year FR 10,000,000,000 9,815,418,172 1,000,000 981,542
Authorized Series A shares: J&7F A ZFIR (D
At beginning of the year ~ F4]] 184,581,828 184,581,828 18,458 18,458
Conversion (note a) i (fita) (184,581,828) - (18,458) -
At end of the year FX - 184,581,828 - 18,458
Issued and fully paid of BRETLHZEBR
ordinary shares:
At the beginning of the year )] 697,742,600 697,742,600 69,774 69,774
Conversion (note a) #ia (fita) 184,581,828 - 18,458 -
Share issued (note b) BETRG (o) 80,394,096 - 8,040 -
At the end of the year FXR 962,718,524 697,742,600 96,272 69,774
Issued and fully paid of BETRER ARG
Series A shares:
At the beginning of the year F 4] 184,581,828 184,581,828 18,458 18,458
Conversion (note a) #i (fiTa) (184,581,828) - (18,458) -
At the end of the year FXR - 184,581,828 - 18,458
As at December 31,
M12A31H
2018 2017
2018 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥F R ARETFIT
Presented in the consolidated statement WA BB K25 A
of financial position as:
At the beginning of the year F4) 80,600 80,600
Share issued BTG 6,523 -
At the end of the year FR 87,123 80,600
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34. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

a. As at December 31, 2017, the authorized share capital of the Company
was HKD1,000,000,000 by the creation of 10,000,000,000 shares of a
par value of HKDO0.10 each divided into 9,815,418,172 ordinary Shares
and 184,581,828 Series A shares. Any Series A Shares may, at the
option of the holder, be converted at any time into fully paid ordinary
shares. One Series A share will be converted into one ordinary share
subject to adjustment in dilutive events, if any. The holders of ordinary
shares and Series A shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared
from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at shareholders
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company's Articles
of Association. All ordinary shares and Series A shares rank pari passu
in all respects. On April 4, 2018, the 184,581,828 Series A shares were
converted to 184,581,828 ordinary shares.

b. On April 13, 2018, 12,664,064 and 6,332,032 ordinary shares of the
Company were issued for cash of USD10,000,000 and HKD39,120,000
(equivalent to RMB94,721,000) to provide additional working capital to
the Company.

On May 15, 2018, 36,600,000 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued for cash of USD29,845,000 (equivalent to RMB189,157,000) to
provide additional working capital to the Company.

On June 20, 2018, 24,798,000 ordinary shares of the Company were
issued for cash of USD19,844,000 (equivalent to RMB128,161,000) to
provide additional working capital to the Company.

35. RESERVES

THE GROUP
Share premium

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amount included in the share premium account of the
Company is distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in
a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the difference between the
nominal value of the share capital issued by the Company and
the aggregate capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant
to the Group Reorganization, accounted for as capital
contribution from ultimate holding company under merger
basis of accounting.
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35.

36.

RESERVES (Continued)
THE GROUP (Continued)
Reserve fund

The Articles of Association of certain PRC subsidiaries require
the appropriation of 10% of their profit after tax each year,
based on their statutory audited financial statements, to the
reserve fund until the balance reaches 50% of the registered
capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries. The reserve fund
may be capitalized as the paid-in capital of these subsidiaries.

Safety fund

Pursuant to relevant PRC regulation, the Group is required
to transfer 1.5% on revenue generated from the Core
Business into a designated fund. The fund will be used for
installation and repair and maintenance of safety facilities. The
movements in the reporting periods represent the difference
between the amounts provided based on the relevant PRC
regulation and the amount utilized during the year.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of foreign operations with functional
currency other than Renminbi.

DIVIDENDS

On April 9, 2018, the Company declared dividends in respect
of 2016 of RMB1.01 per shares for an aggregate amount of
RMB891,148,000 to the Ultimate Holding Company, under
the Company'’s Articles of Association and Companies Law,
Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised).

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend
of total amount of RMB626,600,000 has been proposed by
the Directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders
of the Company in the forthcoming annual general meeting.
Dividend amount of each ordinary share will be determined
after the exercise of the over-allotment option for the public
offering (if any).

35.

36.

fié #8 (80
AREE ()
FHED

ETHENBARMNEGAERMAE
kS FRIEE AT EEZTBERERG
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RIFARRE BUAR - NEEA/ZL
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HEZREHNSREFAERASHE
Z B ERR
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REEEREIIEBYBRRELEN
FTBINEZEE -

i aS

MR2018F 4 A9H  AEBIRIE K
NRABBERMBINRE2EREE
(1961 FEHEIFUEN - L47E RIERT)
M & EER AT EIR2016F 8T
BARBIOI T B2 AEARE
891,148,000 7T °
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e B 48 %8 AR 626,600,000 7T * 78
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37.

38.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 37. EERKER
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS REM-TERARETE
Pursuant to the relevant labor rules and regulations in the REFPBARAS TRAUKER K&
PRC, the PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in defined % A B 8~ /)2 B R P B T BT A
contribution retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) Mg A T RICRIKEFIEE (15
organized by the PRC municipal government authorities ZErED) - Bl AEEERBEAL
whereby the Group is required to make contributions to REZEFTEELHIK - MERATH#EA
the Schemes based on applicable rates. The municipal aEHENEERNEENEKESE
government authorities are responsible for the entire pension fF o
obligations payable to retired employees.
The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund REBETRBET SRS MERESFE
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong GBI BRERREBIRAINRIEE &%
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for TXEABBETWIEZATEREFRMK
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong SFEIRERNRE  &E—TBERHIER
Employment Ordinance and not previously covered by the Berrs ([aEesral]) - @B st
defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme is a defined EIHBUXTEATENRER/TR
contribution retirement plan administered by independent RETEl - BiFrELTE BERE
trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its BESBAKEEHEBRANLSY M
employees are each required to make contributions to the FTEMEREE - B AMBKRALRA
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a 1,500 7T © ET &I KBRS ERS -
cap of monthly relevant income of HKD1,500. Contributions
to the plan vest immediately.
The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of B Bl FEHEGIN AEETESS
pension benefits associated with the Schemes and the MPF NEZEFTERABESFTEB@EMNR
scheme beyond the annual contributions described above. KREBFHEMERNELE -
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 38. HEKHEBAR
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE YEAR HZEZ2017F 12831 HLEFE Y
ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 EMB AT
On September 25, 2017, the Group disposed of its entire MR2017F9HA26H  REEBHEER
equity interest in its wholly-owned subsidiary, Alashan H2BEWBRAGMNNZBEEXER
League Risun Coal Limited (the “Alashan Risun Coal"), to a RNE (PR ERREEZE ] B2 B AR i
related company controlled by the Controlling Shareholders at FIERBRRIZES N —REAB AT - R
a consideration of RMB30,000,000. &/ AR 30,000,0007T °
The net consideration receivable from this transaction is Bt R 5 KB EF RS T
summarized as follows:
Alashan
Risun Coal
B hy 2= B 5 B 22
RMB’'000
ARTT
Consideration: RIE:
Cash received BUIRE 30,000
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38. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES DURING THE YEAR

38. HEMBAR &
BE2017F12A31ALEEH

ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 (Continued) EME AR (@)
The net assets of Alashan Risun Coal at the date of disposal A ZBEEERNTEBHNEEF
were as follows: (ER: N
RMB'000
ARBTIT
Current assets TEEE
Other receivables H b WA 41
Amounts due from related parties JiE U BA B 77 5RIR 29,867
Net assets disposed FFHEEESRE 29,908
The gain on disposal of Alashan Risun Coal recognised in e RS A S MBS E eI
profit or loss was calculated as below: mETENT
RMB'000
ARTIT
Consideration received BURE 30,000
Less: Net assets disposed of BTN EEEFE (29,908)
Gain on disposal HEMRS KRR 92
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HEEBEEAMBSRAFE .
RMB’'000
ARFIT
Cash consideration received BWRESRE 30,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents disposed of B EReMESEEY -
30,000
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES

During the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017,
transactions with the following parties are considered to be

related party transactions:

Name of related party

39. ML R Z REER

REZE2018F 2017912 A31 HIE
FE - BEUTERANRZWE HEH
AR

Relationship with the Group

BT A BEASENEF
Mr. Yang Xuegang Director and the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder
BEREE B RERIERRER

Ms. Lu Xiaomei

Mgt

Texson

TR

Xuyang Holding (note) (JEFZ1ER% B R A 7))
JBRBIERR R A ) (M)

Risun Supply Chain Management Limited (note)
(TBF5 e B E IR AR A 7], formerly known as
Risun Mining Co., Ltd. (BITBBI5IEZE AR 2 F]))

B HEEEEAER AR (M)
(RITBMBISEE AR AA])

Beijing Risun Science and Technology Limited (note)

(L REMBBERIF AR A A, formerly known as Beijing
Risun Chemicals Technology and Research Limited
(FIfBAL BRI TEMA R AR A A]))

IERIBERIEAR AR (M) (AL RS TR
M7 AR 2 E])

Xingtai Xuyang Technology Co,. Ltd. (note)
(FBEMBERHER AR R])
MEBEEE AR A E (M)

Dingzhou Risun Technology Co,. Ltd (note)
(EIMNEERIHRER AR
EMERBRHRAR AR ()

Hebei Xuyang Engineering Design Co,. Ltd. (note)
ORI BEE TR T AR AR
AL MBRE TR ET AR A A (HEE)

Risun Chemicals Technology Research Co., Ltd. (note)
(JBIS (L 2R B R A R])
MBS0 BB 7T b B R A ] (B EE)

Xingtai Tianlu Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd.
(note) (MEXEFHERZEBRAF)
MaxEEMERZEBRAR (M)
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The wife of Mr. Yang Xuegang
BEREEEHAK

Ultimate and immediate holding company
REREEERA A

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 5 i 5T A 1

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

F 45 5 e 5t A PR

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

115 5 e St A F2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 S5 S A
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 5 e 5T A f
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 S5 e S A
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M 15 S5 S A
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

Name of related party
B S A

39. BB AR Z N (@)

Relationship with the Group
BEEAKBHER

Tangshan Risun Petroleum & Chemicals Co,. Ltd.
(note) (B LLTBRS AL THRAF])
BEEEamE T AR AR (K

Beijing Zhengcheng Weiye Coal Coking Chemicals
Limited (note) (It R IFHEBHEEFITHERAF)
IEREREXEECTIERAR ()

Dingzhou Risun Real Estate Development Co,. Ltd.
(note) (M BFGEHERZE B R A A, formerly
known as Dingzhou Tianlu Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd. (RITEEMREFhERZEBR A F]))

EMBREE M EREZEBR AR ()
(AIBEMREEHMEREZEBRAR)

Haikou Jialin Tourism Development Co., Ltd. (note)
(EOEBIREZRRBRAA)
BOEBREERBERAR (M)

Haikou Taiyanghe Hot Spring Tourism Holiday Village
(note) (/8 O KRG AR SR IR E BRATH )
8 0K B5AD& SRR 8 2 R O (B EE)

Tianjin Zhengcheng Import & Export Trade Co,. Ltd.
(note) ((RZREHEH D ESHRAF)
("Tianjin Zhengcheng )
REFHELOESBERAR ([RBEHKLD (FFE)

Hainan Anfu Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. (note)
(BELXEEXERBEARAA)
BETEEXREBRAR (M)

CNC Risun Coking
R TBSEL

Cangzhou Risun

BN BES

Jinniu Risun Chemicals

TFEBIET

Cabot Risun Chemicals

REFEBET

Jingfu Coal
SR

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
M 15 S5 e S AR
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 5 e ot A F2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang

15 5 e St A F2

Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
115 5 e St A P2
Controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
15 5 e 5T A fE

Under the significant influence of Mr. Yang
Xuegang

XBEEMAEENEATE

Under the significant influence of Mr. Yang
Xuegang

XBEMAEENEATE

Joint venture of the Group

AEBEHEEDRE

Joint venture of the Group before June 8, 2016
201656 ASHAI RAEEME &b

Associate of the Group

REE RS Q7]

Associate of the Group

AEE N E AT

Associate of the Group

RE BB S R 7]

PEESSEEARAR
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e BRRME

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

Note: The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official

names of these entities are in Chinese.

Other than the transactions disclosed in note 38 in the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following material related party transactions:

(A)

KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
REMUNERATION

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Directors and the
other highest paid employee as disclosed in note 12, is
as follows:

39.

B S X5 K& )

MiEE BWMEXBEEMRSE -ZEEENE

RAWRFX -

BRARE B RERMEBARENR

(A)

I REBRISLA T EARE T
5

TEEEASHH

FEETZEBABNHFH (2
BT 2R REENEERE
= EEMFIE) AT

Year ended December 31,
BZE12A31MBLEE

2018 2017

20184 20174

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T AREF T

Short-term employee benefits EHESEN 15,046 6,240
Post-employment benefits B B RIKEF 386 338
15,432 6,578

Key management represents the Directors and other
senior management personnel of the Group disclosed in
the Prospectus. The remuneration of key management
is determined with reference to the performance of the
Group and the individuals.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HREMBHRERME
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. EEBARI RER @
BALANCES (Continued)
(B) TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES (B) HEELTNRS

Year ended December 31,

HZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETF T

Purchases of goods from BEER
— related parties controlled by —HEE H o P Y

Mr. Yang Xuegang el 4,828 8,861

— CNC Risun Coking — R TERS 1 738,457 873,477

— Jinniu Risun Chemicals — &4 BB 63,413 47,150

- Tianjin Zhengcheng —REIEH 63,499 -
Sales of goods to HE S m

- related parties controlled by — [ wa—aﬂ Virka=R okl
Mr. Yang Xuegang E2)ia) 40 17

— CNC Risun Coking —FEBIS R 97,793 93,437
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —&4EET 5,350 18,040
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —RIEFEEET 559,054 491,859
Construction service and other B AR S N E A AR 7%
service from
— related parties controlled by —BBEELAEHR
Mr. Yang Xuegang 8 Bt 113,895 15,815
Provision of service to R
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REREBEET 740 735
Interest received from B U F B
- related parties controlled by — M52 HSEET il
Mr. Yang Xuegang B2k al 58,697 57,434
- CNC Risun Coking —HR MBS R 2,839 6,514
Rental income from He WA
— related parties controlled by —HIGEM L EESA
Mr. Yang Xuegang 2 B 562 284
Purchases of intangible assets from B & & & &
— related parties controlled by —H T)ﬁaﬂ P HE 1 Y
Mr. Yang Xuegang Ea)ia) 20,000 -

The above related party transactions were conducted in
accordance with terms of the relevant agreements.

LB 77 22 5 ThRIBAERE 17 5%

1‘7K FRHETT ©

PEESSEEARAR
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HREMBHRERME
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. EEBARI RER @
BALANCES (Continued)
(C) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EERAEE A WAER
At the end of each reporting period, the Group had the REMEIR  ANEEHEEM S
following balances with related parties: &I

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Amounts due from related parties F& U BB 5 78

Non-trade nature FESHME
— related parties controlled by —H5EEEEEHR
Mr. Yang Xuegang Ealia) 469,676 1,604,704
— CNC Risun Coking —H B E - 102,193
- Jingfu Coal —SfEKE 30,900 30,900
500,576 1,737,797
Dividend receivable JE WA B
— CNC Risun Coking —HEBE &L 164,145 72,958
Trade nature BEH5hE
- related parties controlled by —BBEMELAEEHN
Mr. Yang Xuegang E2)ia) 274 -
— CNC Risun Coking —HR B S 10,892 1,449
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REREEEET - 4,495
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —®4BE5{T 396 3
11,562 5,947
Impairment under ECL model FEHEEBREEXNNRE (1,039) -
675,244 1,816,702
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D MT1EZ A% ¢
Current portion BVER &R 5 675,244 1,529,982
Non-current portion JEEVEAES - 286,720
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HREMBHRERME
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. EEBARI RER @
BALANCES (Continued)
(C) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EEREEA AER ()
(Continued)

Aging of amounts due from related parties-trade nature FEYLEEH 5 B 5 1 5B (0B

net of allowance for credit losses are as follows: SEEERE) REOT

As at December 31,

M®12A31H

2018 2017
2018 F 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARETF T
Within one month —MEAR 4,843 4,498
1 to 3 months 1231EA 6,278 1,449
6 to 12 months 6E 1218 A 244 -
11,365 5,947
The maximum amount outstanding during the year HZ2018F 12 A31 HILFE -
ended December 31, 2018 in respect of the amounts FEUWIG S [ o £ Bl A R R 15
due from companies controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang EMEERENRSREES
and Mr. Yang Xuegang are RMB1,788,751,000 and nil o Rl & AR ®1,788,751,000
(2017: RMB1,719,631,000 and RMB1,839,000). TRARBZT (201745 - A

E#1,719,631,000 7T & A R #
1,839,0007T) °

As at December 31,

M12H31H
2018 2017
2018 % 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETT

Amounts due to related parties BB S RE

Dividend payable FET AR B
— Texson —RRH 467,533 -
Trade nature 25 MY
- CNC Risun Coking —HREBEEEL 250,962 692,102
- related parties controlled by —BBEMELAEEHRN
Mr. Yang Xuegang E2)al 53,948 7,827
— Cabot Risun Chemicals —REREEEET 7,069 164
— Jinniu Risun Chemicals —& 4B - 2,053
311,979 702,146
779,512 702,146
Analyzed for reporting purposes as: D HTE2 A& :
Current liabilities RBAEE 779,512 702,146
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HREMBHRERME
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. EEBARI RER @
BALANCES (Continued)
(C) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (C) EEREEA AER ()
(Continued)
Aging of amounts due to related parties-trade nature are FET BB 5 2 5 1S SRR R 1A
as follows: T

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETR AREF T
Within one month —(EAR 47,929 77,273
1 to 3 months 1ZE31EA 111,851 170,227
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 6,776 221,136
6 to 12 months 61218 A 100 233,510
1-2 years 122F 145,323 -
311,979 702,146
Except for the interest-bearing balances with related Br TSPl B2 B 5 MO AT B R
parties as detailed below, all other amounts due from/ AN B E b U FE( BEHE T
to related parties are unsecured, interest-free and RIEREER  RERAKREN

repayable on demand: BiE

Effective interest

Maturity date rate per annum Amount
Z|HAH BERFFIER i}
RMB'000
ARTIT
At December 31, 2017
M2017F12H318
Unsecured loan receivables 2/3/2016-2/28/2020 6.17%-10.00% 500,467

ERREWER
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oS BEREN
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. BB ARG MGtk @
BALANCES (Continued)
(D) At the end of each reporting period, certain of the (D) MBMEHR  NEEH TR
Group's bank and other loans, and bills payable including N B B RUA K B A R R (@%
in trade and other payables were guaranteed by related RE S REMENFIA) B
parties: TR
As at December 31,
MW12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Bank and other loans, and bills A5 E E LA ERNRITR
payable guaranteed by Mr. Yang HEME R R ERE
Xuegang:
- secured —2EH 1,384,433 1,074,923
- unsecured — R 160,000 645,305
1,544,433 1,720,228
Bank and other loans, and bills BBERETAERE/NMEZ LT
payable guaranteed by Mr. Yang BREOIIRITREMER
Xuegang and Ms. Lu Xiaomei: VS INES:
- secured —BEH 2,096,050 -
- unsecured — K 200,000 -
2,296,050 -
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(D)

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 39. EEBARI RER @
BALANCES (Continued)
At the end of each reporting period, certain of the (D) MEMEIR  NEBETIRT
Group's bank and other loans, and bills payable including N B B RUA K B A R R (@?‘E
in trade and other payables were guaranteed by related E@“\ 5 & H Ath BT RRIR) B RAEG
parties: (Continued) FER (B
As at December 31,
M®12H31H
2018 2017
2018 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AR®EFT
Bank and other loans, and bills BEEETEEH N
payable guaranteed by related RAEE T IERAEIT R
parties controlled by Mr. Yang HEME R R ERE
Xuegang:
- secured — B 1,291,435 522,120
- unsecured —mE A - 135,000
1,291,435 657,120
Bank and other loans, and bills 155 e o A B MBI
payable guaranteed by other LA SN LA B8 HSe 5 HE AR Y
related parties other than Mr. Yang ~ $R77 & E fth B FR A K JE {+
Xuegang and Ms. Lu Xiaomei: Fik:
- secured —E2HH - 89,000
Bank and other loans, and bills FR B 77 H RERAVERTT
payable jointly guaranteed by e ff*i%&%ﬁ?—ﬁﬁfﬁ
related parties (note): (P 5E) -
— secured —B2EHR 54,108 2,004,018
- unsecured — KR - 90,000
54,108 2,094,018
Secured [REiw 4,826,027 3,690,061
Unsecured IR 360,000 870,305
5,186,027 4,560,366
Note: Bank and other loans, and bills payable jointly guaranteed by BT - FRRAEE T HRAERAEIT REM

related parties represent loans and bills payable which are jointly
guaranteed by multiple related parties, including related parties
controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang and companies under significant

influence of Mr. Yang Xuegang.
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e BRRME

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(E)

At the end of the each reporting period, the maximum
liabilities of the Group under guarantees issued to banks
in respect of banking facilities granted to a joint venture
and a related party were as follows:

39. BB AR Z N (@)

(E) MB|MEHK -

1 S EE’J%E TRLE )
RITEHWER  AEENES

BEWMT :

As at December 31,

MW12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Financial guarantees issued to a joint [ —FRA &M HH
venture MR 830,000 1,260,000
Financial guarantees issued to a m— BB TN
related party B TS E IR - 339,000
830,000 1,599,000
As at December 31, 2018, the above guaranteed R2018F 12 H31H A& ¥
facilities amount utilized by the joint venture and MM A ERN L EREE

related parties were RMB332,570,000 and RMB nil
(2017: RMB809,863,000 and RMB443,684,000),
respectively. In the opinion of the Directors, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group
were insignificant at the date of issue of the financial
guarantee and no provision is necessary at the end of
each reporting period taking into account that the net
realizable value of the pledged assets held by the banks
exceed the facilities and credit granted to the relevant
parties. In addition, the Directors do not consider it
probable that a claim will be made against the Group
under any of these guarantees.

On December 31, 2017, Xuyang Holding and
the Group’s three subsidiaries entered into two
agreements, such that payable of RMB388,857,100
was offset against amount due from Xuyang Holding.
Accordingly the Group derecognized an amount due to
Xuyang Holding and receivable from Xuyang Holding of
RMB388,857,100 and accounted for this as a non-cash
transaction.

T E D Bl A AR 332,570,000
TREARBEIT (2017F : A
R #809,863,0007T & A R #&
443,684,0007T) c EHRAE * R
MEERELBE  ~EEP%
BRAEONARETEKN  RE
HEHR  KEBBITHENE
EHEENEEFEBBERT

BB HRENREE
TR - 1it$7|\ '
PAARERE

{8 -

(F) 72017124318 -

BB AT

EER/ARHE
ATARTFELR 1 2R

JBRZ1E R

E’@Kg B =RMBARIRILM

(GRGE

% B B

BARY

388,857,100 7T Fa F& BB 5 122 i
FOAHE - Bt - AEEE KL

FER BB
LRz

1% 578 & e B
fi% T8 A R % 388,857,100

LY ARSI RIERER S
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(G) On December 31, 2017, Jinniu Risun Chemicals and the
Group's three subsidiaries entered into an agreement,
such that dividend receivable of RMB137,000,000 was
offset against an amount due to Jinniu Risun Chemicals.
Accordingly the Group derecognized an amount due
to Jinniu Risun Chemicals and dividend receivable
from Jinniu Risun Chemicals of RMB137,000,000 and

accounted for this as a non-cash transaction.

(H) On June 30, 2018 and on September 30, 2018,
Texson, the Company and the Group's two overseas
subsidiaries entered into an agreement, such that
dividend payable of RMB341,622,000 and RMB793,000
was offset against an amount due from Texson.
Accordingly the Group derecognized dividend
payable to Texson and receivable from Texson of
RMB342,415,000 and accounted for this as a non-cash

transaction.

(I)  In December 2018, two subsidiaries of the Company,
certain related parties controlled by Mr. Yang Xuegang
and third-party creditors of the Group entered into
deeds of assignment pursuant to which an aggregated
amount of RMB791,329,000 owed by the Group to
these creditors were assigned and transferred to these
related parties. Accordingly the Group recognized
amount due to related parties of RMB791,329,000
and derecognized trade payables and payables for
construction in progress of RMB200,000,000 and
RMB591,329,000 respectively. On December 31,
2018, certain subsidiaries of the Company and certain
related parties controlled by the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders further entered into debt restructuring
agreements as a result of which the amount due to
related parties of RMB791,329,000 recognized in the
aforementioned transactions were offset against the
amount due from certain related parties to the Group.
The above transactions are accounted for as a non-cash

transaction.
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(G) M2017F12A31H @iﬁﬂﬁ%
{ETEARER=KK B QA

— g - Bt Mézﬂi

R # 137,000,000 JT i §4 fE 1~ &
BB L TEIE - At - A&EE
TR ﬁﬁ%tFM%fthE

Ko W A 1B P E TRLE.

137,000,000 7T © I ABR %I A 3F

EES SR

(H) 7201846 A30H KX20184F9
HA30H » Tz $’AET&$

SENOMZFEINKTER

— D Bt Fﬁ%
R #341,622,0007C & A E e
793,000 7T E. B FE W Z= 7o AR 0 E
HEH - AL - AEBE KR IERER
e R R AR B LR T R
18 A R # 342,415,000 7T A BR

HIRERERS -

() M2018%F 128 AR ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ
BARAa - mt%%m‘ﬁ@ %UE@

TR MASEE

NETS 88224 %E;ﬁt ' LK;%
ERNZEEREARERAREK
791,329,000 ST M FRIAE 5 B
HETZERE S Bt - K&
E MR E R S A AARE
791,329,000 T MR |[EHERE 5

E1#TAIE&ELI$EE1#HV\I/\/\
Bl A A R # 200,000,000 7T & A
R#591,329,0007T ° 7220184
128318 ARAIEFHER

A M AR AR R B B T
BT — I ESEA R
A it 2 5 o R 8 e B
B 5 5018 A R # 791,329,000 7T
B ANE B S T R 5 K
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e BRRME

39.

40.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(J) Subsequent to December 31, 2018, two subsidiaries of
the Company, certain related parties controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang and a third-party creditor of the Group
entered into deeds of assignment pursuant to which an
amount of RMB109,077,000 owed by the Group to the
creditor was assigned and offset against the amounts
due from related parties. Accordingly the Group
derecognized payables for construction in progress of
RMB109,077,000 and the amounts due from related
parties of RMB109,077,000. The remaining non-trade
amounts due from related parties controlled by Mr.
Yang Xuegang were fully settled by cash.

In addition, Xuyang Holding and a Group’s subsidiary
entered into a deed of assignment pursuant to which
the amount due from Jingfu Coal amounting to
RMB30,900,000 was transferred to Xuyang Holding,
and Xuyang Holding settled the payable to the Group
amounting to RMB30,900,000 by cash on January 28,

2019.

(K) Subsequent to December 31, 2018, the Group fully
settled the dividend payable to Texson amounting to
RMB467,533,000 by cash.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives of managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
and to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders, by securing access to finance at a reasonable
cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Based on recommendations of the board of directors,
the Group will balance its overall capital structure through
adjusting the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issuing of new shares, raising new debt financing or selling
assets to reduce debt. During the reporting period, there
were no changes in the objectives, policies or processes.

The Group monitors capital with reference to its debt position.
The Group's strategy was to maintain the equity and debt in
a balanced position and ensure there was adequate working
capital to service its debt obligation.

39.

40.

B S X5 K& )

(J) M2018%F12 A31 B AR
MEMBRA  AiGEEILERE
HIEE TR S R AEE—F
FZHEEAFT L EERZE
Bt AEEENEEASES
AR #109,077,000 THIFIED
7 B2 % K 5 e Uk e B 5 FROE o
Hit - AEBR FEREETR
FES 318 & AR # 109,077,000
TTREWEE T REAARE
109,077,0007C - %2 N 3EE 5 1%
B W A5 E S RS R
A REEUNRESE2HLEE -

BEON - TEFG IR R B AR £ B — R
WEB ARG L —DEEZE
Bt Bl EEEERBARE
30,900,000 7T B & :& T JE [5 %
A% - B R B A 20194 1 A28
AR A BN ANEBFIBA
R #30,900,000 7T ©

(K) 72018512 A31 8% K~"&EH

NIRE 2 H A SN R R AR

B AR 467,533,000 7T °

EXREHE
AEEEEEANTIZENEHER
FEBKENE D T EEREB
BAERARGHE BEERKRRIE
HEHREAEMRDE RN

REEER LT R MEEELER
RiE - NEERRSEIUKTEAES
KEm R RO HERG T WEED
FEEER N SERRBEHAE -

REEFEEH AKEKEBEAE
A A BRSO AL B B~ BATHA
EETEFREINEEENRDE
% AP EEEEEALRE - VW
A UEBHER BRIEF -

AEEBERSEHBBRAERE
Ko REBMREE RS R EERE
FE—EFENLE  ARERESR
WNEBEESEERE -
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e BRRME

41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories
of financial assets and financial liabilities at the end of each
reporting period are set out as follows:

EWMITHA
TRTADHE

ATEBHeREERSRABENSE
HEHROEEEHRIINT

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2018 2017
20185 2017 F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBTT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at FVTPL BERARERAERD
TRIEE 76,303 104,406
Trade and bills receivables measured BEAERAEMETE
at FVTOCI WEFtEME 5 EW
FIAK EREE 3,179,295 -
Financial assets at amortized cost HHEKAFTEN
TREE 5,178,618 -
AFS financial assets At ESRmEE - 54,220
loans and receivables (including cash and B 3k M FEU Z0IE (B 1518
cash equivalents) S MESEEY) - 8,196,125
Financial liabilities SREE
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BEARERAERD
TRIBE 448 68
Financial liabilities at amortized cost RHEEKRFTEDN
TRIBE 15,885,298 17,155,269

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include AFS financial
assets, financial assets at FVTPL, trade and bills receivables
measured at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from related parties, restricted bank deposits, cash and
cash equivalents, financial liabilities at FVTPL, trade and other
payables, amounts due to related parties, and bank and other
loans. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk, currency
risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner.
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41.

e BRRME

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing financial instruments. These financial instruments
issued at variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively. The Group does not have any specific interest
rate policy except that the Group would regularly review the
market interest rates to capture the potential opportunities
to reduce the cost of borrowings. Accordingly, the Group will
enter into interest rate swap arrangement to mitigate the
interest rate risks if appropriate.

(1) Fair value interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed-rate payables for construction in progress and
bank and other loans (see notes 29 and 31 for details).

(i)~ Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to restricted bank balances, bank balances, bank and
other loans, obligations under finance leases and
payables construction in progress at floating interest
rates. The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management will
consider hedging significant interest rate risk should the
need arise.

The impact on the Group's profit after taxation (and
retained profits) was based on the exposure to interest
rate for the floating-rate restricted bank balances,
bank balances and bank and other loans, assuming
that these financial liabilities outstanding at the end
of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole
relevant period. If a 25 basis point increase or decrease
in variable-rate bank deposits and a 100 basis point
increase or decrease in variable-rate borrowing are
used, and all other variables were held constant, the
Group's profit after taxation would decrease/increase
by approximately RMB2,452,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2018(2017: RMB26,171,000).

41.

SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

s AR
RS

AEBHANEEREZREFTEER
TR -ZFHHERREEN RN
ERMTADHSCAEERRRERE
R E RN DR ENEER - N
W EAT AR EF KRR - A RE S
JE HARR T T 35 M R AR R R A 18 SR
AEEHE - Bt ARESRE
IR BT LA R 2 B 2 B DARE R R
a0

(i)  RAAEFFEE

ZJS ENAAEMNEREREEEH

STERE TR FRIE A KR
&Eiﬂtf*f (FEIEB2 MK
29&3”

(1) & 7 & I F

AEENRSRENXERE
RAEBXRBIRITHEER - RITHE
g7 RITREMER BEHEE
TR N T2 AN TR (1%
BRrE) o NEHE B FI L&A R
HHMEE - AT - BEEKERE
MNEFE2REPERF @R -

HAEERBEZ M (KRB &
)R T ERE B ZRFIE
1T e CSRITESRUNBITRE
HEFOFERE  BERRE
H;ﬁﬁifﬂazam:%i?émﬂﬁf 1

BEERESHBNTSERE - WF
BIR 1T 17 08 0 sl > 26 8 H
2 ROF BEFEIE IR A 100
1Iﬁ¥£ - ARTEEMEBREFT
""""" CBIEZ=2018F 12 A31 H1E
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through bank
balances and bank and other loans that are denominated
in foreign currency, i.e. currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily USD and HKD.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s profit after taxation (and retained profits) that
would arise if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of the reporting period
had changed at that date, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

41.

SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

M5 E R ()

B R

REBAZNEEREBREEZRE A
SN (RNERSRBEBNEER
IASMNEY B HE) FHE MV ERTT A BR A 23R
TREMER - EXtERHEEE
ERETIETT

A

TRIVRAS BRI &R (RR
BaA) A ARBRREHRAZ
BEXREBIMNEERNZ B HIREE
T S A B BB 2 B (IR AR E b o 22
BAE) -

Year ended December 31

BEZ12A31BLEE

2018 2017
2018 2017
(Decrease)/ (Decrease)/
Increase/ increase Increase/ increase
(decrease) in profit (decrease) in profit
in foreign after tax in foreign after tax
exchange  and retained exchange and retained
rates profits rates profits
BB &R FREi &R A
SHEER &ﬁ%)ﬁﬂ SN TE & RARE &M
#wm,/ () mD) /Bm o g/ 0Rd ) Gid)/Em
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR AREFT
USD £ 5% (8,068) 5% (7,363)
Others Hity 5% 3,467 5% (3,510)
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table EERINDNER  REEZERAEE
represent an aggregation of the instantaneous effects on ZEER %Rfémﬁﬂﬁﬁxﬁ’]ﬁﬂﬁ—ir%;

each of the Group entities’ profit after tax in the respective
functional currencies, translated into RMB at the exchange
rate ruling at the end of each reporting period for presentation
purposes.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those
financial instruments held by the Group which expose the
Group to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is performed on the same basis during
the reporting period.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is expose to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities. The Directors do not
implement specific measurements to mitigate the price risk.
If the market price of the listed equity securities increased or
decreased by 5%, the Group would recognize additional gains
or losses of RMB2,551,000 for the year ended December 31,
2018(2017: RMB1,664,000).

The Group’s commodity price risk is mainly the exposure to
fluctuations in the prevailing market price of coke, coal, and
refined chemical products which are the major commodities
purchased, produced and sold by the Group. To minimize this
risk, the Group enters into future contracts to manage the
Group’s exposure in relation to forecasted sales of products,
forecasted purchase of raw materials and inventories.
Financial assets and liabilities of the Group whose fair value
change in line with the fluctuations in the prevailing market
price of coke, coal, and refined chemical products mainly
comprise futures contracts. The impact of price change
of future contracts are insignificant as there have been no
material outstanding future contacts at the end of the each of
the reporting periods.

41.

SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

™ % & B2
H A (EER R

AEBRERER EMRAFELHNEEM
HERRAERER -EEWREHRA
BRI TR AR R ERRER o W EmRRAR
BHEHIE LA T#% - AJASE
IEA@zizmsimﬁm HIEFER
REINE = S BB A AR 2,551,000
71(2017¢ AR 1,664,0007T) °

(#&)

AEEHNEMERRREESAKH
BE LEMHENTIEZRRER
BR R E TEMBORITHEKE
Rk - BEERRLRR  NEEF
I%Eé%@%%ﬁ$%ﬁ%§ﬁiﬂﬂ%
mIAE - BARM A RERFENE
o RAEZBEER - H R NS
ETEMBITHHEREI —BNHR
SETREEMNABEIERENEAS
K AR EWMERRLERTHAE
KHH“"/\ZU HEANEREHNY
BT RE
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
Under 1AS 39 and IFRS 9

At the end of each of the reporting period, other than financial
assets whose carrying amounts best represent the maximum
credit risk, the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk
which will cause a financial loss to the Group arising from
the amount of contingent liabilities in relation to financial
guarantees provided by the Group to the related parties is
disclosed in note 39(e).

The Group mainly conducted transactions with customers
with good quality and long term relationship, when accepting
new customers, the Group requests advanced payment
before the goods delivered. In order to minimize the credit
risk, the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

To manage risk arising from cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank balances and bills receivables, the Group
mainly transacts with state-owned or reputable financial
institutions in Mainland China and reputable international
financial institutions outside of Mainland China. There has
been no recent history of default in relation to these financial
institutions.

To manage risk arising from receivable balances, the Group
has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are made
to counterparties with an appropriate credit history and the
management performs ongoing credit evaluations of its
counterparties. The credit period granted to the customers
and the credit quality of these customers is assessed, which
takes into account their financial position, past experience and
other factors.

The Group does not have any significant concentration of
credit risk, with exposure spread over a large number of
counterparties and customers.
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Under IAS 39

The Group reviews the recoverable amount of receivables
individually or collectively for debtors at the end of reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the Directors
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

For other receivables, amounts due from related parties, and
subsidiaries, the Directors are in the opinion that the failure
of these entities to make required payments is unlikely after
considering their past settlement records, and/or financial
position of these entities.

Under IFRS 9

Starting from January 1, 2018, the Group reassesses lifetime
ECL for trade receivables and amounts due from related
parties arising from contracts with customers without
significant financing component to ensure that adequate
impairment loss are made for significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring.

For trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of
trade nature, the Group has applied the simplified approach
in IFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. The
ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors
with significant balances or collectively using a provision
matrix appropriate groupings. As part of the Group’s credit
risk management, the Group use debtors’ aging to assess
with the impairment for its customers because these
customers consists of a large number of customers which
share common risk characteristics that are representative of
the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in accordance
with the contractual terms. The estimated rate loss rates
are estimated on historical observed default rates over the
expected life of the debtors and are adjusted forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
relevant information about specific debtors is updated.

41.
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AEBEERESMREBIHARENE
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)
Under IFRS 9 (Continued)

For all other instruments including bills receivable, other
receivables and amount from related parties of non-trade
nature, the Group measures the loss allowance equal to
12-month ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognizes lifetime ECL. The Group has assessed and
concluded that the risk of default rate for the other
instruments are steady based on the Group's assessment of
the financial health of the counterparties. Thus, the Directors
considered that the ECL for the other instruments of the
Group is insignificant except for certain other receivables
credit impaired as at January 1, 2018 and December 31,
2018.

All loss allowances of financial assets at amortized cost
as at December 31, 2017 reconciled to the opening loss
allowances as at January 1, 2018 is as follows:

41.

SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

R e
[=E N

2\ e ARUE FT A (48)
RIFBEER M B REER L5 (8)

MEABEMTE (BEEWNERE - it
FEUGRIE K FE MR BBt 5 IEE B IEE K
H)ME  ASEBFENEERBED
ER12E AR EEBEFTE  BRIE
BVIIREREEERRBZIL N - A
SEBRAPEHEESE - ~5E
PR AL EM T ANEYRAR
BT DERTEBERZEHFHNG
R - Bt - EERAE
M F 201841 A1 H K&2018%F 12 A
31 HME T EERAERNEMERRIE
Hh REBEMTANEHREEEE
WREK °

R 2017412 A 31 B B3R 845K A5+
ENSREENMEBBRREHBRER
20181 A1 BV BB EN Y
BRanR -

Trade Amounts due
and other from related
receivables parties
B 5 &AM JiE Ui A Bse 75
FEMFRIE HIE
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREF T AREF T
At December 31, 2017 — IAS 39 72017412 A31H

— B g ERIE395% 159,816 -

Amounts remeasured through opening BRBAVIRE &FIEH
retained profits FrEMEEE 5,243 2,621
At January 1, 2018 M2018F 1 A1 H 165,059 2,621
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €BMI A @
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND SREREEREREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) = B R b FUR E RS (8)
Under IFRS 9 (Continued) R 15 BIFR B 75 5 2E R B 9 5% (4&)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRAEFMHTI R 2018F 12 A31HE
Group's trade and other receivables and amounts due from AEEE H K HAMERFIA K E
related parties at December 31, 2018, which are subject to BT RIEREE R (Ei#E1TEH
ECL assessment: EEFEEFTE) -
Internal
credit
2018 Notes rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
2018 HiEE ABEEFR  12ERR2ERBEEER AREE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at amortised cost
REBBRATENCREE
Other receivables 26 Note 12-month ECL 162,557
Rt lia fizE REAEREESE
Credit-impaired (individually) 25,693 188,250
EERE ()
Amounts due from related parties* 39 Note 12-month ECL 664,721
JEd B A 50E izt REAEREERE
Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 11,662 676,283
PHEREERE(REER)
Financial assets at FVTOCI
BRARESARMZEREN
SREE
Trade receivables 26 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 188,043
B SN HEHEERE(BEER)
Credit-impaired (individually) 85,346 273,389
EERE ()
Bills receivable 26 Note 12-month ECL 2,992,740 2,992,740
EhEE izt REAESHEEBE
* The gross carrying amounts disclosed above include both trade * LXﬁﬁTBX&%E’]@ﬁE@ﬁ@%%%ﬁgrﬂﬁl
nature receivables and non-trade nature receivables. All trade nature HIERIFESHEERZE -FTEE 5
receivables are applying lifetime ECL. grgqu JE—ERAZEREERE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Under IFRS 9 (Continued)

Note:

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the Group uses past
due information or other relevant information available without undue cost
or effort to assess whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial

41. £WMI A @)
TRUEREE R ERBUER (8)

a A

2B FUBE RT 5 (48)

R IE B B 7 s 5 2 RIS 9 5% (48D

B3

HAREERRERM 5

P AREERABHER

HBAIEE B EKAIIE NS E AR
BAHFHERERREE B MHiERED AIEE

recognition. e
Not
past due/
No fixed
repayment
Past due terms Total
Rik:$8: )
I B E E
fog:t BRHAR st
RMB'000 RI\/IB 000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT
Bills receivable FEU =5 - 2,992,740 2,992,740
Amounts due from related parties JE U B8 B 5 T8 - 676,283 676,283
Other receivables Hoth B W SR IE 25,693 162,557 188,250

The following table shows the movement in lifetime ECL

FEINREREMACT AR E 5 K

that has been recognized for trade receivables and amounts SRIA R FEUR R 5 B 5 1 E SRIE R
due from related parties of trade nature under the simplified E’\] HEHEEEEE
approach:
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
(not credit ECL (credit
impaired) impaired) Total
2 i
FEEE ZHIFEH
(EEIEE FEEE
RAE) (E8RHE) @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBTT ARETFRT
As at December 31, 2017 under %2017 12 A31H
IAS 39 RIR R &5 2R
%3955 - 104,592 104,592
Adjustment upon application of &R BB B 75 £ 5|
IFRS 9 FIFRIBTE 5,243 - 5,243
As at January 1, 2018 under 2018 1 A1 BIR#&
IFRS 9 0 % B 75 e 5 ZE B
E95% 5,243 104,592 109,835
— Transfer to credit impaired —HEBREEERE (120) 120 -
- Impairment losses recognized — — E#ERAREEE 1,685 180 1,865
— Impairment losses reversed —BERE8REEE (5,123) (19,546) (24,669)
As at December 31, 2018 M20185 12 A31 H 1,685 85,346 87,031

The following table details the risk profile of trade receivables
and amounts due from related parties of trade nature based
on the Group's provision matrix.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €BMI A @
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND SREREEREREE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R AR E T (E)
Under IFRS 9 (Continued) BB R EERE 9% (B)
At January 1, 2018 R2018F 1 A1H
Trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of B SN IBEREKEE T EZMEE
trade nature HE
Gross Impairment
Average carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEEE WEE FEBBEE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETF T ARETF T
Within 1 month 11E8 A A 3.31% 112,968 3,737
2 to 3 months 2Z=31@A 8.08% 6,076 491
4 to 6 months 4Z= 618 A 15.03% 366 55
7 to 12 months 7E121EA 20.00% 23,911 4,782
1-2 years 1822%F 29.49% 224 66
2-3 years 2E3F 49.96% 1,667 833
More than 3 years 3FLAE 93.67% 41,379 38,758
186,591 48,722
At December 31, 2018 R2018F 12 31 H
Trade receivables and amounts due from related parties of B S ENIE N R E S E
trade nature SIH
Gross Impairment
Average carrying loss
loss rate amount allowance
T EEE BEREE REBERE
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR® TR ARET T
Within 1 month 1EARA 0.16% 182,153 288
1 to 3 months 12318A 1.96% 9,958 195
4 to 6 months 4Z 618 A 11.33% 1,359 154
7 to 12 months 721218 A 17.08% 6,135 1,048
199,605 1,685
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €T B @)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND TRIEMREE B ERBER ()
POLICIES (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) EE R AR E T (E)
Under IFRS 9 (Continued) 1R 1R BB B 75 R 5 2RI 55 9 5% (48
The Group provided RMB48,722,000 and RMB1,685,000 7R2018F 1 A1H X2018F 12 A 31
impairment allowance for trade receivables and amounts A AEERBRBEEBEERESE
due from related parties of trade nature based on the WoskTE K e E B 5 B 5 1B RKUE
provision matrix at January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018. iR AR #48,722,000 7T & A R #&
In addition, debtors with balances from trade receivables 1,685,000 JTIR B o L5 - 722018
amounting to RMB61,113,000 and RMB85,346,000 as at F1H1H K&2018F12A318 K
January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018 were assessed SERESHRKFIERELEHIE
individually and impairment allowance of RMB61,113,000 and W skTE A R# 61,113,000 70 & A R
RMB85,346,000 were made. 85,346,000 L #E 1T B BT A& - I 5T
REREAR®61,113,000T RAR
% 85,346,000 7T °
The following table shows reconciliation of loss allowances TRIVRERERRIE - HMERK
that have been recognized for bills receivables, other H R e RREE T 3B 5 B RIB R
receivables, amounts due from related parties of non-trade B B 18 BB T AR
nature:
Lifetime
ECL (not Lifetime
12-month credit ECL (credit
ECL impaired) impaired) Total
2HITEH
FEEE 2 HITE
1218 A B & (YEEE FEEE
FEBE wWE) (EERE) wat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT ARBTT AREFTT ARETT
As at December 31, 7R2017%12 431 H
2017 under IAS 39 Rz B & st 2R
3955 - - 55,224 55,224
Adjustment upon RERBIEPBE®E
application of IFRS 9 2RI 957 1& 2,621 - - 2,621
As at January 1, 2018 7220181 A1H
under IFRS 9 R AR B R B 7 R o5
R 955 2,621 - 55,224 57,845
— Impairment losses —BEREMREEE
reversed (1,779) - (31,690) (33,469)
As at December 31, M20184F 12 A31H
2018 842 - 23,534 24,376

Amounts due from related parties of non-trade nature
amounting to RMB1,810,755,000 and RMB664,721,000 as
at January 1, 2018 and December 31, 2018 were assessed
individually and impairment allowance of RMB2,621,000 and
RMB842,000 were made on these debtors.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. £WMI A @)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

The Directors are responsible for the Group’s cash
management, including the short term investment of
cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands. The Group's policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of
cash and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group's
financial liabilities and obligation under finance leases, which
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows (including
interest payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the end of the reporting
period) and the earliest date the Group can be required to pay:

TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

MBE DR

EZREAKENREEE  BER
T EBHEHRERBEEFKARN
BEHREHELR - ARENBERREH
ERRPDESHRME TR -
NREREARERNReMHELKREE
ZEoRMBBOTRABESTEE - MU
ENEREHNRBESHR -

TEAAEENBEMNRERAER
BMEHERRNHRE QHRELD
1 BREAMRIIZAQOARERBER
E(BRERGHNRFTENF BN
BoRAER - BIERENRERD
M RGHE) A Ko A £R [ ] BEZA 1 5K EY
RFEHHFE

As at December 31, 2018

R2018% 128318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
BHAMRELR
More than ~ More than
Weighted Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but
average lyearor  lessthan  lessthan  More than Carrying
interest rate  on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total amount
mETHE  1ERE SME SR
Mz REX EOR2FE  BIR5E  BENL @zt KEfE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
% ARBTR ARETR ARWMTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR
Trade and other payables BHRAMERNTE N/ATER 6,118,659 - - - 611865 6,118,659
Interest-bearing bank and FERTRERER
other loans 526% 7,997,289 1,234,632 83,310 - 9315231 8890217
Amounts due to related parties & f BB 7 710B NATER 7179512 - - - 79512 719512
Obligation under finance leases BERE A 9.44% 24,503 838 - - 25,341 24,552
Interest-bearing payables for s SERTEEM A
construction in progress 6.18% 35,653 39,015 34,409 - 109,077 96,910
Financial quarantee contracts S BERAH NATER 830,000 - - - 830,000 -
15,785,616 1,274,485 17,719 - 17,177,820 15,909,850
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41.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

41.

SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

MENE =R ()
As at December 31, 2017

Weighted Within
average Tyear or
interestrate  on demand

nEry 1E R,

R2017512A318
Contractual undiscounted cash outflows
SHARRR SR

Morethan ~ More than

Tyearbut 2 years but
less than lessthan  More than Carrying
2 years 5 years b years Total amount

SME BIE
% BER  EIRE EORGE BEME st BEfE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

% AREFT ARETRn ARETr ARETR ARETR ARETR

Trade and other payables B REMEMNFE NANEE 6,031,667 - - - 6,031,657 6031657

Interest-bearing bank and HERARERER

other loans 5.29% 7415479 1,559,801 1,239,140 - 10214420 9,780,212

Amounts due to related parties [T EE R NANER 702,146 - - - 702,146 702,146
Interest-bearing payables for BRI EEMFUA

construction in progress 5.84% 455,743 180,231 50,905 - 686,879 641,254

Obligations under finance leases ~ B&TE &8 9.40% 35,726 24,609 838 - 61,173 56,576

Financial quarantee contracts BT ERAH NANER 1,599,000 - - - 1,599,000 -

16,239,751 1,764,641 1,290,883 - 19295275 17211845

The amounts included above for financial guarantee contracts
are the maximum amounts the Group could be required to
settle under the arrangement for the full guaranteed amount if
that amount is claimed by the counterparty to the guarantee.
Based on the expectations at the end of each reporting
period, the Group considers that it is more likely than not that
no amount will be payable under the arrangement. However,
these estimates are subject to change depending on the
probability of the counterparties claiming under the guarantee
which is a function of the likelihood that the financial
receivables held by the counterparty which are guarantee
suffer credit losses.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value

The Group measures its following financial instruments PN
fE
DS

41. £WMI A @)

e

= »

at fair value at the end of each of the reporting period on B NER

a recurring basis:

TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

Fair value
MM
As at December 31,
R12A318 Fair value Significant
2018 2017 hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input unobservable input(s)
20185 W75 BAEER HERERFERARE EXTIERBALE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRT  ARETR

Financial assets

tREE

Unlisted equity securities 25,000 N/A  Level 3 Fair values are estimated based on the Liguidity discount rate
comparable listed company's P/B ratio and a
liquidity discount

¥ EMRAES TER E=4 RABDERAL ETARNTFER ey R R
MEETRERE

Structured trust product - 31220 Level3 Fair values are estimated hased on the net Net assets value of
asset value of underlying investments underlying investments

HREEERER E=4 RABDENEEEREN BHREY
EEFEM BERME

Bills receivable 2,992,740 N/A  Level 2 Fair values are estimated hased on the present  NJ/A
value of the contracted cash inflow at the
discount rate that reflects the market credit
risk

EZE TER 2= RAEDERGNRERAERRTEEE  TEA

BRMEREH BN RERH

Trade receivables 186,555 N/A Level2 Fair values are estimated based on the present  N/A
value of the contracted cash inflow at the
discount rate that reflects the market credit
risk

B AW TER 2§ RABNEREARSRARRYTS TER
EERRNERESENRERL

Listed equity securities 51,017 33288 Level T Fair values are calculated hased on the quoted ~ NJ/A
prices in an active market

LmRAES E RABDENERT S LOREHE TER

HEBEEEER QA
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued)

41. £WMI A @)

AVIEEE))

TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

(i) Financial instruments carried at fair value (Continued) (i) TAREVERNSRTA(E)
Fair value
MR
As at December 31,
R12A318 Fair value Significant
2018 2017 hierarchy  Valuation technique and key input unobservable input(s)
218% W7%  DREER  HERERIERABE EXTUBERAYE
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETT
Wealth management - 60,000 Level1 Fair values are calculated based on the quoted  N/A
product prices in an active market
HEEERER £ DABEDERERTR LNEEE FER
Futures contracts - 6,127  Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid pricesin -~ N/A
an active market
HEal -1 RAETREEETSNEASRE TR
Held-for-trading 286 4991 Level 1 Fair values are derived from quoted bid prices ~ N/A
non-derivative inan active market
financial assets
BIEEEFTECRAE E RAETREEETSNEARE @R
Financial liabilities
cREAE
Futures contracts 448 68  Levell Fair values are derived from quoted bid pricesin -~ N/A
an active market
HEal £-4 RAETREEETSNEARE TER

The Group’s investments in unlisted equity securities
which were classified as financial assets at FVTPL
under level 3 hierarchy amounted to RMB25,000,000
as at December 31, 2018 under IFRS 9. The significant
unobservable input is the liquidity discount rate. The
higher liquidity discount rate, the lower fair value of
the financial assets at FVTPL will be. A 5% increase/ R -
decrease in the liquidity discount rate, holding all
other variables constant, the carrying amounts
of the investments would decrease/increase by

RMB1,090,000 as at December 31, 2018.

There were no transfers between level 1 and level 2

during the reporting period.
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SR TI A @
TRlEREE R ERBER (8)

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Fair values (Continued) NIE(8)
FE=RETEMEER

TRETRABERESE =R

(i) Reconciliation of level 3 measurements (ii)

The following table represents the reconciliation of level

3 measurements throughout the reporting period. EWHER -
Unlisted Structured
equity trust
securities product
LT EE
N ERER
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T
At January 1, 2017 — IAS 39 R2017F1 A1 H—-BE
2R R 395 - 60,576
Redemption fEE - (29,356)
At December 31, 2017 - IAS 39 R20179F12 A31H—
B BR & 5T 2RI 39 5% - 31,220
Effect arising from initial application PN G
of IFRS 9 Bl 9SRFEAMTE 25,000 -
At January 1, 2018 — IFRS 9 7201841 H1H—EI
B g RS LR B 95 25,000 31,220
Redemption & o] - (31,220)
At December 31, 2018 — IFRS 9 R2018F 12 A31H—H
RO s E R 9R 25,000 -
(i Fair values of financial instruments carried at other than (il WIERAABEYIERENSRITEAD
fair value NIV =]
The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of ZEERA AREHERER
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at BHAR (@A) - %ﬁéﬂﬁ“#&i‘%

amortized cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values due to short maturity and

floating interest rates, as appropriate.

FIZBIHR AR TR EE R
TRABENEREEEREARE

M o
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42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are
those for which cash flows were or future cash flows will be,
classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash flows
as cash flows from financing activities.

42.

BMETHELENREHK

TRAVAREERETHELNE
5% BRERASKIRSEH - &
BEPELANBENEERERER
AKRBRERENAREFARTAE
RPN ERRELTDHRTRENAE

Amounts
Interest- dueto  Obligation
bearing bank related under Interest and
and other parties finance dividend Accrued
loans  non-trade leases payable issue cost Total
FERT  EABRA HE JEft JEst
REMER FEZFE  HERE FERRE  BOHA @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARBT:R
At January 1, 2017 R2017F1 818 10,743,935 261,378 85,757 31,216 - 11,122,286
Net financing cash flows BEGERERR (820,027)  (261,378) (29181)  (640,325) - (1,75091)
Bill receivables discounted  BEER EUZ I (fif7E)

(note) (141,868) - - - - (141,868)
Finance costs BEKK - - - 624,238 - 624,238
Interest accrual - capitalized ~ [E5TFIE—E Ak - - - 12,556) - 12,556)
Issue costs accrued ERETHA - - - - 2,052 2,052
Exchange difference ERER (1,828) - - - - (1,828)
At December 31, 2017 201712 A31H 9,780,212 - 56,576 2,573 2,062 9,841,413
Net financing cash flows BERSRETE (901,437) (81,200) (32,024) (629,878) - (1,644,539)
Bill receivables discounted ~ EREIFEMRZH (i5E)

(note) (4,793) - - - - (4,793)
Dividend payable EITRE - 548,733 - 24731 - 573,464
Finance costs BEKK - - - 596,765 - 596,765
Interest accrual - capitalized €zt S —E Ak - - - 17,120 - 17,120
Issue costs accrued T AT - - - - 4,346 4,346
Exchange difference EREE 16,235 - - - - 16,235
At December 31, 2018 201812 A31H 8,890,217 467,533 24,552 11,311 6,398 9,400,011

Note:

During each reporting period, the Group has discounted bills receivable

from third parties to banks for short term financing. The relevant cash
flows of these borrowings are presented as operating cash flows in the
consolidated statement of cash flows as the Directors consider the cash
flows are in substance, the receipts from trade customers.
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bRa B mAR M
43. COMMITMENTS 43. KB
(A) Capital commitments outstanding at the end of each (A) REREARLAKRNERE W

KA EL BB REITE ARE
o

reporting period not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements were as follows:

As at December 31,

M®12A31H
2018 2017
20184 2017 &
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREF T
Capital expenditure in respect of INTHEENEAMY :
— property, plant and equipment —W% - BERERE 128,404 687,206
44. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 44, EEEKT
At the end of each of the reporting period, in addition to notes RERERR - BRIFE21 - MiFE22
21 and 22, the discounted bills securing the Group's bank Mt 27 Frik Rt R A S BRI TE UK
borrowings as disclosed in note 27, and property, plant and HHRLEE R A LM 29 TR 1E A
equipment pledged for payables for construction in progress ERITRRENFBERFOME  HE
as disclosed in note 29, certain Group's assets were pledged LB AEBEETEECSHKER
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group and their BRI AREERITREEER - MER
carrying amounts are as follows: HEMNAT
As at December 31,
M®12H318
2018 2017
20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T AREF T
Property, plant and equipment Y HE REE 3,354,204 3,940,245
Prepaid lease payments T ERIE 737,389 628,431
Inventories FE 236,184 259,093
Trade and other receivables B 5 N A b FEAGRIA - 236,911
Restricted bank deposits ZRHRITER 3,581,297 3,116,195
7,909,074 8,180,875
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45.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

As at the date of this report, the Company has direct and
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which are
private companies, particulars of which are set out below:

45. B A TIHWRERS
RABE B ADAIRUTHEA

REEEZ K FEER

A VNGRS

RIARTE] BRAEHHINAT :

Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to
of incorporation/ Class of the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment shares held As of December 31, Principal activity
ML,/ RAREGRELA
MEARERE IR R A8 Fris {3 5l MW12A31R TEEH
2018 2017
2018F 17%

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of coke and
(“Xingtai Risun Trading", formerly May 12, 1995 RMB94,750,000 coking chemicals
known as Xingtai Risun Coking Limited)

(MeRBEESERAT)

(notes (i) and (iv])

BaRBE2ERAR(MaREES] - w8/ BARA EEERREER
AR e G ECERAR] 199%5%5A 128 AR94,750,000 7T

(W&M&WD

Hebei Risun Coking Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of coke and
("Hebei Risun Coking”) October 30, 2003 RMB225,000,000 coking chemicals
(iR & ERAT)

(notes (i) and (iv])

MERRELARAR (DTLREEL]) w8/ EARA FEERREER
GEIPA 2035104308 ARM 2250000007

Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals”) April 7, 2006 RMB310,000,000 chemicals
(MapBERLIERAR)

(notes (i) and (iv)

BapBRtIERAR(HawBEE w8/ EAaRA FERBILIER
{E 1) (B EE G B2 iv) 20064 A7H AR310,000,0007

China Risun Group (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong/ Ordinary share 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
(“Hong Kong Risun", formerly knownas ~ March 5, 2007 HKD1 chemicals and
Risun Coal Chemicals Group Limited and refined chemicals
Sky Hero Resources Limited)

PEBEEE(FE)ERA BE/ LRk BEAER ELER

Bl wﬁaamﬁk%ftl‘%lﬁﬁﬁ ARK  2007F3A5R 1787 RRIES
EERAERLA)

Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy”) April 9, 2007 RMB80,000,000 chemicals
(EMREHEREBR L) (hotes (v)

EMREHERERAT e/ EA4RA CERBILIER
(MR ERER]) (B3 (v) 200754 A9A AR 80,000,000
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. RHB A AR (&)
Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to
of incorporation/ Class of the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment shares held As of December 31, Principal activity
T/ KRR LR LB
MELREH RIBHRAS FrisRaER MW12A31R TEEER
2018 2017
2018F 2017F
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited BVI/ Ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
("Golden Sino") (notes (iii)) November 1, 2007 USD1
Golden Sino Enterprises Limited RERTEE/ EERIET RERR
([Golden SinoJ) (P2 i) 2007511 A18
Beijing Risun Hongye Chemicals Company ~ The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Trading of coke, coking
Limited ("Beijing Risun Hongye") February 2, 2008 RMB150,000,000 chemicals refined
(ERBEEECIERAT) and chemicals
(notes (i) and (iv)
IR EECIERAR e/ EARK EEER EltEmK
(MR EE ) (3 (i) R iv) 200842 A28 AR 150,000,007 RRIER
Tangshan Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
("Tangshan Risun Chemicals") October 17, 2008 RMB495,000,000 chemicals
(EILBBIEIBRAR)
(notes (i) and (iv))
BUERCIARAR(ELERLI)) w8/ EARA EERACIER
GELI) 2008F10A178  AR¥495,000,0007
Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Investment holding
(“Risun Chemicals") January 8, 2010 RMB430,000,000
(BB IERAR)
(Notes (i) and (iv))
BBIERAR (MBI E/ EARK RERR
GELI) 201041 A8H AR 430,000,007
Cangzhou Risun (note (ii) and (iv)) The PRC/ Paid-in capital 89.92% 89.92%  Production of refined
June 27, 2011 USD151,600,000 chemicals
BINARES (B EE G 2 ) E/ EARA EERACIER
011%6AR278 151,600,000 T
Risun Global Limited (“Risun Global", Hong Kong/ Ordinary share 100% 100%  Investment holding
formerly known as Good City (Hong July 19, 2013 HKD1
Kong) Limited)
REERAERAR ([RHER] - B/ LERIET RERR
A (B8) BRAA) 201357 A198
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45. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 45. RHB A AR (&)
Shareholding/equity
Place and date interest attributable to
of incorporation/ Class of the Company
Name of subsidiary establishment shares held As of December 31, Principal activity
HMAL/ ROFELRELS
MELREH RIBHR AL FrisRaER MW12A31R TEER
2018 2017
2018F 20175
Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
(“Xingtai Risun Chemicals") March 17, 2014 RMB150,000,000 chemicals
(BaBBtIBRRE)
(notes (i) and {iv))
BamBtIERAR ((BamktI) w8/ EgRA FERBILIER
GELI) 201453A178 AR 150,000,00070
Tangshan Risun Phthalic Anhydride The PRC/ Registered capital N/A 100%  Production of refined
Products Limited December 16,2016 RMB100,000,000 chemicals
(BELRGRFEREBRAR)
(notes (iv), (iii) and (v))
BWRSAFERERAR e/ HRRA THER CERBILIER
(FFEE () ~ i) R () 2016F127168  AR%100,000,0007C
Tangshan Risun Aromatics Hydrocarbon ~ The PRC/ Paid-in capital 100% 100%  Production of refined
Limited (B BE S EERBRAT) December 8,2017  RMB300,205,000 chemicals
(notes (iv) and i)}
BILBE S CERER AR (M3 (v RGi) 8/ EgRA FERMBCIER
2017512688 AR #300,205,0007
Ruyang Tianlu Energy Co., Ltd The PRC/ Registered capital 55% N/A Purchase and sale
("G RERREERAR") May 31,2018 RMBS5,000,000 of coal, coke and
(notes (iv) and (iii)) coking by-products
AHERERRARAR WM RG)  E/ R A TER REREEER ER
2018F5A31H AR5,000,0007T RIRERIER
Notes: B EE
(i) These entities are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in the (i) ZEEEANTREKLAIEBEERE -
PRC.

(ii) These entities are sino-foreign owned entities established in the PRC.

(iii) No audited statutory financial statements have been prepared for these

subsidiaries.

(iv) The English translation of the names is for reference only. The official

(i)  ZEEER/NTERINPINGERRE -

(i)  BEAZZMNERRREEEHBHRE

(iv) AENEXPEER2E

* R EFERAMIE

names of these companies are in Chinese.

(v) The entity was dissolved on October 19, 2018.

All of the above subsidiaries, except for Golden Sino, are
indirectly held by the Company.

All companies now comprising the Group have adopted
December 31, as their financial year end.
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46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 46. A RMEER
BRAARRARFBARRAKERT

Information about the statements of financial position of the

Company was as follows:

2018 2017
2018 F 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R — KM B A RHRE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) JE Uk B B8~ ) 30 (B EE) 412,039 -
412,039 -
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) e U B A7) 5B (B ) 672,627 55,000
Trade and other receivables B 5 M HE IR GRIR 6,398 -
Cash and cash equivalent RekReFED 2,448 -
681,473 55,000
Current liabilities nEEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note) FEAST BT B~ B 3 E (BRE) 9,617 10,982
Amount due to the immediate holding FERT BT AR FUA
company (note) (B E) 467,533 -
Trade and other payables B 5 K E M FEA FIE 21,030 3,978
498,180 14,960
Net current assets MEEEFE 183,293 40,040
Net assets EEFE 595,332 40,040
Capital and reserves EARREE
Share capital A& 7 87,123 80,600
Reserves 1 508,209 (40,560)
Total equity iR 595,332 40,040
Note: et -

Except the amount due from a subsidiary of RMB412,039,000 as at December
31, 2018 bearing interest at 9% per annum and due on June 30, 2021, the
amounts due from/to subsidiaries disclosed in the Company’s statement
of financial position are of non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.

%71 201812 A31 HEW — R E AR F

15 A

R 412,039,000 STTHYF 7 % 5 9% KL 2021 &

6 A 30 B EIEH) -
W/ P BT A
RER ETRKIEL

HEBEEEER QA

ZZDZISA AFBRRKRIRENE
REBIEZEE - |
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46. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY  46.

47.

(Continued)
MOVEMENTS IN THE COMPANY'S RESERVES

RARHHER (@)
RRFHER

Accumulated

Share (losses)/
premium profit Total
Zat
BRoEE (BER) &R @t
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBEF T ARBFT AREFTT
At January 1, 2017 M2017F1A1H 70,433 (101,891) (31,458)
Loss for the year FNEE - (9,102) (9,102)
At December 31, 2017 M2017%F12 431 H 70,433 (110,993) (40,560)
Ordinary shares issued BETEER 405,516 - 405,516
Profit for the year F A5 A - 1,034,401 1,034,401
Dividends to the immediate Dl E SRR RN A
holding company A% B, - (891,148) (891,148)
At December 31, 2018 72018412 A31H 475,949 32,260 508,209
EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD 47. {EHEZEE
Other than the events as disclosed elsewhere in these BRI EGAMBREREMSE S FAIEE
consolidated financial statements, subsequent to December EZHN 0 JRA2018F 12 A31H B » &4

31, 2018, the following significant events took place:

On March 15, 2019, the Company was successfully listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
upon when the Company issued a total of 600,000,000
ordinary shares of HKDO.1 each at HKD2.80 each for cash
by way of public offer. Upon listing of the Company’s shares
and pursuant to the written resolution of the shareholders
passed on February 20, 2019, the capitalization of
HKD243,728,147.60 out of the share premium account of
the Company in paying up in full at par 2,437,281,476 shares
for allotment and issue to the qualifying shareholders of the
Company.
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Definitions

B

"Articles” or "Articles of
Association”
(4B AN sk [#H = T2 4B A1

"

"associate(s)

R NI

"Audit Committee”
[BZZE=]

"Board"” or “Board of Directors”
=

“Business Day"” or “business
day”

[&%H]
“BVI"
[RBRELES ]

"Cabot Risun Chemicals”

[REREREET ]

“Cangzhou Production Base"

DRINEERR

“CCIA”
[REREITERE]
“China"” or "PRC"
[ EL ]

the articles of association of the Company, as amended from time to time
RRRIRAHERAA (K TRER])

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Listing Rules

B EH AR A T %A e R

the audit committee of the Board
EZgNERZEY

our board of Directors
ey

a day on which banks in Hong Kong are generally open for normal banking
business to the public and which is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday in
Hong Kong

EART - REQAZFAPFPMEEFROTEBGHEMBF (28X EHEHF
B RREREARRIN)

the British Virgin Islands
EEEZHS

Cabot Risun Chemical (Xingtai) Co., Ltd. (K18 BE{E T (BE) BR A A, a
limited liability company established in the PRC on June 23, 2011 and owned
as t0 60.0% by Cabot (China) Limited (< 1&%5 (R ) & & B R A Al), an
independent third party, and 40.0% by our subsidiary, Risun Chemicals. It is an
associate of our Company

REFEHBET(Fa)BRAF - R2011F6 A23BEFRBEKIMBRA
Al WHENEF(RFEDREBRAG(ARBYE=7) REMHHE R FES
{ETHRI%H60.0% K 40.0% * BAAE REE QA

our production base in Cangzhou, where the refined chemical facilities directly
owned by our subsidiary, Cangzhou Risun Chemicals, are located
BMERNNEERRE  REMONELRDEMNES{ TEEREE B
TR FTIEHD

the China Coking Industry Association (/7 Bl EREE1T %1€ ), an association
composed of representatives from the PRC coking industry

FREREITERS  AFBERETERREXNDHE

the People's Republic of China, but for the purpose of this annual report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references
to “China” and the “"PRC" do not include Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
RIEARANE  ERAFREIEMERBZEmS  BRXESEMREIN P
B | )Rt N BRERE  RPIRAE
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Definitions

“CNC Risun Coking”

[ BRS R

“Companies Ordinance”
IPNSIEESHN
“Company”

EAYNCIN

"

“connected person(s)

[BE:E AT
“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[HERR IR

“Deed of Non-competition”

ENEES

“Dingzhou Production Base”

[EMNEERR ]

"

“Director(s)

[E%]

“EBITDA"
[EBITDA]

"“Executive Director(s)"”

[HITER]

Hebei CNC Risun Coking Limited (8] it R £ fIEFZ (b B R A 7]), a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC on November 21, 2003 and a joint
venture company of the Company

bR IEBREBR(E AR AR - —KK 2003411 A21 BEFRBEFMKIHAE
NI PN SN NS

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended or supplemented from time to time
EBEDIFE 622 F R AHED] (B EHEFT S 7T)

China Risun Group Limited (B /Bf5 SE£@ AR A F]), a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability on November 8, 2007
FEBBEBEERAR  —RN2007F 11 ASHEMSHEZMAZHAER

NG

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

B MR A T %A e R

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules and, unless the context
otherwise requires, means each of Texson and Mr. Yang

A MR FZANRE  BRIEXEREHME  SRERRAMGTE

a deed of non-competition entered into by each of our Controlling Shareholders
containing the undertakings as described in the paragraph headed
"Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders — Deed of Non-Competition”
of the Prospectus, in favor of the Company and our subsidiaries dated February
20, 2019

HEERRREIZL A A2019F2 A20 AMTHFRE R HBBRER
[EPERR R RV ER — TR F R — B AR R A R R M E AR RX
an A B EGE

our production base in Dingzhou, where the refined chemical facilities owned
by our subsidiary, Dingzhou Tianlu New Energy and the coking facilities owned
by our subsidiary, Hebei Risun Coking, are located

BHEEMNNEERR  "AEMANMNBAGEMRENERERNBAT
= FOR b B IS b B B AL ER B HY PR b

the director(s) of the Company

KRBER

earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization

REFFIE ~ DA - 88 R #sH AT & R

executive Director(s)

HITES
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Definitions

“Financial Statements” the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2018
prepared by the directors of the Company and audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, set out on pages 135 to 274 of this annual report

[ H5 ¥Rk | RERFBIBE2VAAFFHEHARREFTRENAEY « BRI STAIITE
ZHEZE 20184 12 A31 HIEFE KRG B ®RE

“FVTPL" fair value through profit or loss
[z A EEt ABE] BARER ABR®
"“Global Offering” the offer of 60,000,000 Shares initially offered by the Company for subscription

by the public in Hong Kong at, the offer and sale of the 540,000,000 Shares
by the Company to professional, institutional and other investors and an over-
allotment of 90,000,000 Shares as described in the section headed “Structure
of the Global Offering” in the Prospectus

[ 23S ] BRER 2B EHNEE ] — 8 pratAA R 54252 2 %5 60,000,000 & i%
MUARBERRALRE  ARAFMEX KEBMHMOREEZENHEE
540,000,000 A A% £ K% 8 8 Aic 3% 90,000,000 A% A 17

“Group”, "we" or "us” the Company and its subsidiaries or, where the context otherwise requires, in
respect of the period prior to the Company becoming the holding company of
its present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of the Company, some or any
of them and the businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may
be) their predecessors

[REE |3 [#5 1] RAFIREMBRR - MXERARE  HERARRKBEREH B QAR
ERAFAOEEMNS - AEARFAREMNEBEAR - & THEMZEFMNBER
AR ZEMB AR (RIGAME) HAT S AR KENER

“HBCCIA" Hebei Coking and Chemical Industry Association (jAIdt & E{LITE R L), an
association composed of representatives from the coking and coal chemical
industries

DAt E BT ER S b EEITERE  BEENMECTITERKREKNHE

"HK$" or “Hong Kong dollars” or Hong Kong dollars and cents respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
“cents”

[ 7T)st B4l BEBEREEE BT REN
“Hong Kong” or “HK" the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
[ &% REEBRETHRER

“Hong Kong Stock Exchange” or  The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
"Stock Exchange”

[ 25 P8 Bk 32 A7 | =k [ Bk 22 P BEEBMERHMERRAR]
"IFRS" International Financial Reporting Standards, amendments and interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
[ B B 75 ¥l 5 22 R RErr AR RS RMHBRRMEREED - B LR E
“Independent Non-executive independent non-executive Director(s)
Director(s)”
(B EMITESE] BINEMITES
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Definitions

"“independent third party(ies)”

o —

[(BrE=7

Jinniu Risun Chemicals

[£4BBET )

“Listing”

[

“Listing Date”

[ B8

“Listing Rules”

[EmRA

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Mr. Yang”

P

person(s) or company(ies) and their respective ultimate beneficial owner(s),
who/which, to the best of our Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
having made all reasonable enquiries, is/are not connected with the Company
or our connected persons as defined under the Listing Rules
BRMAEENMEE -V EBEREMAM  FRLEE BB EHHRAER
DA B MIBEAT T BAENATHKRRIREEZEEERERHEEA

Hebei Jinniu Risun Chemicals Limited (A3t & 4-1BE5 L THR A7), a limited
liability company established in the PRC on March 28, 2008 and owned

as to 50.0% by our subsidiary, Xingtai Risun Trading and 50.0% by Hebei
Jinniu Chemical Industry Co., Ltd. CAIdL & 41k TR B R A7), a company
established in the PRC, whose shares are listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 600722), and an independent third party. Jinniu Risun
Chemicals is an associate of our Company

b4 BB I ERAR - —HKN2008F3 A28 B EFHEKIHBERA
A BEMOREARMAERE St t TR ER AR (—KEF
BIRKSZEVAR] - RN EBF SRS B (RH RS 0 600722) - BB
E=7)DRIHA50.0% K%50.0% - &4 BIGE T AARA B E QR

listing of the Shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
IR PR E BB ZZPT BT

the date, being, March 15, 2019, on which the Shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange and from which dealings in the Shares are permitted to commence
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

IR PABE R P ETH I B SRR P =R EZENBE - BI2019463 A
15H

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to
time)

ERBMARGMBRARER TR (KTREE - MAIAREMT R E
%0

the stock market (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operated in parallel with the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange

MR ENRETS (TEEMETS) BN R GEM I EHE 1T
i

Mr. Yang Xuegang (%54 ), an Executive Director, the chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and one of our Controlling Shareholders

BEREE WITEF BEFSLIFERTBAE  UARMNVEBRRRZ —
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“NDRC”
[BIR#ENZ]

“"Nomination Committee”

[fERZEg

“NPC”
ES= PN

“Prospectus”

[BRERE]

“Remuneration Committee”
[FNEZE =

“Reporting Period”
(¥R 5

"RMB" or “Renminbi”
[ARE ]

"SFO" or “Securities and Futures

Ordinance”

[ 5 K EIE 1601 ]
"Shares”
[ A% 17 ]

“Shareholder(s)"”
[% % |

"“subsidiary” or “subsidiaries”

Niil=PNGIN

"substantial shareholder”
Ex:3 e

“Tangshan Production Base”

[FlLAEERE]

National Development and Reform Commission of the PRC (F1 2 A R £ F1E
BERERINELZED)
PEARANMBEERERNBELZE S

the nomination committee of the Board

ExemiERtEe

National People’s Congress of the PRC (FZEARKFH2FHEARRERZ)
FEAREMEEZBEARRERS

the prospectus of the Company dated February 28, 2019 in relation to the initial
public offering and the listing of our Shares on the Stock Exchange
AAGIHER2019F2 A28 BB A R AR EE RE MM RBE P £
BB ERR

the remuneration committee of the Board
FEENFNEESD

January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018
20181 H1HZE20185F12A31H

the lawful currency of the PRC

REAE R

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended or supplemented from time to time
EREDESN BES MR G (KRBT /)

ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each in the share capital of our
Company
RRBIRAFGAREE0.108 LB B iR

holder(s) of our Shares

B FEAE A

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the Companies Ordinance

B R ARG T 3% A 6 3

has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Listing Rules

e iy N i D E

the production base in Tangshan, where the refined chemical facilities owned
by our subsidiary, Tangshan Risun Chemicals are located
BMERLNEERRE  AEMGOMEBQSELIEBRETHEAENBA(L TR
MEBI PR TE 1D
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Definitions

“"Texson”

[T 7R]

“USA"
B0

“USD”
E

“Xingtai Production Base”

(e EERE]

Xingtai Risun Chemicals

(& MBrET )

“Xingtai Risun Trading”

[(FEEEFZE 5 |

“Xuyang Group”
[fBF5 & H |

“Xuyang Holding”

[ 18 P& 4% B |

-~y
[% ]

Texson Limited (Z£52 5 A R A A1), a company incorporated in the BVI on
February 19, 2004 and wholly-owned by Mr. Yang. It is one of our Controlling
Shareholders

ZRHRBRAF  —KR2004F2 A1 9B RBRZBESHMKZHAF -
MIGEE2EHER - EREFMNERRRZ —

the United States of America
EFRER

the lawful currency of the USA
EEEEE

the production base in Xingtai, where the coking facilities owned by our joint
venture company, CNC Risun Coking, and refined chemical facilities owned by
our subsidiaries, Xingtai Risun Coal Chemicals, Xingtai Risun Chemicals and our
associates, Jinniu Risun Chemicals and Cabot Risun Chemicals are located
BMEMBENEERRE  ARMNEE QR FEBE SIS 8 R E R A
EBEMANKBRARMaBEET MalB it TRERMOBE QRSB
BT RESES(CTHESORBAC TRIEN P

Xingtai Risun Chemicals Limited (78 & JBI5{t THFR A7), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on March 17, 2014 and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company

MEaBB It IAERAT  —KR2014F3A17BEFBEKINERRAR - &
RATINEE2EWNE AR

Xingtai Risun Trading Limited (F & B[5 8 5 AR A F]) (formerly known as
Xingtai Risun Coking Limited (/if & MBS &L AR A ), a limited liability
company established in the PRC on May 12, 1995 and an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of our Company
MEBSESERAR (AR BEE(CERLAT) » —KN1995F5 H12
BEHFEXRIOHBRAR  RARRNEEZENRBE AR

Xuyang Holding and its subsidiaries

TB B3 ¥2 st e L BfY /B 2 )

Xuyang Holding Limited (/8512 A% B IR 2 7]) (formerly known as Xuyang
Coking Holding Limited (B [5 f(E1ZEAX B BR 2 &) and Tianlu Industrial Holding
Limited (KEZZIEMAR A R])), a limited liability company established in the
PRC on August 4, 2004 and owned as to 99.0% by Mr. Yang and 1.0% by Mrs.
Yang

BFSER AR AR (ABEEECIERER AR RRXETEEZERERQF)
—HKN2004F8H4REFREKVHNERAGF - BB EERIGARNDRESR
99.0% &% 1.0%

per cent

B
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